
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

MEETING OF THE  
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
 

3rd Floor – CONFERENCE ROOM 
 

THURSDAY, October 4, 2012 
 

3:30 P.M. 
 

 WORKSHOP AGENDA 
 
 

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted for 
Thursday, October 4, 2012. 
 

2. Discuss the City of Temple Zoning Ordinance and Housing Standards. 
 

3. Discuss the criteria used for Tax Credit Projects. 
 

4. Discuss the City of Temple Smoking Ordinance and proposed amendments from the Mayor’s 
Fitness Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

5:00 P.M. 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 

TEMPLE, TX 
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
1. Invocation 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 
 
II. PROCLAMATIONS & SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS 
 
3. (A) National Colonial Heritage Month - October    
 
 
III. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – Receive comments from the public in regards to the proposed Quiet 

Zones in downtown Temple. 
 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting.  
Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting.  Please limit comments to 3 
minutes.  No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council.  
 
 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion.  If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered 
separately. 
 
 
5. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate 

resolutions for each of the following: 



 

 
 

Minutes 
 
(A) September 20, 2012 Special Called and Regular Meeting 

 
 

 
Contracts, Leases, & Bids 
 
(B) 2012-6766-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City to enter into seven 

lease agreements for agricultural properties owned by the City.  
 
(C) 2012-6767-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a three year lease agreement 

with Belco Manufacturing Co., Inc. for lease of property owned by the City and located 
along a portion of the Georgetown Railroad.  

 
(D) 2012-6768-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City to enter into a 

contract with the Railroad and Pioneer Museum of Temple to terminate the prior 
agreement between the City and the Foundation. 

 
(E) 2012-6769-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 

Legends Landscapes LLC, of Lexington for the South First Street Improvement Phase 2 
project within the Temple Medical and Education District in an amount not to exceed 
$2,110,600. 

 
(F) 2012-6770-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase and installation 

of eleven propane conversion kits from Philpott Motors of Port Neches utilizing a 
BuyBoard cooperative contract, in the amount of $99,499. 

 
(G) 2012-6771-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Chapter 380 grant 

agreement with Temple Pro Ventures Commercial, LP for redevelopment improvements 
at 1401 South 1st Street in the South First Street Strategic Investment Zone corridor in 
an amount not to exceed $44,000. 

 
 
 
Ordinances – Second & Final Reading 
 
(H) 2012-4556: SECOND READING - Z-FY-12-58: Consider adopting an ordinance 

authorizing a rezoning from Heavy Industrial District (HI) to Multiple Family Two District 
(MF-2) on 12.163 acres, being a part of land situated in the Redding Roberts Survey, 
Abstract No. 692, Bell County, Texas, located at 3000 South General Bruce Drive.  

 
(I)       2012-4557: SECOND READING - Z-FY-12-59: Consider adopting an ordinance 

authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural District (AG) to General Retail District (GR) on 
1.053 ±acres out of the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, 
located at 3408 and 3410 South Kegley Road. 

 



 

(J) 2012-4558: SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance setting the number of 
positions in each classification for the Temple Fire Department and the Temple Police 
Department. 

 
 
Misc.  
 
(K) 2012-6772-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the use of the Construction 

Manager-at-Risk project delivery method for the acquisition of services needed to 
remodel approximately 5,000 sq ft in the Municipal Building. 

 
(L) 2012-6773-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the submission of an 

application to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality’s Texas Natural Gas 
Vehicle Grant Program for the purchase of fourteen new compressed natural gas refuse 
haulers. 

 
(M) Consider adopting resolutions: 

 
1. 2012-6774-R: Granting a petition to institute voluntary annexation proceedings, 

known as the Campus at Lakewood Voluntary Annexation, for a 10+ acre tract of 
land, located at the north end of Richland Drive, north of The Campus at 
Lakewood Ranch Phase VII.  

 
2.  2012-6775-R: Directing the Staff to develop a municipal services plan and calling 

public hearings to consider the petition. 
 
 
VI. REGULAR AGENDA 
 
 
ORDINANCES 
 
 
6. 2012-4559: FIRST READING- PUBLIC HEARING -  Z-FY-12-50: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a rezoning from PD Planned Development-Urban Estates District  (PD-
UE) to Planned Development -Single Family-1 District (PD-SF-1) on 39.3± acres of land, being 
part of the William Frazier Survey, Abstract #310 located south of FM 93 along the west side of 
Dubose Road.  

 
7. 2012-4560: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-12-53: Consider adopting an 

ordinance amending the Citywide Trails Master Plan. 
 
8. 2012-4561: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-12-54: Consider adopting an 

ordinance amending Ordinance 2008-4230, the Choices ’08, City of Temple Comprehensive 
Plan, Chapter 5, to amend the Thoroughfare Plan Map. 

 
9. 2012-4562: FIRST READING- PUBLIC HEARING -  Z-FY-12-60: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Single Family Two District (SF-2) to Two Family District 
(2F) on 16.451± acres, situated in the Maximo Moreno Survey, Abstract 14, Bell County, 
Texas located between Hartrick Bluff Road and Lowe’s Drive, south of Canyon Creek Drive. 



 

 
10. 2012-4563: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 

designating a tract of land consisting of approximately 8.144 acres and described as Lot 7 and 
Lot 8, Block 1, Enterprise Park, located at 2708 Lucius McCelvey Drive as City of Temple Tax 
Abatement Reinvestment Zone Number Twenty-Four for commercial/industrial tax abatement. 

 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
  
11. 2012-6776-R: P-FY-12-23: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the Preliminary Plat of 

The Oaks at Lakewood, a 19.065 acres ±, 2 blocks, 37-lot residential subdivision, with a 
requested exception to Unified Development Code Section 8.2.1.G.2, regarding a threshold of 
180 feet for a jogged intersection, located on the east side of Mogan’s Point Road, north of the 
intersection of West Adams Avenue and Morgan’s Point Road.    

 
 
  

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session 
whenever permitted by the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 
3:30 PM, on September 28, 2012. 
 
 
______________________ 
Lacy Borgeson, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 
 
I certify that this Notice of Meeting Agenda was removed by me from the outside bulletin board in front of the City Municipal Building at _________on the 
________________ day of __________ 2012. ______________. 

 
 

  



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/04/12 

Item #3(A) 
Regular Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
 
William A. Jones, III, Mayor 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Presentation of Proclamation. 
 
 (A) National Colonial Heritage Month - October   
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Present proclamation as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:   (A) This proclamation was requested by and will be presented to members of the 
Governor Samuel Mathews chapter of Colonial Dames XVII Century. 
 
  
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  None  
 

  



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/04/12 
Item #4 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Director of Public Works 
R. David Patrick, P.E., CFM, KPA Engineers 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  PUBLIC HEARING: Receive comments from the public in regards to the 
proposed Quiet Zones in downtown Temple.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  NA 
 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:   NA 
 
  
FISCAL IMPACT:  NA 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Chamber of Commerce Resolution 
Letters of Support 
 

 

  







 
 
 
 
 
September 27, 2012 
 
 
 
Council Members 
City of Temple 
Temple TX  
 
Dear City Council Person: 
 
I am asking the City Council to vote for the proposed Railroad Safety Zones for downtown 
Temple.  As residential property owners in downtown and as customers of downtown 
businesses, we believe that the Quiet Zones will enhance the atmosphere and increase the 
safety of the downtown area.  As reported in this web site, 
www.fra.dot.gov/rrs/downloads/safety/THRReport072312.pdf, there are currently 77 quiet 
zones in Texas alone and the number continues to grow.  On the web site http://oli.org/about‐
us/news/statistics there are several reports that show Texas ranks near the top for fatalities at 
railroad crossings. 
 
The loud whistles are disruptive and annoying.  They inhibit the development of business and 
are a major deterrent to any future development of residential property. Additionally, they 
serve no meaningful purpose. Having moved here from communities in Illinois with significant 
rail traffic near our house, we never heard the constant whistle blowing at all hours of the day 
and night that occurs in Temple. Developing Railroad Safety Zones creates a win for Temple 
businesses, a win for Temple residents, and modernizes an up and coming community in 
Central Texas. No one loses by implementing these, and everyone wins. 
 
To those who would accentuate the historical nature of “hearing the trains,” I would ask if they 
also want to take advantage of the historical nature of outdoor plumbing, telegraphs, and stage 
coaches in their daily lives…all of which were popular when train whistles became prevalent.   
Eliminating the whistles in the downtown area will in no way diminish the value of the trains to 
our City nor will it prevent citizens from enjoying their passage through town. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Marc and Michele Hallee 
Home Owners 





 

 
 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

10/04/12 
Item #5(A) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary   
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Approve Minutes: 
 

(A) September 20, 2012 Special Called and Regular Meeting 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve minutes as presented in item description. 
 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
September 20, 2012 Special Called and Regular Meeting 
 

 

  



TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL  
  

SEPTEMBER 20, 2012  
  

The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Special Meeting on 
Thursday, September 20, 2012, at 3:30 PM, at the Municipal Building, 2 North 
Main Street, in the 3rd Floor Conference Room.  
 
Present:  
 
Councilmember Perry Cloud 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Dunn 
Councilmember Judy Morales 
Mayor William A. Jones, III  
 
Absent:  
 
Councilmember Russell Schneider 
 

 
Regular Agenda Item #4(G) related to NW Loop Mitigation - Mr. Blackburn 
stated credits are now available to us; and by choosing this method we will 
save dollars. 
 
Regular Agenda Item #4(J) related to the second reading  of the CUP for 
Lamar Advertising - last meeting there was a request by Mr. Patel to table 
this item.  Mr. Blackburn stated at this time no resolution as been made 
between the parties. 
 
Regular Agenda Item #4(N) related to the pricing policies for The Airport - 
Mr. Blackburn stated this was heard and approved by the Airport Advisory 
Board.  
 
Regular Agenda Item #4(P) related to Issuance of COs.  Mr. Barnard stated 
this will be Phase I of the TCIP.  This also includes the landfil expansion 
and permitting.  Landfil operation revenues will be applied to this debt. 
 
Regular Agenda Item #5 related to first reading for multi-family two district 
zoning request. Mr. Blackburn stated Staff’s recommendation and P&Z’s 
recommendation are different for this request.  Staff is recommending 
denial.   
 
Ms. Speer stated Staff’s recommendation differs from P&Z due to the 
request not complying with the Comprehensive Plan. This is consistent with 
our procedures. This case will allow us the opportunity to review what our 

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the
meeting posted for Thursday, September 20, 2012.

Page 1 of 13City Council

9/28/2012http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=467&doc_id=cc66f730-...



standards are for the area of I-35. 
 
Mr. Blackburn suggested that there be a workshop in the future to assess 
the standards and determine what is expected in this area. 
 
Regular Agenda Item #8 related to the Local Preference Option.  Mr. 
Blackburn stated this is a complicated contract item.  Mr. Mattke reviewed 
the local preference option for Council.  She reviewed the bid package with 
Council. She stated the bids were opened on June 26, 2012 for 77 
categories, of which there were four bidders.  Staff is recommending the 
$493,882 annual purchase award be to the low bidders by category, 
Municipal Water Work Supply $57,080.85; HD Supply Waterworks 
$130,654.05; Ferguson Waterworks $188,442.05; and ACT Pipe and 
Supply $117,705.03.  ACT Pipe and Supply is requesting that they be 
deemed a ’local business’ under the City’s Local Preference Policy.  They 
declaration is that they pay Temple taxes; employees are local residents; 
and ACT stocks all material of this bid in Temple.  ACT is within 5% of the 
low bidder in 13 categories of the bids received.  Ms. Mattke reviewed the 
Local Preference Policy adopted by Council. She also stated that if Council 
elects to award Local Preference as requested by ACT, there will be an 
additional cost of $6,390.  
 
Ms. Mattke stated there are two questions to answer - What is ’principal 
place of business’? Does awarding the 13 additional categories of the bid to 
ACT provide the best overall economic development opportunity to the 
City?     
 
Mayor Jones stated if local preference option is selected it will add $6,390 
to the annual cost of this bid.  
 
Councilmember Cloud asked if there was benefit to having the supplier 
stock locally?  
 
Ms. Mattke stated no.  
 

 
Captain Shafer gave Council a brief overview.  He stated all the property 
needed for the Center of Hope has been transferred to the Salvation Army.  
The Center will be located on Avenue G and will include the women’s 
dorm.  This will be converted into a men’s transitional working facility. 
United Way is helping with the clean up and we hope to begin renovations 
in about a month.  We continue with fundraisers to raise money. To date, 
the Salvation Army has pledged $1.297 million for the Center of Hope.  
Captain Shafer also discussed the feeding program.  There currently 40 
different groups participating in this program to help feed the hungry in our 
community.  We are blessed to have so many helping.   

2. Receive an update on the Center of Hope and other initiatives by the
Salvation Army.  

Page 2 of 13City Council

9/28/2012http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=467&doc_id=cc66f730-...



 
Councilmember Morales inquired on the transitional facility. 
 
Captain Shafer stated there will be six rooms to house 24 men; with a 
capacity of 40 men.  The renovations will cost approximately $1,000. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Dunn inquired as to whether or not further complaints have 
been received from the neighborhood near the feeding program. 
 
Captain Shafer stated this appears to have worked itself out and those 
receiving the services are respectful to the residents of the area. 
 
Mayor Jones asked if there was a method used to track those receiving the 
services to determine if the individuals are transitional or residents of the 
area? 
 
Captain Shafer stated he is out there asking question to determine as 
such.  The Salvation Army will continue to feed the hungry and ask the 
community to help in supporting the program.  
 
Councilmember Cloud asked if there was a time limit for one to stay at the 
transitional facility? 
 
Captain Shafer stated this will be a case by case basis. 
 
Mr. Blackburn asked what the funding goal is? 
 
Captain Shafer stated $2.5 million is a realistic goal for the Center of Hope.  
 

 
Mark Smith, Mayor’s Council of Physical Fitness gave the presentation to 
Council.  Mr. Smith discussed the importance of having this 
ordinance, national statistics, and hazards of tobacco use.   Mr. Smith 
stated tobacco use is the single larges cause of preventable death in the 
United States.  He added that it is important to have smoke free policies; as 
this can influence how adolescents view smoking, resulting in reduced 
smoking rates in youth.  According to CDC, there are more than 4,000 
teens smoking cigarettes for the first time each day.  As of 2009, the CDC 
estimates that 19.5 % of teenagers are current smokers.  Mr. 
Smith stated Temple College is currently reviewing their policy.  A smoke 
free policy is the trend for many cities. Texas as a whole is in the 13%-16% 
range of smoking population. Mr. Smith reviewed secondhand smoke facts 
and why this is a problem.  He added that on average, children are 
exposed to more secondhand smoke than nonsmoking adults.  Mr. Smith 
stated the Fitness Council recommends the City of Temple follow the lead 
of Waco, by closely modeling their smoking regulations which were 

3. Receive presentation from the Mayor’s Fitness Council and discuss
amending the City’s Smoking Ordinance.

Page 3 of 13City Council

9/28/2012http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=467&doc_id=cc66f730-...



adopted in November 17, 2009. Mr. Smith provided the proposed 
amendments to be, Sec. 16-89 revise to include bowling and entertainment 
centers and to make all Temple Parks smoke free; Sec. 16-93 (b) revise to 
limit up to 25% of hotel and motel rooms rented to guests, provided each 
room so designated has a sign on the front door showing it is a smoking 
room; Sec. 16-93 (K) revise to an existing establishment or facility whose 
gross receipts for alcohol sales are in excess of 50% of the total gross 
receipts of the establishment or facility.  Mr. Smith also the city needs to 
establish a time frame or deadline for existing bars to become smoke free 
within the next 15 years.  
 
In September, the Temple Parks and Leisure Services Advisory 
Board voted, by majority, in support of strengthening the City of Temple 
smoking ordinance and voted to adopt the language to make all Temple 
Parks smoke free.  
 
Councilmember Cloud inquired as to the next step. 
 
Mr. Blackburn stated it would be beneficial to have a workshop to discuss 
the current ordinance as well as the amendments and how it will affect 
those in the community. 
  
There was an individual present that requested the City of Temple take into 
consideration that affects this could possibly have on the establishments 
within the City that allow for smoking.  
 

The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Regular Meeting on 
Thursday, September 20, 2012, at 5:00 PM in the Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, 2nd Floor, 2 North Main Street. 
 
The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Regular Meeting on 
Thursday, September 20, 2012 at 5:00 PM in the Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, 2nd Floor, 2 North Main Street.   
 
Present:  

 
Absent:  

 
 

 

Councilmember Perry Cloud  
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Dunn  
Councilmember Judy Morales  
Mayor William A. Jones, III  

Councilmember Russell Schneider  

I. CALL TO ORDER

1. Invocation

Page 4 of 13City Council

9/28/2012http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=467&doc_id=cc66f730-...



 
Gary Smith, Chief of Police, voiced the Invocation. 
 

 
Ken Cicora, Director of Parks and Leisure Services, led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 

 

 
Ken Cicora, Director of Parks and Leisure Services, recognized 
Angela McGehe, of Scott & White Healthcare, and Ed Page, Larry 
McAdoo, and Clay McFarland, of HEB for their sponsorship support to 
the City’s Parks and Leisure Services Department throughout the 
year.  
 

 
Troy Mayer - Vice President of Acadian Ambulance Services addressed the 
council in regards to the Ambulance Service amendments. He stated that 
Acadian is a quality amublance service and its mission is to provided the 
best non emergency in Temple it can.  
 

 

 
(A) September 6, 2012 Special Called and Regular Meeting  
 
(B) Consider adopting resolutions authorizing annual contracts 
for the following:  
 

 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance

II. PROCLAMATIONS & SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS

3. Recognize HEB and Scott & White Healthcare for their
sponsorship support to the City’s Parks and Leisure Services
Department.  

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS

IV. CONSENT AGENDA

4. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda
items and the appropriate resolutions for each of the following: 

1. 2012-6733-R: Medium Duty Truck Brakes - Russell &
Smith Ford, Inc.; estimated amount of $30,000  

2. 2012-6734-R: Sign and Traffic Control Supplies -
American Traffic Safety Materials, Inc., Pathmark
Traffic Products, 3M Company, Vulcan Sign, and
Custom Products Corp; estimated annual amount of
$49,668.37

3. 2012-6735-R: Traffic Signal Equipment - Traffic Parts,
Inc., Naztec, Inc., and Paradigm Traffic System, Inc.;

Page 5 of 13City Council

9/28/2012http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=467&doc_id=cc66f730-...



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

estimated annual amount of $120,764.40  

4. 2012-6736-R: Water Meters - Municipal Waterworks
Supply, HD Supply Waterworks, Border States
Electric, Mueller Systems, and Master Meter, Inc.;
estimated annual amount of $147,919.72  

5. 2012-6737-R: Various Forms of Rock - Superior
Crushed Stone of Jarrell; estimated annual amount of
$33,155

6. 2012-6738-R: Aggregate Base - Lhoist N.A. of Texas,
Ltd; estimated annual amount of $60,000  

7. 2012-6739-R: Hot Mix Asphalt - APAC Texas, Inc-
Wheeler; estimated annual amount of $71,000  

8. 2012-6740-R: Herbicides and Insecticides - John Deere
Landscapes, VETcorp, Inc., Red River Specialties, Inc.,
BWI-Schulenburg, and Alligare, LLC; estimated annual
amount of $56,375.03

9. 2012-6741-R: Liquid Ammonium Sulfate - Altivia
Corporaton; estimated annual amount of $45,750 

10. 2012-6742-R: Chemical Root Control Services - Duke’s
Root Control, Inc.; estimated annual amount of
$65,000

11. 2012-6743-R: Plumbing Supplies - Ham & McCreight
Supply; estimated annual amount of $30,000  

12. 2012-6744-R: Janitorial Supplies - Gulf Coast Paper
Company; estimated annual amount of $110,000  

13. 2012-6745-R: Office Supplies - Perry Office Plus,Inc.;
estimated annual amount of $130,000

14. 2012-6746-R: Tires & Tubes - Southern Tire Mart and
GCR Tire Centers (secondary award); estimated
annual amount of $240,788.64

15. 2012-6747-R: Concrete Repair and Construction
Services - Dixon Paving; estimated annual amount of
$54,410

16. 2012-6748-R: Electrical Services - Durbin Electric and
T. Morales Company Electric and Controls, Ltd.;

Page 6 of 13City Council

9/28/2012http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=467&doc_id=cc66f730-...



 

 

 

 

 

 
(C) 2012-6754-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
construction contract with LA Colo LLC dba Colo Railroad 
Builders for construction activities required to replace the 
Lucius McCelvey Rail Crossing within the Reinvestment Zone in 
north Temple in an amount not to exceed $94,622.64.  
 
(D) 2012-6755-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the 
City to enter into a "First Responder/EMS Provider Contract" 
with Scott & White Memorial Hospital and Scott, Sherwood, and 
Brindley Foundation (collectively referred to as "Scott & White").  
 
(E) 2012-6756-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the 
purchase of 51 metal refuse containers for the Solid Waste 
Division from Rolloffs USA., Durant, OK, through the H-GAC 
Contract in the amount of $47,514.92.  
 
(F) 2012-6757-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the 
purchase of a yearly 2012-2013 maintenance contract with 
Intergraph Public Safety in the amount of $39,504.  
 
(G) 2012-6758-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
credit sales agreement to purchase necessary credits for off-site 
stream mitigation related to the NW Loop 363 project in an 
amount of $493,200.  
 
(H) 2012-6759-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the 
renewal of a funding and operating agreement with the Temple 

estimated annual amount of $80,000

17. 2012-6749-R: Temporary Employment Services -
Manpower Group; estimated annual amount of $34,000

18. 2012-6750-R: Design & Printing of Play-by-Play
Brochures - Color Visual Concepts, Inc.; estimated
annual amount of $29,820

19. 2012-6751-R: Cellular & Data Services and Related
Equipment - Verizon Wireless; estimated annual
amount of $205,000

20. 2012-6752-R: Local Phone Service - AT& T; estimated
annual amount of $180,000

21. 2012-6753-R: Sale of Scrap Metal and Recyclables -
Temple Iron and Metal, a division of Bell County Iron
and Recycling Co., Inc

Page 7 of 13City Council

9/28/2012http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=467&doc_id=cc66f730-...



Economic Development Corporation.  
 
(I) 2012-4552: SECOND READING - Z-FY-12-57: Consider 
adopting an ordinance authorizing an amendment to Ordinance 
2010-4413, Temple Unified Development Code, Article 7.5, 
"Signs", to establish procedure to request a Conditional Use 
Permit for off-premise signs relocating due to proposed state 
right-of-way requirements.  
 
(J) 2012-4553: SECOND READING - Z-FY-12-56: Consider 
adopting an ordinance authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to 
allow an off-premise sign relocation closer than 1,500 feet from 
another off-premise sign at 5275 South General Bruce Drive.  
 
(K) 2012-4554: SECOND READING: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing amendments to the Tax Increment 
Financing Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and Project Plans 
for FY 2012-2022 to include recognizing additional tax increment 
and grant revenues; recognizing savings from bond refunding 
transactions; and reallocating, adjusting and appropriating to 
various projects.  
 
(L) 2012-4555:  SECOND READING: Consider adopting an 
ordinance amending Chapter 5, "Ambulance Services," of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple, Texas.  
 
(M) 2012-6760-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
Chapter 380 development agreement between the City and 
Jagdish Mehta, authorizing the swap of 2102 Scott Boulevard, 
Temple, Texas for the northern 100 feet of Mr. Mehta’s property 
located at 352 SW Dodgen Loop, Temple, Texas.  
 
(N) 2012-6761-R: Consider adopting a resolution amending the 
retail and discount pricing policies for the Draughon-Miller 
Central Texas Regional Airport.  
 
(O) 2012-6762-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing 
participation in the Texas Municipal League, Intergovernmental 
Risk Pool to provide property, liability and worker’s comp 
coverage for the City.  
 
(P) 2012-6763-R: Consider adopting a resolution directing 
publication of notice of the City’s intention to issue one or more 
series of Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation (C.O.) in the 
amount not to exceed $14,500,000.  
 

Page 8 of 13City Council

9/28/2012http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=467&doc_id=cc66f730-...



(Q) 2012-6764-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing 
budget amendments for fiscal  Year 2011-2012.  
 

Motion by Councilmember Judy Morales adodpt resolution approving 
Consent Agenda  seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Danny Dunn. 
 

 
ORDINANCES  
 

 
Autumn Speer, Director of Community Services, presented this 
item to the Council. The applicant is RDO for James Sheila 
Mohler at 3000 South General Bruce Drive.  There request is for 
a rezoning from HI to MF-2 District.  The applicant's request to 
change zoning to to allow for apartment uses; the current HI 
does not allow for this.  This property is located at Avenue K 
and just east of Bird Creek Crossing.  Ms. Speer provided 
images of the surrounding area.  She also reviewed the allowed 
uses in MF-2 District as well as those prohibited uses.  The 
Develoment Standards were also reviewed for this site, with a 
maximum of 240 units being developed at this site. The Future 
Land Use Map designates this area at Auto-Urban.  There were 
13 notices mailed out, with one being returned in favor of the 
rezoning.  Planning and Zoning Commission heard this case on 
September 4, 2012, and recommended approval 8/1.  Staff's 
recommendation is to deny the request due to the request does 
not comply with the Future Land Use and Character Map; it 
does not comply with the Thoroughfare Plan; and Planned 
Development option combining commercial and multi-family. 
 
Mayor Jones declared the Public Hearing open with regards to 
agenda item 5 and asked if anyone wished to address this item.   
 
Mr. Jim Mohler, 3010 South General Bruce Drive, Temple 
stated he is the current owner of the property.  He stated this is 
a $15.2 million project; and will generate taxes for the City.  The 
property is not on the interstate and would be a good are for 
apartments.  The developer currently ownes the other 
complexes off of Ira Young Drive.  Mr. Mohler requested 
Council’s favorable consideration of this request.  
 

V. REGULAR AGENDA

5. 2012-4556: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-12-
58: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing a rezoning
from Heavy Industrial District (HI) to Multiple Family Two
District (MF-2) on 12.163 acres, being a part of land situated
in the Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 692, Bell
County, Texas, located at 3000 South General Bruce Drive. 

Page 9 of 13City Council

9/28/2012http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=467&doc_id=cc66f730-...



There being no further comments, Mayor Jones declared the 
Public Hearing closed.  
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Danny Dunn adopt ordinance, with 
second and final reading set for October 4, 2012.  seconded by 
Councilmember Perry Cloud. 
 

At this time Mayor Jones stated the Council would reconsider item #4
(J) on the Consent Agenda.  
 
(J)   2012-4553:   SECOND READING - Z-FY-12-56: Consider 
adopting an ordinance authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to 
allow an off-premise sign relocation closer than 1,500 feet from 
another off-premise sign at 5275 South General Bruce Drive.  
 

Mayor Jones stated this item was discussed at the meeting on 
September 4, 2012, and Mr. Patel requested it be tabled for 
further discussions between the parties.  The item was not table 
since it was the first reading leaving time for dialouge before the 
second and final reading.   
 
Ms. Speer stated no resolution between the parties in 
placement of the sign proposed by Mr. Naegele.  Mr. Patel is 
opposition of the sign and has received information from 
another sign company stating that the placement of this sign will 
detrimentally effect the visibiltiy of the Holiday Inn sign.   
 
Mr. Mat Naegele, Lamar Adverstising 5110 North General Bruce 
Drive, Temple, provided additional information to the Council 
related to visibility and distance from South I-35.  He stated the 
current Holiday Inn sign, as it is today,  is not visibile in time to 
exit the interstate.  Therefore the proposed sign will not block 
the view of Mr. Patel’s sign.  Mr. Naegele noted Lamar 
Advertising is a good neighbor and will continue to be so.  Mr. 
Naegele stated criteria needs to be determined for future CUPs 
that may be considered for linear approach.    
 
Mayor Pro Tem Dunn asked Mr. Naegele to clarify the timeline 
of this request for the CUP. 
 
Mr. Naegele stated this has been a process, with Planning and 
Zoning Commission as well as a first reading with Council. 
 
Mayor Jones asked Mr. Patel if he wished to address Council. 
 
Mr. Patel indicated no. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Dunn stated he appreciates the efforts of Lamar 

Page 10 of 13City Council

9/28/2012http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=467&doc_id=cc66f730-...



to comply with the time constraints of this case.  He also stated 
he did not want to table this item. 
 
Councilmember Cloud and Councilmember Morales agreed with 
Mayor Pro Tem Dunn, that they too were ready to proceed. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Perry Cloud reconsider the vote for 
item 4(J) as previously adopted.  seconded by Councilmember 
Judy Morales. 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Danny Dunn approve resolution 
 seconded by Councilmember Perry Cloud. 
 

 
Autumn Speer, Director of Community Services, presented this 
item to the Council. She stated the applicant is Russell T. 
Schneider on behalf of Kody Shed at 3408 and 3410 South 
Kegley Drive.  The applicant’s zone change from AG to GR 
District.  Ms. Speer stated the applicant has indicated this will be 
used for a boutique / retail establishment.  Ms. Speer provided 
visuals of the current property and surrounding areas.  
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as Auto-
Urban Commercial; therefore General Retail is appropriate for 
this area. This request is compliance with the Land Use and 
Character Map.  Ms. Speer provided Council with some of the 
uses allowed in GR District.  She also added that changing the 
use will require conformance with the following Development 
Standards, such as access and circulation; off-street 
parking; screening and buffering.  There were five notice mailed 
out; of which Staff received two in favor and none in opposition.  
There were also three courtesy notices mailed out, with one 
being returned in favor of the rezoning.  Planning and Zoning 
heard this case on September 4, 2012 and recommended 9/0 in 
favor.  Staff also recommends for approval of the request as 
presented.   
 
Mayor Jones declared the Public Hearing open with regards to 
agenda item 6 and asked if anyone wished to address this item. 
There being none, Mayor Jones declared the Public Hearing 
closed. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Judy Morales adopt ordinance, with 

6. 2012-4557: FIRST READING- PUBLIC HEARING- Z-FY-12-59:
Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing a rezoning
from Agricultural District (AG) to General Retail District
(GR) on 1.053 ±acres out of the Nancy Chance Survey,
Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, located at 3408 and
3410 South Kegley Road. 

Page 11 of 13City Council

9/28/2012http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=467&doc_id=cc66f730-...



second and final reading set for October 4, 2012.  seconded by 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Dunn. 
 

 
Denny Hainley, Benefits Specialist, presented this item to the 
Council. She reviewed Chapter 143 Local Government Code 
which regulates the staffing requirements for Civil Service.  Ms. 
Hainley stated there were three new firefighter positions and two 
additional police officer positions approved with the FY 2013 
budget. 
 
Mayor Jones declared the Public Hearing open with regards to 
agenda item 7 and asked if anyone wished to address this item. 
There being none, Mayor Jones declared the Public Hearing 
closed. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Perry Cloud adopt ordinance, with 
second and final reading set for October 4, 2012.  seconded by 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Dunn. 
 

RESOLUTIONS  
 

 
(A) Municipal Water Work Supply of Royse City $57,080.85;  
 
(B) HD Supply Waterworks of Belton $130,654.05;  
 
(C) Ferguson Waterworks of Killeen $188,442.05; and  
 
(D) ACT Pipe and Supply of Temple $117,705.03;  
 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing, presented this item to 
the Council. Ms. Mattke stated this is brought to the Council due 
to local preference option.  She stated the bids were opened on 
June 26, 2012 for 77 categories.  There were four bidders.  Staff 
is recommending the $493,882 annual purchase award be to 
the low bidders by category, Municipal Water Work Supply 
$57,080.85; HD Supply Waterworks $130,654.05; Ferguson 
Waterworks $188,442.05; and ACT Pipe and Supply 

7. 2012-4558: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING: Consider
adopting an ordinance setting the number of positions in
each classification for the Temple Fire Department and the
Temple Police Department. 

8. 2012-6765-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing
annual purchase agreements for utility supplies for FY 2013
with the following vendors in the estimated annual amount
of $493,881.98: 

Page 12 of 13City Council

9/28/2012http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=467&doc_id=cc66f730-...



$117,705.03.  ACT Pipe and Supply is requesting that they be 
deemed a ’local business’ under the City’s Local Preference 
Policy.  They declaration is that they pay Temple taxes; 
employees are local residents; and ACT stocks all material of 
this bid in Temple.  ACT is within 5% of the low bidder in 13 
categories of the bids received.  Ms. Mattke reviewed the Local 
Preference Policy adopted by Council. She also stated that if 
Counicl elects to award Local Preference as requested by ACT, 
there will be an additional cost of $6,390. 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Danny Dunn adopt resolution as 
presented by staff to award low bid.  seconded by 
Councilmember Judy Morales. 
 

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive 
(closed) session whenever permitted by the Texas Open Meetings Act.  
 

                                               

  

 
________________________ 
 
William A. Jones, III, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
____________________
 
Lacy Borgeson  
City Secretary  

 

Page 13 of 13City Council

9/28/2012http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=467&doc_id=cc66f730-...



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/04/12 

Item #5(B) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Jonathan Graham, City Attorney 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City to enter into seven lease 
agreements for agricultural properties owned by the City.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description.  
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City currently owns and leases seven properties for agricultural use. The 
current leases all end on December 31, 2012. As shown on the attached tabulation of proposals, on 
September 21, 2012, the City received six (6) proposals to lease the properties from January 1, 2013 
to December 31, 2013. Staff now seeks approval to enter into one-year lease agreements with the 
following individuals with the option to extend for four additional one-year periods, if agreeable to both 
parties.  
 

1. Lease with Albert Brenek of 40 acres of City owned land located to the west of Hilliard 
Road for $15 per acre per year. Total annual lease payment of $600. See attached 
“Exhibit A.”  

 
2. Lease with Edward Brenek, Jr. of 8.164 acres of City owned land located east of Wilson 

Park for $30 per acre per year. Total annual lease payment of $244.92.  See attached 
“Exhibit B.” 

 
3. Lease with Edward Brenek, Jr. of 39 acres of City owned land located on Little Flock 

Road for $51.00 per acre per year. Total annual lease payment of $1,989.  See 
attached “Exhibit C.” 

 
4. Lease with Billy J. Cowart and Ray Davis of 170 acres of City owned land located at 

Pegasus Drive and Moore’s Mill Road for $20.50 per acre per year. Total annual lease 
payment of $3,485.  See attached “Exhibit D.” 

 
 



 

10/04/12 
Item #5(B) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
5. Lease with Grisham Farms of 164 acres of City owned land located on Old Howard 

Road for $45.73 per acre per year. Total annual lease payment of $7,499.72.  See 
attached “Exhibit E.” 

 
6. Lease with Grisham Farms of 168 acres of City owned land located at the intersection 

of McLane Boulevard and Old Howard Road for $32.73 per acre per year. Total annual 
lease payment of $5,498.64.  See attached “Exhibit F.” 

 
7. Lease with Monique Rincones of 3.7 acres of City owned land located at the southeast 

corner of the Service Center property on East Avenue H for $50.00 per acre per year. 
Total annual lease payment of $185.  See attached “Exhibit G.” 

 
The City has leased property to all of these proposed tenants previously and finds them to be 
responsible lessees.   
 
The lease agreements allow for a 30 day termination clause should the lessee or the City desire to 
terminate the lease.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The annual lease revenue generated from these agreements will total 
$19,502.28 and will be paid in full at the beginning of the lease term.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Tabulation of Proposals Received 
Exhibits A-G of Leased Properties 
Resolution 
 

  



BIDDERS - rates per acre, per year
Cowart & Davis Albert Brenek Edward Brenek, Jr Tom Ray Monique Rincones Grisham Farms Current

Oglesby, TX Temple, TX Temple, TX Temple, TX Temple, TX Temple, TX Contracted Prices
Description

Exhibit A - 40 acres west of Hilliard Rd no bid $15.00 no bid no bid no bid no bid $12.00

Exhibit B - 8.164 acres east of Wilson Park no bid no bid $30.00 no bid no bid no bid $20.00

Exhibit C - 39 acres on Little Flock Rd no bid no bid $51.00 $20.00 no bid no bid $25.00

Exhibit D - 170 acres at Pegasus Dr & Moore's Mill Rd $20.50 no bid no bid no bid no bid no bid $16.47

Exhibit E - 164 acres on Old Howard & Pepper Creek Rd no bid no bid no bid no bid no bid $45.73 $12.00

Exhibit F - 168 acres at McLane Blvd & Old Howard Rd no bid no bid no bid no bid no bid $32.73 $11.34

Exhibit G - 3.7 acres on E Ave H, east of Service Ctr no bid no bid no bid no bid $50.00 no bid $10.00

Purpose Cattle,Livestock pasture - cattle grazing hay prod / cattle crazing cow/calf horse grazing farming & grazing cattle

Planholders
Ray Davis

I hereby certify that this is a correct and true tabulation of all bids received. Ed Brenek, Jr
Albert Brenek

Belinda Mattke 24-Jul-12 Wesley Hart

Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing Date Scott Hrbacek
Mark Welch
Greg Davis
Marvin Brenek
William E. Daniel
Douglas Fisher
Tara Land Co
Carl Grisham
Monique Rincones

Proposed
Exhibit New Lease FY 2012
A 600.00$                   480.00$                   
B 244.92$                   163.28$                   
C 1,989.00$                975.00$                   
D 3,485.00$                2,799.90$                
E 7,499.72$                1,968.00$                
F 5,498.64$                1,905.12$                
G 185.00$                  37.00$                    
Total Annual Rev 19,502.28$             8,328.30$               

Tabulation of Proposals Received
on September 21, 2012 at 10:00 a.m.

Multiple Agricultural Leases
Bid # 13-15-13

Highlighted proposal is recommended for award



STONEHOLLOW DR
KA

SB
ER

G 
DR

WE
ST

FIE
LD 

BL
VDWOODBURY DRFIELDSTONE DR

HILLIARD RD

REDBRUSH HONEYSUCKLE

N P
EA

 R
IDG

E R
D

AIR
PO

RT
 

TR
L

W ADAMS AVE

AIRPORT RD

PRAIRIE VIEW RD

LIG
HT

NE
R 

LN
BR

OO
KS

 D
R

RESEARCH LOOP

DISCLAIMER:
GIS products are for informational purposes and may not

have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  They do not represent an on-the-

ground survey and represent only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries and other features.

40 Acres of City-owned land
located to the west of Hilliard Rd .

1 inch = 1,000 feetCounty Property ID: 123751



SE 
H 

K 
DO

DG
EN 

LO
OP

E H AVE

N 
50

TH
 STE ADAMS AVE

BULLSEYE LN

N 
36

TH ST

CU
RT

IS 
B. 

EL
LIO

T D
R

DISCLAIMER:
GIS products are for informational purposes and may not

have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  They do not represent an on-the-

ground survey and represent only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries and other features.

8.164 Acres of City-owned land
located East of Wilson Park .

1 inch = 500 feetCounty Property ID: 21367



E H AVE

E ADAMS AVE

NE 
H 

K 
DO

DG
EN 

LO
OP

SE
 H

 K 
DO

DG
EN

 LO
OP

N 
50

TH 
ST

BULLSEYE LN

DAIRY RD

LA
ND

FIL
L R

D

FR
IEN

DS
HI

P L
N

DISCLAIMER:
GIS products are for informational purposes and may not

have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  They do not represent an on-the-

ground survey and represent only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries and other features.

39 Acres of City-owned land located
on E Ave H (formerly Little Flock Rd) .

1 inch = 1,000 feetCounty Property ID: 55861



HART RD BERGER RDPE
GA

SU
S D

R

BR
EW

ST
ER

 R
D

N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

MENDOZA CIR

GENE ST

MOORES MILL RD

KEVIN REILLY LN

DISCLAIMER:
GIS products are for informational purposes and may not

have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  They do not represent an on-the-

ground survey and represent only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries and other features.

170 Acres of City-owned land located
at Pegasus Drive & Moore's Mill Road .

1 inch = 1,000 feetCounty Property ID: 95028



MOUSER RD

OL
D HOWARD RD

CENTRAL POINTE PKWY

PEPPER CREEK RD

FIKES DRAI
RP

OR
T T

RL

DISCLAIMER:
GIS products are for informational purposes and may not

have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  They do not represent an on-the-

ground survey and represent only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries and other features.

164 Acres of City-owned land
located on Old Howard Road .

1 inch = 1,000 feetCounty Property ID: 46568, 354521



WE
ND

LA
ND

 R
D

NW H K DODGEN LOOPCENTRAL POINTE PKWY

MOUSER RD

CEDAR CREEK RD

OLD 
HOWARD RD

MCLANE 
PKWY

DISCLAIMER:
GIS products are for informational purposes and may not

have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  They do not represent an on-the-

ground survey and represent only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries and other features.

168 Acres of City-owned land located at the
intersection of McLane Blvd & Old Howard Rd .

1 inch = 1,000 feetCounty Property ID: 126439



E H AVE

SE 
H 

K 
DO

DG
EN 

LO
OP

E ADAMS AVE

BULLSEYE LN

LA
ND

FIL
L R

D

DISCLAIMER:
GIS products are for informational purposes and may not

have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  They do not represent an on-the-

ground survey and represent only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries and other features.

Approx location of 3.7 Acres of City-owned
land located at the SE corner of the Service

Center property on East Avenue H .
1 inch = 500 feetCounty Property ID: Part of 2204



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING SEVEN LEASES OF AGRICULTURAL 
PROPERTIES OF CITY-OWNED LAND; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 

Whereas, the City currently owns and leases seven properties for agricultural use – the 
current leases all expire on December 31, 2012; 

 
 Whereas, on September 21, 2012, the City received 6 proposals to lease the properties 
from January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013 and Staff recommends entering into a one-year lease 
with the following individuals with the option to extend for four additional one-year periods, if 
agreeable to both parties: 
 

1. Lease with Albert Brenek of 40 acres of City owned land located to the west of 
Hilliard Road for $15 per acre per year. Total annual lease payment of $600. See 
attached “Exhibit A;”  

 
2. Lease with Edward Brenek, Jr. of 8.164 acres of City owned land located east of 

Wilson Park for $30 per acre per year. Total annual lease payment of $244.92.  
See attached “Exhibit B;” 

 
3. Lease with Edward Brenek, Jr. of 39 acres of City owned land located on Little 

Flock Road for $51.00 per acre per year. Total annual lease payment of $1,989.  
See attached “Exhibit C;” 

 
4. Lease with Billy J. Cowart and Ray Davis of 170 acres of City owned land 

located at Pegasus Drive and Moore’s Mill Road for $20.50 per acre per year. 
Total annual lease payment of $3,485.  See attached “Exhibit D;” 

 
5. Lease with Grisham Farms of 164 acres of City owned land located on Old 

Howard Road for $45.73 per acre per year. Total annual lease payment of 
$7,499.72.  See attached “Exhibit E;” 

 
6. Lease with Grisham Farms of 168 acres of City owned land located at the 

intersection of McLane Boulevard and Old Howard Road for $32.73 per acre per 
year. Total annual lease payment of $5,498.64.  See attached “Exhibit F;”  

 
7. Lease with Monique Rincones of 3.7 acres of City owned land located at the 

southeast corner of the Service Center property on East Avenue H for $50.00 per 
acre per year. Total annual lease payment of $185.  See attached “Exhibit G;” 

 
Whereas, each of the lease agreements allow for a 30-day termination clause should the 

lessee or the City desire to terminate the lease - the City has previously leased property to all of 
these proposed tenants and finds them to be reasonable lessees 
 



2 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute seven 
leases of agricultural city-owned property, which are more fully described in Exhibit A, attached 
hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes, in a total combined lease revenue of $19,502.28 
per year.  

 
Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 4th day of October, 2012. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

       
WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/04/12 

Item #5(C) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Jonathan Graham, City Attorney 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a three year lease agreement with 
Belco Manufacturing Co., Inc. for lease of property owned by the City and located along a portion of 
the Georgetown Railroad.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description.  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Belco is located at 2303 Taylor’s Valley Road, Belton, Texas. A portion of a metal 
building located on Belco’s premises encroaches onto property owned by the City and located along 
a portion of the old Georgetown Railroad. Belco previously leased this land on which the building 
encroaches from Georgetown Railroad Company. Because the City now owns the land, Belco has 
asked that the City enter into a similar lease agreement. The land at issue is approximately .18 of an 
acre. The lease will be for three years with an annual rent payment of $5,000. Rent will be due on 
October 15th of each year.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The tenant will pay a yearly rent of $5,000. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
 

  



RESOLUTION NO. __________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A THREE YEAR LEASE WITH 
BELCO MANUFACTURING, CO., INC.; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, Belco Manufacturing Co., Inc. is located at 2303 Taylor’s Valley Road, 
Belton, Texas and a portion of a metal building located on Belco’s premises encroaches 
onto property owned by the City of Temple and located along a portion of the old 
Georgetown Railroad; 
 
 Whereas, Belco has asked that the City enter into a lease agreement for the 
approximately .18 acre tract of land;  
 
 Whereas, the lease will be for three years, with an annual rent payment of $5,000 
and due and payable on the 15th day of October of each year; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute 
a lease agreement between the City of Temple and Belco Manufacturing Co., Inc. for the 
lease of property located at 2303 Taylor’s Valley Road in the annual rent amount of 
$5,000. 
 
 Part 2:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 4th day of October, 2012. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/04/12 

Item #5(D)  
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1  
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
 
Jonathan Graham, City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City to enter into a contract 
with the Railroad and Pioneer Museum of Temple to terminate the prior agreement between the City 
and the Foundation. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
   
ITEM SUMMARY:  On May 20, 2010 the City and the Foundation executed the “Agreement between 
the City of Temple and the Railroad and Pioneer Museum of Temple, Texas” (“the Prior Agreement.”) 
Pursuant to the Prior Agreement, the Foundation has been operating the Railroad and Heritage 
Museum (“the Museum”) and leasing the Sante Fe Depot. The City and the Foundation now wish to 
terminate the Prior Agreement and the City will take over operation of the Museum. The entire 
collection and archives which constitute the Museum and which are owned by the City will be 
returned to the City. Any archives owned by the Foundation will be lent to the City to be used in the 
Museum. Additionally, the Foundation agrees to return to the City all funds previously provided to the 
Foundation by the City as Financial Support under Section 3.1 of the Prior Agreement.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
 

  



RESOLUTION NO. _____________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH THE RAILROAD AND 
PIONEER MUSEUM OF TEMPLE, TEXAS (“THE FOUNDATION”) TO 
TERMINATE THE PRIOR AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE AND THE FOUNDATION; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on May 20, 2010, the City of Temple and the Foundation executed the 
“agreement between the City of Temple and the Railroad and Pioneer Museum of Temple, 
Texas” (“the Prior Agreement”); 
 

Whereas, pursuant to the prior agreement, the Foundation has been operating the 
Railroad and Heritage Museum and leasing the Sante Fe Depot – the City and the Foundation 
now wish to terminate the prior agreement and the City will take over the operation of the 
Museum; 

 
Whereas, the entire collection and archives, which constitute the museum and which are 

owned by the City, will be returned to the City – any archives owned by the Foundation will be 
lent to the City to be used in the Museum 

 
Whereas, the Foundation agrees to return to the City all funds previously provided to the 

Foundation by the City as Financial Support under Section 3.1 of the prior agreement; and   
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to enter into a 
contract with the Railroad and Pioneer Museum of Temple, Texas and to terminate the prior 
agreement between dated May 20, 2010. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 4th day of October, 2012. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/04/12 

Item #5(E) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Director of Public Works 
Michael Newman, P.E., Assistant Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 
Legends Landscapes of Lexington LLC, for the South First Street Improvement Phase 2 project within 
the Temple Medical and Education District in an amount not to exceed $2,110,600. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Phase 1 of the South First Street Improvements (inside the curb along South 1st 
Street) is nearly completed. Phase 2 construction takes advantage of additional funding available by 
providing for enhanced pedestrian facilities and associated amenities along South 5th Street, Avenue 
U, and South 1st Street as shown on the attached map.  Pedestrian trails, landscaping, electrical 
services, a pedestrian hybrid beacon, and trail marker signage are some of the various project 
components included in this project. 
  
The bid summary for Phase 2 South First Street Improvements items of work are as follows: 
 

I. Pedestrian Trail    $ 1,080,515.00 
II. Landscaping     $    379,563.45 
III. Electrical     $    562,156.80 
IV. Pedestrian Hybrid Beacon   $      66,164.75 
V. Trail Marker Signage   $      22,200.00 

      $ 2,110,600.00 
 
Final construction award is contingent upon Texas Department of Transportation approval, which is 
anticipated to occur by the end of October.  On September 26th, the Reinvestment Zone Board voted 
to recommend this contract to the Council for authorization. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funds in the amount of $2,141,791 are available to fund this construction 
contract.  $392,631 is available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Finance and Project Plans, $142,816 
is available in City funds, and $1,606,344 is available in TxDOT grant funds. 
 
 
 



 

10/04/12 
Item #5(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation 
Bid Tabulation 
Project Map 
Resolution 
 

  

















RESOLUTION NO. _________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH LEGENDS 
LANDSCAPES, LLC OF LEXINGTON, TEXAS, FOR THE SOUTH FIRST 
STREET IMPROVEMENT PHASE II PROJECT WITHIN THE TEMPLE 
MEDICAL AND EDUCATION DISTRICT; IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $2,110,600; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, Phase 1 of the South First Street Improvements is nearly complete and Phase 2 
construction will take advantage of additional funding available by providing for enhanced 
pedestrian facilities and associated amenities along south 5th Street, Avenue U and south 1st 
Street; 
 
  Whereas, pedestrian trails, landscaping, electrical services, a pedestrian hybrid beacon, 
and trail marker signage are some of the various project components included in Phase 2; 
 
 Whereas, final construction award is contingent upon Texas Department of 
Transportation approval, which is anticipated to occur by the end of October, 2012;  
 
 Whereas, funds are available for this project in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing 
and Project Plans, and in the Texas Department of Transportation grant funds; and  
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
construction contract, not to exceed $2,110,600, with Legends Landscapes, LLC of Lexington, 
Texas, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, for the South First Street Improvement 
Phase 2 project within the Temple Medical and Education District. 
 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 4th day of October, 2012. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

      WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  
 

10/04/12 
Item #5(F) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Ashley Williams, Sustainability and Grant Manager 
Sam Weed, Superintendent of Fleet Services 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase and installation of 
eleven propane conversion kits from Philpott Motors of Port Neches utilizing a BuyBoard cooperative 
contract, in the amount of $99,499. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City applied for and received grant funding from the Clean Start Propane 
Refueling, Vehicle Incentive & Outreach Program through Texas State Technical College (TSTC) and 
its partners CleanFuel USA (CFUSA) and Public Solutions Group (PSG).  TSTC received funding 
from the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) to promote the use of alternative fuels to preserve the 
environment through its Clean Start program.  The City was notified in September 2012 that the City 
had been awarded the grant in the amount of $99,499, with no City match required. 
Under the program the City committed to convert eleven vehicles to propane autogas (liquefied 
propane gas, LPG).  Propane autogas is the best alternative fuel for medium duty vehicles.  Staff has 
identified the vehicles listed below: 
 
 

 

 

Department Year Model Engine 

Water (13520) 2012 F-150 5.4 L 

PALs (13293) 2011 F-150 5.4 L 

PALs (13294) 2011 F-150 5.0 L 

Engineering (13514) 2012 F-150 5.4 L 

Engineering (13516) 2012 F-150 5.4 L 

Metering (13513) 2012 F-150 5.4 L 

Streets (13511) 2012 F-150 5.4 L 

Streets (13519) 2012 F-150 5.4 L 

Solid Waste (13517) 2012 F-150 5.4 L 

Fleet (13292) 2011 F-150 5.4 L 

Police (TBD) 2012 Tahoe 5.3 L 



 

10/04/12 
Item #5(F) 

Consent Agenda  
Page 2 of 2 

These vehicles were chosen based on model year, current accumulated miles, use, and current 
conversion options available on the market.  Staff is proposing to utilize a system that converts the 
current gasoline fuel to a bi-fuel LPG system.  This option allows the engine to start up using 
gasoline, but thereafter switch to LPG for operation.  Gasoline will remain as a secondary back-up 
system, primarily operating on LPG.  With grant assistance the City can anticipate an annual savings 
between $2,500 and $3,000 per vehicle. 

The procurement and installation of the conversion kits is being recommended utilizing a BuyBoard 
cooperative contract.  All contracts available through the BuyBoard have been awarded by virtue of a 
public competitive procurement process compliant with State statutes.   

The cost per vehicle conversion kit is $9,045.36.  The total cost for converting the eleven vehicles 
equals $99,499. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding program guidelines provide for 100% reimbursable funding, in the amount 
of $99,499, no City match is required. A budget adjustment is presented for Council’s approval to 
appropriate the grant expenditure to 260-3800-519-62-13 and grant revenue to 260-0000-431-01-63 
in the amount of $99,499. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 

 
 
 
 

 

  



FY 2013
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER PROJECT # DECREASE

260-3800-519-62-13 100931
260-0000-431-01-63 99,499           

TOTAL………………………………………………………………………………………………… 99,499$         

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? X Yes No
DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? X Yes No

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
DisapprovedCity Manager Date

Department Head/Division Director Date

Finance Date

99,499$         

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased account are available.
To appropriate grant revenue and grant expenditures received from the Clean Start Propane Refueling, Vehicle Incentive & Outreach program through 
Texas State Technical College (TSTC) and its partners CleanFUEL USA and Public Solutions Group (PSG).  TSTC received funding from the U.S. 
Department of Energy (DOE) to promote the use of alternative fuels and reduce the carbon footprint to preserve the environment. The City will convert 
eleven fleet vehicles to liquefied petroleum (LPG), also known as propane autogas. The grant requires no City match. Total project costs are estimated 
at $99,499.

10/4/2012

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION INCREASE

Capital Equipment/Automotive 99,499$         

Federal Grants



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO.________________ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF 
ELEVEN PROPANE CONVERSION KITS FROM PHILPOTT MOTORS 
OF PORT NECHES, TEXAS, THROUGH THE BUYBOARD LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT ONLINE PURCHASING COOPERATIVE, IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $99,499; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, the City applied for and received grant funding from the Clean Start 
Propane Refueling, Vehicle Incentive & Outreach Program through Texas State 
Technical College and its partners, CleanFuel USA and Public Solutions Group; 

 
Whereas, Texas State Technical College received funding from the U.S. 

Department of Energy to promote the use of alternative fuels and reduce the carbon 
footprint to preserve the environment – the City was notified in September 2012 that it 
had been awarded a grant in the amount of $99,499 with no City match required; 

 
Whereas, under the program, the City committed to convert eleven vehicles to 

propane autogas which is the best alternative fuel for medium duty vehicles – the 
vehicles chosen were based on model year, current accumulated miles, use and current 
conversion options available on the market; 

 
Whereas, the procurement and installation of the conversion kits is being 

recommended utilizing the BuyBoard Local Government Online Purchasing 
Cooperative, at an approximate cost per vehicle of $9,045.36; 

 
Whereas, grant funds are available for this purchase with no required match 

from the City, however a budget adjustment to the  FY12-13 budget needs to be 
approved to appropriate the grant expenditure and grant revenue to the appropriate 
expenditure accounts; and  

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 

interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the purchase and installation of eleven 
propane conversion kits from Philpott Motors of Port Neches, Texas, through the  
 



2 
 

 
 
BuyBoard Local Government Online Purchasing Cooperative System, in the amount 
of $99,499. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council approves an amendment to the FY2012-13 budget, 
substantially in the form of the copy attached hereto, for this purchase. 
 
 Part 3: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to 
execute any documents, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, that may be 
necessary for this purchase. 
 
 Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 4th day of October, 2012. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/04/12 

Item #5(G) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Kim Foutz, Assistant City Manager 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Chapter 380 grant agreement 
with Temple Pro Ventures Commercial, LP for redevelopment improvements at 1401 South 1st Street 
in the South First Street Strategic Investment Zone corridor in an amount not to exceed $44,000. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: This agreement outlines the obligations and representations of Derek Martin 
representing Temple Pro Ventures Commercial, LP and also defines the City's incentive package.  
1401 South 1st Street is situated within the South 1st Street Strategic Investment Zone.   The site is 
currently known as used as the Surplus Warehouse building.  
 
City Council entered into an agreement with Temple Pro Ventures Commercial, LP on May 23, 2011 
for the purpose of constructing a new building and site improvements with an investment of 
$1,135,634. Since that time the grant recipient has completed the improvements outlined in their 
Chapter 380 Grant agreement, and their tenant, Surplus Warehouse has now opened for business at 
the new site. As noted in the City Council presentation at that time, they are now ready to proceed to 
Phase 2 which is redevelopment of the vacated building.   
 
The agreement and resolution will allow Temple Pro Ventures Commercial, LP to receive a Chapter 
380 grant of up to $15,000 for façade improvements; up to $10,000 for sidewalk improvements; up to 
$2,500 for sign improvements, up to $10,000 for landscaping, up to $4,000 asbestos related 
expenses, and up to $2,500 for demolition costs.  Temple Pro Ventures’ total estimated project 
investment for exterior finish, interior finish out, and site improvements is $ $319,000 with the City’s 
total cash match being up to $44,000.  Improvements must be completed by December 30, 2013.   
 
Please note that improvements are proposed to an existing building which was recently vacated.  The 
applicant is improving the property to attract a new tenant(s).  There are no tenants secured for this 
project at this time.  
 
 



 

 
10/04/12 

Item #5(G) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The total maximum grant by the City is $44,000. In the FY ‘12 budget, there is 
$116,892 in SIZ funds remaining which will be carried forward to the FY ’13 budget. In FY ’13 budget 
$100,000 was appropriated for Strategic Investment Zone matching grant incentives bringing the total 
funds available for FY ’13 and this grant $216,892 in account 110-1500-515-2695. After funding this 
grant a balance of $172,892 remains available for future incentive grants. Payment of the grant funds 
will not be made until work and inspections are completed, and receipts are received by the City. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Grant Agreement  
Location map 
Existing Façade, Proposed Façade, Building Layout 
Resolution 

 
 
 
 
 

 

  



1 
 

 South 1st Street Strategic Investment Zone 
Chapter 380 Development Agreement 

 
 
This Agreement is executed by and between the City of Temple, a home rule city 
in Bell County, Texas (hereinafter “the City”) and Temple Pro Ventures 
Commercial, LP (hereinafter “Owner”). 
 
City and Owner agree as follows: 
 
Section 1. Purpose.  Pursuant to authority granted to home rule cities under 
Chapter 380 of the Local Government Code and pursuant to a program established 
for the South 1st Street Strategic Investment Zone under City Ordinance Number 
2011-4504, the City and the Owner enter into this Agreement to promote 
economic development within the South 1st Street Strategic Investment Zone. As 
an inducement to Owner to make certain specified improvements to the property 
located at 1401 South 1st Street (hereinafter the “Property”), City and Owner agree 
to assume the responsibilities set forth below.  
 
Section 2. Obligations of Owner. Owner proposes to make certain improvements 
to the Property, which are described generally below and as attached, and to use 
the Property as an office/business after the Improvements are completed. Owner is 
seeking matching grants for certain types of additional improvements described in 
Section 3, and further agrees to complete all of the additional improvements 
described in the subparts of Section 3. 
 
Improvements, hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Improvements” include 
the following:  asbestos abatement, demolition and disposal, roof replacement, 
exterior painting, stone and stucco work, installation of new windows, landscaping 
and installation of sidewalk plan, complete rehabilitation of building interior and 
construction of a parking garage.  The total anticipated investment in the Property 
by Owner is $319,552.92.  Any match made by the City, as described in Section 3 
below, is limited to $44,000.  
 
Owner agrees to complete said Improvements on or before December 30, 2013. As 
a condition to receiving the matching grants from the City described in Section 3, 
Owner further agrees to complete the improvements described in each subpart of 
Section 3.  If Improvements are not completed on December 30, 2013, the City 
may administratively grant a onetime extension of time for 90 days. 
 



2 
 

Owner further agrees that all Improvements will meet the standards and 
requirements set forth in Article 6 of the Unified Development Code as they 
pertain to TMED. 
 
Section 3. Matching Grants by the City. The City agrees to provide matching 
grants to the Owner, subject to the maximum cap of $44,000, as described below 
if Owner satisfactorily completes and maintains the additional improvements 
described in each subpart below:  
 

(a) Façade Improvement Grant. The City will make a grant of up to 
$15,000 on a 1:1 matching basis for the replacement and repair of an 
existing façade with an eligible masonry product on the Improvements.  
Eligible masonry materials for a replacement façade under this 
subsection include brick, stone, stucco, EIFS, simulated stone block, 
and such other materials that the City may approve from time to time. A 
list of eligible materials for the South 1st Street Strategic Investment 
Zone is maintained in the Construction Safety Office, 1st Floor, the 
Municipal Building, 2 North Main Street.  Other façade improvement 
costs eligible for reimbursement with a façade improvement grant 
include demolition costs (including labor), landfill costs, and material 
and construction (including labor) costs, but specifically exclude design 
costs. 

 
A depiction of the Façade Improvements to be completed by Owner is 
attached as Exhibit “A.” 

  
(b) Sign. The City will make a grant of up to $2,500.00 on a 1:1 matching 

basis for sign construction and installation.   
 
(c) Sidewalk Improvement Grant. The City will make a grant of up to 

$10,000.00 on a 1:1 matching basis for the construction or replacement 
of new sidewalks, Sidewalk improvement costs eligible for 
reimbursement include demolition costs (where applicable) (including 
labor), landfill costs, and material and construction (including labor) 
costs and equipment rental, but specifically exclude design costs. 

 
(d) Asbestos Survey and Abatement.  The City will make a grant of up to 

$4,000 on a 1:1 matching basis for Owner-initiated asbestos survey of 
the Property. Asbestos survey grant eligible costs include professional 
fees, labor costs, and replacement materials. 

 
(e) Landscaping.  The City will make a grant of up to $10,000 on a 1:1 

matching basis for landscaping.  Landscaping improvement costs 
eligible for reimbursement with a landscaping improvement grant 



3 
 

include ground preparation costs (including labor), materials (trees, 
shrubs, soil and amendments thereto and other decorative hardscape 
such as arbors, art, large pots, and walls or fences) and material and 
construction (including labor) costs, curbed islands, but specifically 
exclude design costs. 

 
(f) Demolition Grant. The City will make a grant of up to $2,500 on a 1:1 

matching basis for demolition costs.  
 

Section 4. Acceptance of Improvements and Payment of Matching Grants. 
The City’s obligation to provide the matching grants described in Section 3 is 
conditioned upon the Owner completing the Improvements described in Section 2 
and the specific additional improvements described in the relevant subparts of 
Section 3. After the Improvements described in Section 2 and in the subparts of 
Section 3 are inspected and accepted by the City, the City will make payment to 
the Owner within 30 days of such acceptance and upon evidence of receipts for 
expenses. 
 
Section 5. Maintenance of Improvements. Owner, or its successors and assigns, 
agree to maintain the Improvements described in Section 2 and the subparts of 
Section 3 for a period of not less than five (5) years from the date matching grants 
are received from the City. 
 
Section 6. Assignment. Owner shall have the right to assign this Agreement as 
collateral for the financing of the construction of the Improvements, and in the 
event that Owner is unable to complete the project for any reason, its assignee 
shall have the right, but not the obligation to finish the project, and receive a 
contribution from the City in the amounts specified in this Agreement upon final 
inspection and acceptance of the Improvements by the City. 
 
Section 7. Availability of Records. Owner agrees to make its books and other 
records related to the construction of the Improvements available for inspection by 
the City during reasonable business hours. 
 
 
Executed on this the ____ day of ___________________, 2012. 
 
 
 
  



4 
 

City of Temple, Texas     Owner 
 
 
 
____________________________   ___________________________ 
David A. Blackburn     Derek Martin  
City Manager      Temple Pro Ventures    

     Commercial, LP 
 
 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________   ___________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson      City Attorney 
City Secretary       
 
 
 
 
 
  



5 
 

State of Texas  § 
 
County of Bell  § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of _____________, 
2012 by David A. Blackburn, City Manager, for the City of Temple, a Texas home 
rule City. 
 
______________________________ 
Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
State of Texas  § 
 
County of Bell  § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of _____________, 
2012 by _________________________________________. 
 
_______________________________ 
Notary Public 



Existing Building (Phase 2 this project) 

 

Location Map 

 









 1

 
RESOLUTION NO.   

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CHAPTER 380 DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TEMPLE AND TEMPLE PRO 
VENTURES COMMERCIAL, LP, FOR REDEVELOPMENT 
IMPROVEMENTS AT 1401 SOUTH 1ST STREET IN THE SOUTH FIRST 
STREET STRATEGIC INVESTMENT ZONE CORRIDOR; IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $44,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, this agreement outlines the obligation sand representations of Temple Pro 

Ventures Commercial, LP, and also defines the City’s incentive package for property located 
at 1401 south 1st Street, which is situated within the South 1st Street Strategic Investment 
Zone;  
 
 Whereas, the City Council entered into an agreement with Temple Pro Ventures 

Commercial, LP on May 23, 2011 for the purpose of constructing a new building and site 
improvements – since that time, the grant recipient has completed the improvement outlined 
in their agreement and are now ready to proceed to Phase 2; 
 

 Whereas, Temple Pro Ventures Commercial, LP estimate the total project investment 
for Phase 2 will be approximately $170,760.80, with the City’s total match being up to 
$44,000 – Phase 2 must be completed no later than September 30, 2013; 
 

Whereas, the Staff recommends entering into a Chapter 380 Development 
Agreement with Temple Pro Ventures Commercial, LP. for redevelopment purposes of the 
property located at 1401 south 1st Street which is located in the South 1st Street Strategic 
Investment Zone Corridor; and  

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 

interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
Chapter 380 Development Agreement with Temple Pro Ventures Commercial, LP, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, for redevelopment improvements of the property 
located at 1401 S. 1st Street, Temple, Texas, 76501, with the City’s matching grant being up 
to $44,000. 

 
Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



 2

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 4th day of October, 2012. 

 
 

       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  
 

10/04/12 
Item #5(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 8 

 
 
 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Autumn Speer, Director of Community Services 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING - Z-FY-12-58: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing a rezoning from Heavy Industrial District (HI) to Multiple Family Two District (MF-2) on 
12.163 acres, being a part of land situated in the Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 692, Bell 
County, Texas, located at 3000 South General Bruce Drive. 
 
P&Z COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its September 4, 2012 meeting, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted 8/1 to recommend approval of a zone change from Heavy Industrial 
District (HI) to Multiple Family Two District (MF-2).  Commissioner Rhoads voted in opposition to the 
applicant’s requested zone change. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt ordinance as presented in item description, on second and 
final reading. 
 
Staff recommends denial of the ordinance for Z-FY-12-58 for a zone change from HI to MF-2 for the 
following reasons:   
 

1. The request does not comply with the Future Land Use and Character Map; 
2. The request does not comply with the Thoroughfare Plan Map;  

 
Please note that staff is recommending this tract for PD zoning, with both multi-family and retail uses. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant requests this zone change to allow future development of an 
apartment complex.  The property’s current HI District does not allow apartments or any type of 
residential uses due to incompatibility between heavy industrial uses and residential uses.  A zone 
change from HI to MF-2 would allow the following uses, but is not limited to those listed:   
 

Residential uses     Nonresidential uses 
Single Family Attached    Hotel or Motel 
Single Family Detached     Fire Station 
Duplex      Park or Playground 
Apartment      Child Care/Day Care Center with a C.U.P. 

 Home for the Aged     Halfway House with a C.U.P. 



 

 
 

10/04/12 
Item #5(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 8 

 
 
 
 
Some uses prohibited in the MF-2 District include: restaurant, patio home, recreational vehicle park, 
HUD-Code manufactured home subdivision or land lease community, golf course, mini-storage 
warehouse, and food or beverage sales store, among others. 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table shows the subject property, existing 
zoning and current land uses: 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

Subject 
Property HI  Undeveloped 

 
North 
 

C Sammons Park 
Golf Course 



 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

South HI and C Undeveloped 
and Retail Uses 

 
East 
 

LI 

Residential, 
Commercial, 
and Industrial 
Uses 

 



 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

West C Undeveloped 

 
 
  



 

10/04/12 
Item #5(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 5 of 8  

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document 
Policy, Goal, Objective or 
Map 

Site Conditions Compliance?

CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use 
and Character 

The future land use and character map 
designates the entire property as Auto-Urban 
Commercial.  This designation is appropriate 
for the majority of areas identified for 
commercial use, generally concentrated at 
intersections versus strip development along 
the major road.  The minimum site area is 
commonly 10,000 square feet but may be 
larger for multi-tenant buildings and centers, 
such as the Bird Creek Crossing Shopping 
Center to the south. 

No 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare 
Plan  

The property’s only access is from West 
Avenue K, a narrow paved road without curb 
and gutter.  The Thoroughfare Plan 
designates West Avenue K as a local street. 
There is however, an opportunity to provide I-
35 access by re-evaluating Avenue K with 
future planning, which would yield 100,000 
traffic volume to support mixed use 
(commercial and multi-family combined) 
development. This approach would best 
facilitate redevelopment of this section of I-35. 
See staff analysis.. 

No 

CP 

Goal 4.1 - Growth and 
development patterns 
should be consistent with 
the City’s infrastructure and 
public service capacities. 

There is an 8-inch sewer line along the West 
Avenue K right-of-way.  A 24-inch sewer line 
runs through the west side of the property.  A 
6-inch sewer line borders the northwest 
corner of the property.   
A 27-inch water line runs along the West 
Avenue K right-of-way and along the 
applicant’s north property line.  A 2-inch water 
line runs along a portion of the West Avenue 
right-of-way.

Yes 

 
 
  



 

10/04/12 
Item #5(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 6 of 8  

 
 
 
Document Policy, Goal, Objective or 

Map Site Conditions Compliance? 

CP 

Land Use Policy 11 – 
Multi-family housing should 
be developed at a density 
and scale that is 
appropriate with the 
surrounding neighborhood 
and available utilities and 
roadway capacity.  Larger 
multi-family developments 
should be located on sites 
with adequate space for 
off-street parking, 
accessory structures, and 
recreational activity and 
toward the edge of single-
family residential areas 
where higher traffic 
generation and taller 
buildings heights can be 
better accommodated.   
 
Land Use Policy – 13 -  
Commercial developments 
should be concentrated in 
nodes at major 
intersections and other 
appropriate locations along 
highway frontages and 
primary roadways to 
maintain safe and efficient 
traffic flow on major roads.  

Land use policies 11 and 13 would permit an 
ideal mix at this location of both multi-family 
and commercial.  This location is suitable for 
multi-family development, however due to the 
limited amount of vacant retails/commercial 
property available on this central portion of 
the I-35 Corridor, this type of development 
should be partnered with retail/commercial 
mix closer to the I-35 frontage.   
 
 

Partially 

CP 

Economic Development 
Goal 7.2 – Tax base 
enhancement and the 
revitalization of 
Downtown….The City 
should promote the 
redevelopment of strategic 
sites that are appropriate 
for retail operations. 

Utilizing this strategically placed property 
entirely for multi-family residential uses, 
forgoes a large opportunity to provide an 
adequate supply of retail sites, especially in 
light of the I-35 expansion and 
redevelopment..   

NO 

STP Trails Master Plan Map The Sidewalk and Trails Plan calls for local 
connectors in this area. N/A 

* = See Comments Below     CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
  

  



 

10/04/12 
Item #5(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 7 of 8 

 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The Multiple Family Two District (MF-2) permits more modest 
sized dwelling units and an increased number of units within the multiple-family complex, allowing 
approximately 20 units per acre in buildings three to four stories in height.  If fully developed, a 
maximum of 240 units could be developed.  The MF-2 District should be designed for a higher density 
use of the land with amenities and facilities such as major thoroughfares, parks, transit and utilities 
close by and adequate for the volume of use. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS: The Choices ‘08 Plan states Temple leaks approximately $490 million annually 
in retail spending. Key planning considerations for the enhancement of retail, dining and 
entertainment amenities as addressed by Goal 7.2 includes “expanding retail sales in Temple”.     
 
It is important to provide an adequate mix of uses in the city, including retail. This is especially 
important in the I-35 corridor which boasts a 100,000 daily vehicle count. The I-35 Corridor is one of, 
if not the most important corridor for retail growth potential in the City.  There are approximately 1,400 
acres of land within 500’ of I-35.  Of this total 33% or 460 acres are undeveloped.  Approximately 82 
tracts comprise this developable land with only 15 being over 10 acres in size, such as the site in 
question.  For reference Bird Creek is approximately 46 acres. 
 
The row acquisition will primarily affect the west side of I-35 and directly affects this sites proximity to 
I-35 frontage roads.  Only a small portion of remainder property will remain between this property and 
the I-35 frontage roads.  Avenue K will also remain in some capacity.    
 
The requested zone change from HI to MF-2 is not an unreasonable request.  This location is suitable 
for multi-family development, however due to the limited amount of vacant retail/commercial property 
available on this central portion of the I-35 Corridor, any type of multi-family development should be 
partnered with retail/commercial mix closer to the I-35 frontage. Good planning principles tell us that 
zoning should be used to provide a gradual transition from less intense uses, to more intense uses. 
This is often called "buffering" one land use from another.  In this case, providing a mixed use 
development would accomplish this goal by transitioning from a retail use to a less intense use of 
multi-family in the rear. Land use policies 11 and 13 would promote an ideal mix at this location of 
both multi-family and commercial.   
 
Based on the limited supply of retail opportunities, the site’s key location, proximity to other 
regional retail, traffic volume, opportunity for buffering, potential for additional land directly 
adjacent to I-35 and potential abandonment of a substandard roadway; the best approach  for 
this location would be mixed use zoning.   Multi-family development could be included in the 
rear portion of the property to better take advantage of the golf club views and accessibility, 
and retail development could be incorporated in front of or in combination with the multi-
family..  Staff would support a Planned Development for this mixed use type of development.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

10/04/12 
Item #5(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 8 of 8 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Thirteen notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent 
out to property owners within 200 feet of the property in question, as required by State law and City 
Ordinance.  As of Monday, September 10, 2012, at 10:30 AM, one notice was returned in favor of the 
request and none were returned in opposition to the request.   
 
The newspaper printed notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing on August 24, 
2012, in accordance with state law and local ordinance. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Aerial & Zoning Map        
Land Use and Character Map    
Utility &Thoroughfare Plan Map    
Notice Map     
P&Z Excerpts 
Ordinance 
 

  



91
6

80
0

2917

12
06

3450

2914

2914

3000

2920

2915

3215 13
01

12
01

12
17

2815
2903

3001
3207

2820
2904

2912

3014
3126

10
18

LIC

C

HI C

HI

GR
C

LI

LI

SF-1

C

C C

LI
¬«1 ¬«1

1
9

4
5

2
1

1

1 3

1
2

4

2

1 92
1

54 321

6
5

3 2

1

6
54

2
1

987654321

321

1

181716
15

14

141311

10348-B

342-I342-L

342-B

342-J

441-B

342-H

348-A

342-E

343-A
344-A

342-A 342-D342-E

360-H
359-B
360-E

361-A

361C-B

BIRD CREEK CROSSING

MAC HAIK

HILLSIDE
MAREK COMMERCIAL

BUTTERKRUST

WESTERN HILLS 4TH EXT.

S INTERSTATE 35 S GENERAL BRUCE DR

Z-FY-12-58 HI to  MF-2 3000 South General Bruce Drive

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
Case Z-FY-12-58 Zoning

Subdivision
Outblock Number
Address

Block Number
Lot Number



2917
3450

2914

2914

3000

2920

2915

12
01

12
172903

3001
3207

2828
2906

3014
3126

10
18

¬«1 ¬«1

¬«1
¬«13

4
5

2

1

3

1
2

2
1

65

2

1
987654321

321

1413121110

348-B

342-L

342-B

441-A

441-B

342-H

348-A

342-E

343-A
344-A

342-A 342-D342-E

361-A

361C-B

BIRD CREEK CROSSING HILLSIDE

MAC HAIK

WILSON ART INDUSTRIAL SECTION I

MAREK COMMERCIAL

BUTTERKRUST

S GENERAL BRUCE DR

Z-FY-12-58 HI to  MF-2 3000 South General Bruce Drive

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µFuture Land Use
Neighborhood Conservation
Estate Residential
Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential
Auto-Urban Multi-Family
Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial
Suburban Commercial
Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District
Industrial
Business Park

Public Institutional
Parks & Open Space
Agricultural/Rural



G
G

G G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

G

GG

G

G

G
G G

G

G

G
GG

G

G

G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

GG

G

G

G
G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

24
"

6" 8"

21"10
"

10"

8"

8"

8"

6"

6"

8"
8"

6"

6"

8"

10
"

27"

8"

2"

18"

12"

6"

18"

12"

12
"

6"

8" 3450

3000

2920

2915

13
03

2907

2828
2906

3014¬«1
4

5

2

1 1
2

21
65

32

1
987654321

3
2

1

14
13

1211
10

348-B

342-L

342-B

441-A

441-B

342-H

348-A

342-E

343-A
344-A

345-A

342-A 342-D
342-E

361-A

354-A

BIRD CREEK CROSSING

MAC HAIK

HILLSIDE

MAREK COMMERCIAL

BUTTERKRUST

Z-FY-12-58 HI to  MF-2 3000 South General Bruce Drive

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
Case Z-FY-12-58

G Fire Hydrant
Sewer Line

Water Line
Expressway
Major Arterial

Proposed Major Arterial
Proposed K-TUTS
Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor Arterial
Collector
Conceptual Collector



2917
3450

2914

2914

3000

2920

2915

12
01

12
172903

3001
3207

2828
2906

3014
3126

10
18

¬«1 ¬«1
¬«1
¬«13

4
5

2

1

3

1
2

2
1

65

2

1
987654321

321

1413121110

348-B

342-B

441-A

441-B

342-H

348-A

342-E

343-A
344-A

342-A 342-D342-E

361-A

361C-B

BIRD CREEK CROSSING HILLSIDE

MAC HAIK

WILSON ART INDUSTRIAL SECTION I

MAREK COMMERCIAL

BUTTERKRUST

S GENERAL BRUCE DR

Z-FY-12-58 HI to  MF-2 3000 South General Bruce Drive

¬«1
GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1

Case
200' Buffer
Subdivision

Outblock Number
Address

Block Number
Lot Number 0 50 100

Feet
8/15/2012
City of Temple GIS
tlyerly



EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 4, 2012 
 
ACTION ITEMS 

Item 5: Z-FY-12-58: Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on a zone 
change from Heavy Industrial District (HI) to Multiple Family Two District (MF-2) on 
12.163 ± acres, being a part of land situated in the Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract 
No. 692, Bell County, Texas, located at 3000 South General Bruce Drive. 

Ms. Tammy Lyerly, Planner, stated the applicant requests the zone change for future 
apartment uses since Heavy industrial district does not allow any type of residential uses. The 
subject property is located closed to the north edge of Bird Creek Crossing and General Bruce 
Drive. The only access to the subject property is from Avenue K. 

Surrounding properties include undeveloped land to the south, multiple uses to the east which 
include residential, commercial, and industrial uses; Sammons Park Golf Course to the north, 
and undeveloped land to the west. The MF-2 zone change would allow the following uses, but 
not limited to, single family attached, single family detached, duplexes, home for the aged and 
apartments. Nonresidential uses would allow some things such as a motel/hotel, fire station, 
park with playground, and child care/day care center (requires a CUP).  Prohibited uses in MF-
2 include, but not limited to, a restaurant, patio home, recreational vehicle park, HUD Code 
manufactured home subdivision or land use community, golf course, mini-storage warehouse, 
and food or beverage sales. 

Multifamily-Two District allows modest sized dwelling units and increased number of units 
within a multi-family complex, allowing approximately 20 units per acre, three to four stories in 
height.  This property would allow a maximum of 340 units. 

The Future Land Use and Character Map designate this property for Auto Urban-Commercial 
which residential uses would not be in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

There are utilities in the area to serve the property. 

The Thoroughfare Plan shows Avenue K as a local street. 

Thirteen notices were mailed out and one was received in favor of the request, zero was 
received in opposition. 

Staff recommends denial of this request because the request does not agree with the Future 
Land Use and Character Map, does not agree with the Thoroughfare Plan since Avenue K is a 
local street and not developed with curb and gutter; and the incompatibility between 
surrounding light and heavy industrial uses and potential residential uses brought in. 

Commissioner Talley asked if the applicant talked to Staff about the willingness to widen 
Avenue K due to the inability to handle a lot of traffic.  Ms. Lyerly stated no, this was not 
discussed, but the applicant was given Staff’s recommendation of denial based on the 



Comprehensive Plan.  Widening of a street is normally discussed in detail during the platting 
process and development issues. 

Vice-Chair Staats asked what the right-of-way width was for Avenue K and Ms. Lyerly stated 
the right-of-way width for a local street is approximately 50 feet wide.  

Commissioner Rhoads asked how many businesses in front of Avenue K would be removed 
and Ms. Lyerly stated it would be 150 feet deep.   

Vice-Chair Staats asked how long the land had been vacant and Ms. Lyerly stated there were 
no signs of previous development.  Vice-Chair Staats stated his concern was protecting the 
creek from runoff. 

Chair Martin opened the public hearing. 

Mr. Reuben Marek, 509 Kasberg Drive, Temple, Texas, stated he represented the buyer and 
seller’s property.  They would like to build a 180-200 unit apartment complex on this property in 
the amount of approximately $20 million and a contract is currently pending.  Would like to see 
the property rezoned to go forward with the project. 

Avenue K will be a dead end street after the I35 expansion. It will provide ample entrance to 
the property.  The adjoining property will have frontage off of I35 and, to his knowledge, there 
are no plans for any retail growth there. The subject property overlooks the golf course and 
would bring $20 million to the City of Temple.  If this project does not go through, the property 
will remain undeveloped as it has always been. 

The widening of Avenue K has not been discussed, but Mr. Marek felt the parties involved 
would do what it takes to help the project.   

Mr. Marek passed out copies of prospective plans for the Commissioners.  No site plan is 
currently available for the site since the applicant is waiting for the zoning to be approved. 

Mr. Marek stated the traffic would be rather light on Avenue K since it would accommodate so 
few businesses. 

Commissioner Sears stated he likd the idea of utilizing the golf course view and vice versa. 

Commissioner Magaña asked what type of apartments would be built on the property and Mr. 
Marek stated high end, luxury apartments, similar to Chappell Hills/Chappell Oaks, overlooking 
the golf course. 

There being no further speakers, Chair Martin closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Rhoads stated there were several unanswered questions in his mind and Staff 
seemed to want to keep things in alignment but also understood Mr. Marek’s position. 
Commissioner Rhoads stated he would like to see nice apartments with retail in front of them, 
but understood why Staff recommended denial due to the Comprehensive Plan. 

Commissioner Magaña stated he would like to see the area developed and believed it would 
add to the type of smaller businesses that would eventually come to the area. 



Commissioner Talley agreed, however, he did not want to set a new precedent against the 
codes and rules already established.   

Commissioner Rhoads stated he would like to see a site plan to know how this would go. 

Ms. Lyerly stated a site plan would usually be included only if the zoning were for a Planned 
Development.  Ms. Lyerly also stated any type of zone change request would need to comply 
with the Comprehensive Plan. If it does not, Staff will always endorse the Comprehensive 
Plan. 

Vice-Chair Staats stated someone was willing to invest into the community and would probably 
be a better environmental situation for the creek if the integrity were maintained. He felt it 
would add value to the properties and the golf course. 

Chair Martin stated he felt this project would go great with the surrounding development, bring 
in tax dollars and enhance Temple overall. 

Commissioner Jones stated they were aware of the developer and their product, and they are 
willing to work on Avenue K. Commissioner Jones was in agreement with the other 
Commissioners. 

Commissioner Magaña made a motion to approve Item 5, Z-FY-12-58, and Commissioner 
Sears made a second. 

Motion passed:  (8:1) 
Commissioner Rhoads voted nay 



 1

 ORDINANCE NO.__________________ 
  

[PLANNING NO. Z-FY-12-58] 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A REZONING FROM HEAVY INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT (HI) TO MULTIPLE FAMILY TWO DISTRICT (MF-2), ON 
APPROXIMATELY 12.163 ACRES OUT OF THE REDDING ROBERTS 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 692, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, LOCATED AT 
3000 SOUTH GENERAL BRUCE DRIVE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

     
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a zoning change from Heavy Industrial District (HI) to 

Multiple Family Two District (MF-2) on a tract of land consisting of approximately 12.163 acres 
located at 3000 South General Bruce Drive, more fully described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary changes to 
the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any 
such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly 
so ordained. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 20th day of 
September, 2012. 

 



 2

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 2nd day of October, 2012. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
 

               
WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

  
 
            

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 
 

10/04/12 
Item #5(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 5 

 
DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Autumn Speer, Director of Community Services 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING - Z-FY-12-59: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural District (AG) to General Retail District (GR) on 1.053 ±acres 
out of the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, located at 3408 and 3410 South 
Kegley Road.  
 
P&Z COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION At its meeting on September 4, 2012, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted 9/0 in accordance with the Staff recommendation to recommend approval 
of a zone change from Agricultural District (AG) to General Retail District (GR).   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt ordinance as presented in item description, on second and 
final reading. 
 
Staff recommends approval of a rezoning from AG to GR for the following reasons: 
 

1. The request complies with the Future Land Use and Character Map; 
2. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; and 
3. Public and private facilities are available to serve the property. 

 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The applicant requests this rezoning to General Retail District to utilize the existing 
residential structure as a retail boutique.  
 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table shows the subject property, existing 
zoning and current land uses: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Direction Zoning 
Current 

Land Use Photo 

Subject 
Property AG Residential 

 
 
 

North  AG Package 
Shipping 

South 
Across 
Charter 
Oak 

C 

Automobile 
Service and 
Sales/ 
Storage 
Facility 

 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current 

Land Use Photo 



 

Direction Zoning 
Current 

Land Use Photo 

East 
(East 
across 
Kegley 
Rd.) 

AG Light 
Industrial  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
East  
(East 
across 
Charter 
Oaks and 
Kegley 
Rd.) 

C Gas Station  

 

West 
(Outside 
City 
Limits) 

-  Undeveloped 
Residential  

 
 



 

10/04/12 
Item #5(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 4 of 5 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 
Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Site Conditions Compliance

CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and 
Character (FLUP) 

The subject property has been identified as Auto- 
Urban Commercial which calls for commercial 
uses that serve large areas.

Y 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  
The subject property is situated on the corner of 
South Kegley Road and Charter Oak – both built 
as Collector Streets. Proposed access will be 
from South Kegley Road.

Y 

CP 

Goal 4.1 - Growth and 
development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s 
infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

The subject property is served by an 8” water 
line. A 6” wastewater line is accessible across 
South Kegley Road.  Y 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map & 
sidewalks 

The plan has identified a proposed community–
wide connector along the east side of Kegley 
Road not affecting this project.

Y 

 CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: According to the City of Temple Comprehensive Plan, an Auto–
Urban Commercial future land use designation is appropriate for commercial use generally 
concentrated at intersections (vs. strip centers along major roads). The General Retail District is the 
standard retail zoning district and allows most commercial uses intended to serve larger service areas 
and not just neighborhoods. Allowed uses include but are not limited to: 
 

• Retail sales,  
• Restaurants, 
• Grocery Stores, 
• Departments Stores, 
• Offices, and 
• Residential uses but not multi-family.  

 
Light to heavy industrial are generally prohibited in this district. Prohibited uses include but are not 
limited to:  
 

• Building Material Sales, 
• Cleaning, dyeing, or laundry plat, 
• Laboratory manufacturing, 
• Heavy machinery, sales, storage, repair, and 
• Storage warehouses. 

 
The subject property is located at the intersection of South Kegley Road and Charter Oak Drive both 
built as Collector Streets. Charter Oak has been identified as a proposed future Minor Arterial on the 
Thoroughfare Plan. Sufficient capacity exists for the proposed use. 



 

10/04/12 
Item #5(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 5 of 5 

 Dimensional standards are as follows: 

The existing structure meets all the dimensional requirements for the proposed General Retail District 
zoning. 
 
Due to the proposed change in use from residential to commercial, the property will need to be 
brought into compliance with specific codes, including but not limited to parking, landscaping, 
access/circulation, and signage.  

 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Five notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent out 
to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City 
Ordinance. Three courtesy notices were sent to property owners outside the city limits within 200-feet 
of the subject property. As of Monday September 10, 2012, two notices and one courtesy notice 
(outside the City limits) were returned in support of the proposed change of zoning. The City has 
received no notices in opposition to the proposed change of zoning. 
 
The newspaper printed notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing on August 24, 
2012, in accordance with state law and local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Aerial, Zoning, and Location Map 
Future Land Use and Character Map    
200’ Notification Buffer Map    
Thoroughfare, Trails Plan /Utility Map 
Notices Returned 
P&Z Excerpts 
Ordinance 



34
10

34
08

33
04

3570
34

04

34
03

5520
C

AG

¬«1
1

525-A

2706-A2705-A

2704-A

2701-A
S KEGLEY RD

CHARTER OAK DR

KE
GL

EY
 LN

Z-FY-12-59 3408 & 3410 
S. Kegley Road

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
Case Zoning Temple_Boundary

0 100 200

Feet

Z-FY-12-59
AG to GR



34
10

34
08

33
04

3570
34

04

34
03

5520
C

AG

S KEGLEY RD

CHARTER OAK DR

KE
GL

EY
 LN

Z-FY-12-59 3408 & 3410 
S. Kegley Road

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
Case Temple_Boundary

Zoning

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial
0 100 200

Feet

Future Land Use and Character

Z-FY-12-59



34
10

34
08

33
04

3570
34

04

34
03

5520
C

AG

¬«1
1

525-A

2706-A2705-A

2704-A

2701-A

S KEGLEY RD

CHARTER OAK DR

KE
GL

EY
 LN

Z-FY-12-59 3408 & 3410 
S. Kegley Road

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
Case

Zoning

Address

Temple_Boundary

200' Buffer
0 100 200

Feet

200'  Buffer Map



G

G

G G

G
G

GG

G G

G

8"
6"

8"

8"

8"

ComW_Conn

30"

18"

6"

12"

8"

6"

8"
8"

6"

8"

6"

6"

12
"

8"

6"

S KEGLEY RD

CHARTER OAK DR

KE
GL

EY
 LN

Z-FY-12-59 3408 & 3410 
S. Kegley Road

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
Sewer Line
Water Line

Minor Arterial
Proposed Collector
Proposed Minor Arterial

G Fire Hydrant
Temple_Boundary 0 100 200

Feet

Z-FY-12-59
Thoroughfare, Trails, and Utility Map

Z-FY-12-59









EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 4, 2012 
 
ACTION ITEMS 

Item 6: Z-FY-12-59: Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on a zone 
change from Agricultural District (AG) to General Retail District (GR) on 1.053 ± acres 
out of the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No 5, Bell County, Texas, located at 3408 
and 3410 South Kegley Road. 

Ms. Zendt stated the subject property was located at the intersection of Kegley Road and 
Charter Oak Drive, adjacent to the railroad, and just inside the city limits. The property is zoned 
AG and the current use is residential.  The requested zoning is GR and the proposed use 
would be a retail boutique. Surrounding properties are zoned Commercial (C) and AG. 

The Future Land Use and Character Map designate the area as Auto Urban-Commercial and 
the request would comply.  AG does not allow retail sales or services. 

A change of Use will require conformance with the following standards: 
Access and Circulation Sec. 7.2 
Off-Street Parking and Loading 7.4 
Screening and Buffering Sec. 7.6 

South Kegley Road and Charter Oak Drive are both designated as Collector Streets and are 
adequate for the proposed use. Access will be along South Kegley Road. 

Public and private facilities are extended to the site and appear adequate for the proposed 
use. There is a six-inch water line and six-inch sewer line available to serve the property. 

Five notices were mailed out with one courtesy notice returned in favor of the request. Zero 
were returned in opposition. 

Staff recommends approval of the change of zoning from AG to GR for the following reasons: 

The request complies with the Future Land Use and Character Map; 

The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; and  

A combination of public and private facilities will be available to subject property. 

Chair Martin opened the public hearing.  There being no speakers, the public hearing was 
closed. 

Commissioner Talley made a motion to approve Item 6, Z-FY-12-59, and Commissioner Sears 
made a second. 

Motion passed:  (9:0) 



1 
 

  
ORDINANCE NO. ____________________ 

 
[PLANNING NO. Z-FY-12-59] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURE DISTRICT 
(AG) TO GENERAL RETAIL DISTRICT (GR) ON APPROXIMATELY 
1.053 ACRES OUT OF THE NANCY CHANCE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 
5, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, LOCATED AT 3408 AND 3410 SOUTH 
KEGLEY ROAD; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agriculture District (AG) to 

General Retail District (GR) on approximately 1.052 acres out of the Nancy Chance Survey, 
Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, located at 3408 and 3410 South Kegley Road, more 
fully described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid 
by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall 
not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this 
ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 20th day of 
September, 2012. 
 

  



2 
 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 4th day of October, 2012. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
        ___________________________ 

WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
                       
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/04/12 

Item #5(J) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Randy A. Stoneroad, Director of Human Resources/Civil Service 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance setting the number of 
positions in each classification for the Temple Fire Department and the Temple Police Department. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt ordinance as presented in item description, on second and final 
reading. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Chapter 143 of the Local Government Code requires that the Council establish, by 
ordinance, the number of positions in each classification for the Fire Department and the Police 
Department.  
 FY 2013 budget includes staffing an additional three (3) Firefighters for for overtime relief within the 
Fire Department.  To accommodate this change, Council must authorize three additional Firefighter 
positions to be added to the ordinance. 
 
 FY 2013 budget includes staffing an additional two (2) police officers to enhance the Criminal 
Investigation Division. To accommodate this change, Council must authorize two additional Police 
officer positions to be added to the ordinance. 
 
All of these changes will be effective as of October 1, 2012. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding in the amount of $172,932 is included in the FY 2013 Budget for the 
three new Firefighter positions.  Of this amount, $147,639 is for salary and benefits and $25,293 is for 
other items related to hiring such as equipment and uniforms.  Funding in the amount of $175,035 is 
included in the FY 2013 Budget for the two new Police Officer positions.  Of this amount, $108,793 is 
to fund salary and benefits and $66,242 is for other items related to hiring such as vehicles, 
equipment and uniforms.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Ordinance 
 



 

1

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2012-4558 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, SETTING THE NUMBER OF POSITIONS IN EACH CIVIL 
SERVICE CLASSIFICATIONS’ FOR THE TEMPLE FIRE AND RESCUE 
DEPARTMENT AND THE TEMPLE POLICE DEPARTMENT; PROVIDING 
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

 
  

Whereas, Chapter 143 of the Local Government Code requires that the City Council 
establish, by ordinance, the number of positions in each classification for the Temple Fire and 
Rescue Department and the Temple Police Department;  
 
 Whereas, the FY2013 budget includes staffing an additional three (3) firefighters for 
overtime relief within the Fire Department, and to accommodate this change, Council must 
authorize three (3) additional firefighter positions to be added to the Ordinance; 
 
 Whereas, the FY2013 budget includes staffing an additional two (2) police officers to 
enhance the Criminal Investigation Division of the Temple Police Department, and to 
accommodate this change, Council must authorize two (2) additional police officer positions 
to be added to the Ordinance;  
 

Whereas, funding has been appropriated in the FY 2013 budget for three new 
firefighter positions and two new police officer positions; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered these matters and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize these actions. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council authorizes the staffing of three (3) additional firefighters for 
overtime relief within the Fire Department, and the staffing of two (2) additional police 
officers to enhance the Criminal Investigation Division of the Temple Police Department. 
 

Part 2: To accommodate these changes, Council authorizes three (3) additional 
firefighter positions and two (2) additional police officer positions be added to the Ordinance, 
as outlined in the FY2013 budget. 
   
 Part 3: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or  
 
 



 

2

 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
 Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect October 4, 2012. 
 
 Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 20th day of 
September, 2012. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 4th day of October, 2012. 
 

 
  THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              
       WILLIAM A. JONES, III, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 

sh 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/04/12 

Item #5(K) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
Ken Cicora, Director of Parks & Leisure Services 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the use of the Construction 
Manager-at-Risk project delivery method for the acquisition of services needed to remodel 
approximately 5,000 sq ft in the Municipal Building. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: On September 6, 2012, Council authorized the use of the Design-Build project 
delivery method for the acquisition of services needed to remodel approximately 5,000 sf in the 
Municipal Building.  Based on feedback received from construction contractors, it has come to staff’s 
attention that this delivery method may have restricted competition due to the limited number of 
design professionals in the Temple area.   
 
As such, it is staff’s recommendation to modify the project delivery method from Design-Build to 
Construction Manager-at-Risk (CMAR).  The CMAR method will still allow for hands on design and 
construction work due to the age and makeup of the building.  However, the City would engage the 
architect versus the contractor.  The City is currently negotiating a contract with Architectural Edge of 
Temple for the design services, of which, the contract is expected to be less than $25,000.   
 
The anticipated timeline for the project is as follows with a completion date still in April, 2013: 
 

October, 2012            - City to solicit proposals from CMAR firms 
November, 2012        - Evaluation of proposals  
December 6, 2012     - CMAR firm recommendation to Council   
January, 2013        - Gross Maximum Price (GMP) contract recommendation to Council 
April, 2013                  - Project complete 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  There is no defined fiscal impact associated with this Item.  It is anticipated that it 
will cost $200,000 to $250,000 to complete this project, which will be funded with project savings from 
the 2008 Certificate of Obligation bond issue.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution   



RESOLUTION NO. _____________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE USE OF THE CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGER-AT-RISK PROCUREMENT DELIVERY METHOD FOR THE 
ACQUISITION OF SERVICES NEEDED TO REMODEL 
APPROXIMATELY 5,000 SQUARE FEET IN THE MUNICIPAL 
BUILDING; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on September 6, 2012, City Council authorized the use of the Design-Build 
project delivery method for the acquisition of services needed to remodel approximately 
5,000 square feet in the Municipal Building; 
 
 Whereas, based on feedback received from construction contractors, it has come to 
staff’s attention that this delivery method may have restricted competition due to the limited 
number of design professionals in the Temple area; 
 
 Whereas, it is staff’s recommendation to modify the project delivery method form 
Design-Build to Construction Manager-At-Risk which will allow for hands on design and 
construction work due to the age and make-up of the building; 
 
 Whereas, § 252.021 of the Local Government Code provides that a governing body 
of a municipality may consider using a method other than competitive sealed bidding in 
order to achieve the best value for the municipality; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the use of the Construction Manager-At-Risk 
procurement delivery method for the acquisition of services needed to remodel 
approximately 5,000 square feet in the Municipal Building. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 4th day of October, 2012. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

    WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/04/12 

Item #5(L) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Brynn Myers, Director of Administrative Services 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the submission of an application to 
the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality’s Texas Natural Gas Vehicle Grant Program for the 
purchase of fourteen new compressed natural gas refuse haulers. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality’s Texas Natural Gas Vehicle 
Grant Program (TNGVGP) provides grants to encourage an entity that owns and operates a heavy-
duty or medium-duty motor vehicle to repower the vehicle with a natural gas engine or replace the 
vehicle with a natural gas vehicle. Grant applicants must go through a Participating Dealer under 
contract with the TCEQ to apply. 
 
The purpose of the TNGVGP grant program is to encourage companies or individuals with on-road 
heavy-duty vehicles and medium-duty vehicles to replace the vehicles with natural gas vehicles or 
repower the vehicles with natural gas engines.  Projects must result in a reduction of emissions of 
nitrogen oxides (NOX) of at least 25%. 
 
Qualifying (New) Vehicles Eligible for Funding must:  

• be a new natural gas vehicle (or new natural gas engine for repowers);  

• be same category, description, and within the same GVWR range as the old vehicle;  

• be powered by an engine that receives not less than 75% of its power from compressed or 
liquefied natural gas (vehicles capable of operating independently on either natural gas or 
another fuel will not be eligible under this program);  

• be powered by an engine certified by the EPA to the applicable federal emissions standard, 
and; 

• be powered by an engine certified to a NOX emissions rate at least 25% lower than the engine 
of the vehicle being replaced or repowered. 

 
 
 
 



 

10/04/12 
Item #5(L) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding for the purchase of three of the refuse trucks is budgeted in FY 2012 in 
the amount of $630,000 in account 110-5900-540-62-22 and will be carried forward to FY 2013.  
These purchases were delayed due to the implementation of the CNG program.. The remaining 
eleven are budgeted in FY 2013 to be funded with Limited Tax Notes. The estimated additional cost 
of a CNG refuse hauler versus a traditional diesel-fueled truck is approximately $35,000 to $50,000. 
The TNGVGP grant will provide $30,000 to help offset this incremental difference.  For the fourteen 
(14) new CNG refuse haulers the total amount of funding being sought from the TNGVGP program is 
$420,000. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 

 
 

  



RESOLUTION NO. _________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION TO 
THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY’S TEXAS 
NATURAL GAS VEHICLE GRANT PROGRAM FOR THE PURCHASE OF 
FOURTEEN NEW COMPRESSED NATURAL GAS REFUSE HAULERS; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality’s Texas Natural Gas 
Vehicle Grant Program (TNGVGP) provides grants to encourage entities to repower certain 
vehicles with a natural gas engine or replace the vehicles with natural gas vehicles; 
 
 Whereas, the purpose of the TNGVGP grant program is to encourage companies or 
individuals with on-road heavy-duty and medium-duty vehicles to replace these vehicles with 
natural gas vehicles or repower the vehicles with natural gas engines – projects must result in a 
reduction of emissions of nitrogen oxides of at least 25%; 
 

Whereas, funding for these purchases is budgeted in the FY12-13 – the total amount of 
funding being sought from the TNGVGP program is $420,000; and  
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to submit an 
application to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality’s Texas Natural Gas Vehicle 
Grant Program for the purchase of fourteen new compressed natural gas refuse haulers. 
 

Part 2:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 4th day of October, 2012. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

_______________________________ 
WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
____________________________   _______________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/04/12 

Item #5(M1-2) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Autumn Speer, Director of Community Services 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting resolutions: 
 
1. Granting a petition to institute voluntary annexation proceedings, known as the Campus at 

Lakewood Voluntary Annexation, for a 10+ acre tract of land, located at the north end of 
Richland Drive, north of The Campus at Lakewood Ranch Phase VII.  

 
2.  Directing the Staff to develop a municipal services plan and calling public hearings to consider 

the petition. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolutions as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: John Kiella filed a petition on September 18, 2012, seeking voluntary annexation 
of approximately 10+ acre acres into the City of Temple. Voluntary annexation is governed by Section 
43.028 of the Texas Local Government Code and applies only to the annexation of an area that is: 
 

1. Less than one-half mile in width, 
2. Contiguous to the annexing municipality, and 
3. Vacant and without residents or on which fewer than three qualified voters reside. 

 
The landowner’s petition meets the statutory requirements and is recommended to be granted. 
 
The proposed dates for initial public hearings are October 18, 2012, (regular meeting) and October 
19, 2012, (special meeting, 8:30 a.m., Council Chambers). The resolution sets the time and place for 
these  meetings. No on-site hearing will be necessary, as there are no residents on the land proposed 
to be annexed. Planning staff will present a Municipal Services Plan at the hearing on October 18, 
2012, as required by state law, showing how the City will serve the area proposed to be annexed into 
the City. The proposed schedule anticipates completion of annexation proceedings December 6, 
2012.  The Planning and Zoning Commission will make a recommendation to the Council for the 
applicant’s requested zoning to UE, Urban Estates, to be part of the annexation and zoning ordinance 
readings, at its November 5, 2012 meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Future tax revenue. 



 

 
10/04/12 

Item #5(M1-2) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Petition and Map 
Annexation schedule 
Resolutions 

 
  













 
Schedule 

Petition for Voluntary Annexation 
Campus at Lakewood -10.089 Acres 

DATE ACTION TIME LIMIT 
September 18, 2012 CITY RECEIVES PETITION of 

landowner to annex unoccupied area 
adjacent to city limits 

NA 

October 4, 2012 
Thursday 
Regular Meeting 
 

COUNCIL GRANTS PETITION 
 
16th day after petition filed 

Hear and grant or deny petition after 
the 5th day, but on or before the 30th 
day after petition is filed  §43.028(d) 
LGC 

COUNCIL ADOPTS RESOLUTION  
Directing staff to develop service plan 
Calling public hearings on October 18 
and October 19 

Before publication of notice of First 
hearing required under §43.065 LGC. 

October 7, 2012 
Sunday 
 

CITY SECRETARY PUBLISHES 
NOTICES FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS 
ON ANNEXATION 
Post notice on City web site 
Publish notice in Telegram 
Send notice to affected railroads by 
certified mail 
 
11th day before 1st public hearing 
12th day before 2nd public hearing

Publish hearing notice on or after the 
20th day but before the 10th day before 
the date of the  hearing required under 
§43.063(c) LGC 

October 18, 2012 
Thursday 
Regular Meeting 
 

COUNCIL HOLDS 1ST PUBLIC 
HEARING 
Staff presents service plan 
 
29th day before 1st reading of the 
ordinance 

Hold hearings on or after the 40th day 
but before the 20th day before the date 
of institution of annexation 
proceedings with 1st reading of 
ordinance.  §43.063(a) LGC 

October 19, 2012 
Friday  
Special Meeting 
8:30 am 
 

COUNCIL HOLDS 2ND PUBLIC 
HEARING 
Staff presents service plan 
 
28th day before 1st reading of the 
ordinance 

November 5, 2012 PLANNING & ZONING 
COMMISSION MEETING TO 
CONSIDER REZONING OF 
PROPERTY 

Receive recommendation for rezoning 
from PZC prior to 1st reading of 
annexation/rezoning Ordinance by 
Council  

November 15, 2012 
Thursday 
Regular Meeting 
 

COUNCIL CONSIDERS 
ANNEXATION/REZONING 
ORDINANCE  ON 1ST READING & 
HOLDS PUBLIC HEARING 

First reading institutes proceedings for 
purposes of statutory time limits. 

December 6, 2012 
Thursday 
Regular Meeting 
 

COUNCIL CONSIDERS 
ANNEXATION/REZONING 
ORDINANCE ON 2ND READING 
 
14th day after 1st reading of ordinance 

Complete annexation proceedings 
within 90 days from first reading. 
§43.064(A) LGC 

 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE PETITION TO INSTITUTE VOLUNTARY 
ANNEXATION PROCEEDINGS, KNOWN AS THE CAMPUS AT 
LAKEWOOD VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION, FOR A TRACT OF LAND 
CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 10 ACRES LOCATED AT THE 
NORTH END OF RICHLAND DRIVE, NORTH OF THE CAMPUS AT 
LANKEWOOD RANCH PHASE VII, PURSUANT TO SECTION 43.028 
OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 
 Whereas, the owner of a tract of land consisting of approximately 10 acres located at 
the north end of Richland Drive, north of The Campus at Lakewood Ranch, Phase VII, 
petitioned the City to annex the tract;  
 
 Whereas, Section 43.028 of the Texas Local Government Code authorizes 
municipalities to annex a sparsely occupied area on petition of area landowners; 
  
 Whereas, the landowner’s petition meets the requirements of Section 43.028 that the 
petition be made in writing, describe the area by metes and bounds, and be acknowledged in 
the manner required for deeds by each person having an interest in the area; 
 
 Whereas, the area requested to be annexed meets the conditions in Section 43.028, 
that is, the area is (1) one-half mile or less in width; (2) contiguous to the annexing 
municipality; and (3) vacant and without residents or on which fewer than three qualified 
voters reside; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to accept the landowner’s petition for voluntary annexation. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council accepts the petition for voluntary annexation, a copy of 
which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, of approximately 10 acres located at the north end of 
Richland Drive, north of The Campus at Lakewood Ranch, Phase VII, pursuant to Section 
43.028 of the Local Government Code. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 4th day of October, 2012. 
 
        THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
               

      WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 1

 RESOLUTION NO._________________ 
  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, DIRECTING THE STAFF TO DEVELOP A MUNICIPAL SERVICES 
PLAN AND CALLING PUBLIC HEARINGS FOR OCTOBER 18, 2012, AND 
OCTOBER 19, 2012, TO CONSIDER A PETITION FOR VOLUNTARY 
ANNEXATION, KNOWN AS THE CAMPUS AT LAKEWOOD VOLUNTARY 
ANNEXATION, CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 10 ACRES LOCATED 
AT THE NORTH END OF RICHLAND DRIVE, NORTH OF THE CAMPUS 
AT LAKEWOOD RANCH PHASE VII; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, on October 4, 2012, the City Council accepted a petition to voluntarily annex a 
tract of land consisting of approximately 10 acres located at the north end of Richland Drive, 
north of the Campus at Lakewood Ranch, Phase VII; 

  
Whereas, the Staff recommends that the City prepare a municipal services plan to 

indicate the level of commitment to be made in conjunction with the annexation, and to identify 
public improvements necessary to serve the area proposed for annexation and how it plans to 
provide those services within specified time periods; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The schedule for the voluntary annexation, which is more fully described herein, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes, as Exhibit A, is adopted. 
 

Part 2: The Staff is hereby directed to prepare a municipal services plan for the 
annexation area as follows:  

 
an approximately 10 acre tract of land located at the north end of Richland Drive, north 
of the Campus at Lakewood Ranch Drive, north of the Campus at Lakewood Ranch 
Phase VII 

 
The above tract is more fully described by metes and bounds contained in field notes which is 
attached hereto and made a part of this Resolution for all purposes as Exhibit B. 
 

Part 3: The City Council hereby calls two public hearings to gather comment concerning 
the proposed annexation described in Section 2 above, with the first public hearing scheduled for 
the Regular Council Meeting on October 18, 2012, at 5:00 PM, and the second public hearing at 
a Special Called City Council Meeting on October 19, 2012, at 8:30 AM, both public hearings to 
be held in the City Council Chambers on the 2nd floor of the Municipal Building located at Main 
and Central in Temple, Bell County, Texas. 



 
 2

 
Part 4: The City Staff is hereby authorized to relocate the second public hearing to a 

suitable location within the area to be annexed in the event of protest. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 4th day of October, 2012. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
    
            

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  
 
 

10/04/12 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 7 

 
DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Autumn Speer, Director of Community Services 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING- PUBLIC HEARING -  Z-FY-12-50:  Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from PD Planned Development-Urban Estates District  (PD-UE) to 
Planned Development -Single Family-1 District (PD-SF-1) on 39.3± acres of land, being part of the 
William Frazier Survey, Abstract #310 located south of FM 93 along the west side of Dubose Road.  
 
APPLICANT HAS REQUESTED THIS BE TABLED UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE 
 
P&Z COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At its meeting on September 17, 2012, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted 5/3 in favor of the proposed change of zoning from PD-UE to PD-SF-1 as 
presented in the concept plan submitted (preliminary plat) with the following condition: that the 
applicant post “no parking” signs on internal local streets in accordance with city requirements 
(Commissioners Magaña, Talley, and Johnson, voted Nay; Commissioner Rhoads was absent).  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented on first 
reading as presented in item description, and schedule second reading and final adoption for October 
18, 2012 related to the following:  
 

• a change of zoning from PD-UE to PD-SF-1 consistent with submitted conceptual plan 
(Preliminary Plat);  

•  with disproval of  the proposed 22 ft. (24’ paving and ribbon curb) pavement width for interior 
streets requiring the applicant to construct interior streets to a local street standard (31 ft 
pavement width.   

 
If the proposed rural local streets (22 ft. pavement width) are approved, it is staff’s recommendation 
that the applicant post no parking signs, in accordance with the Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommendation. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The current PD-UE zoning was approved in 2004 when the owner sought 
voluntary annexation of this tract of land. A Preliminary Plat was submitted for the subject property 
and the adjacent tract of land to the east depicting a pattern of development that included larger 
(average .5 acre lots) and commercial development along FM 93. The tract to the east was platted 
and built in a manner consistent with the Preliminary Plat and in accordance with Urban Estate 
requirements. The developer is now seeking to rezone the residential portion of the second tract from 
PD-UE to PD-SF-1.  



 

 
10/04/12 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 7 

 
The proposed zoning would increase the density from the original proposed 56 residential lots to a 
proposed 94 residential lots. This provides for an overall 67% increase in density with an average 
density of 2.39 lots per acre. The applicant has proposed a minimum lot size of 10,802 sq. ft. (.248 
acres), exceeding the required minimum lot size of 7,500 sq. ft. for SF-1 zoning. Additionally, the 
applicant is seeking to reduce the pavement width of local streets within the development from the 
required 31ft. to the rural street standard of 22 ft (24’ paving and ribbon curb). The applicant has 
submitted a preliminary plat, consistent with these stated lot dimensions, to be considered by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission at an upcoming meeting. 
 
The surrounding land uses are primarily low density and include estate development and agricultural 
uses. Given the general character of the surrounding land uses and the density and home size 
proposed by the applicant, staff recommends approval of the proposed Planned Development – 
Single Family-1 zoning (PD-SF-1) which will provide a less dense development scheme than that 
allowed under Single Family-1 zoning (SF-1). Additionally, staff recommends that the streets within 
the development be constructed to the local street standard 31ft. pavement width consistent with 
UDC requirements for streets serving residential property with a density greater than 2 dwelling units 
per acre.  
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table shows the subject property, existing 
zoning, and current land uses: 

Direction Zoning Current Land Use Photo 

Subject 
Property PD-UE Agricultural 

 
 
 
 
 

AG Agricultural  



 

Direction Zoning Current Land Use Photo 
North 
Across 
FM 93 
 

 

East PD-UE Residential 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Direction Zoning Current Land Use Photo 

South Bell 
County 

Low-Density 
Residential 

 
 

West Bell 
County Undeveloped 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 



 

 
10/04/12 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 5 of 7 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 
Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Site Conditions Compliance?
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and 

Character (FLUP) 
Suburban Residential** Y 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  
FM 93 – Major Arterial**  

Dubose Road – improved Rural 
Collector street 

Y 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development 
patterns should be consistent with the 
City’s infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

8” water line available along FM 93 
adjacent to the property. Existing 
10’ wastewater line accessible to 
the property.  

 

Y 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and 
Sidewalks Ordinance 

Dubose and FM 93 are on the Trails 
Master plan. ** Y 

 CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan** See explanation below
 

Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The Land Use and Character Map identify this area as Suburban Residential allowing for mid-size 
single family detached homes identified in the Unified Development Code. According to the 
Comprehensive Plan, development in this district should feature curvilinear streets, increased open 
space and vegetation, variation in the building envelope, and larger varied lot sizes. The development 
proposed by the applicant is consistent with these area goals and objectives. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The Thoroughfare Plan identifies FM 93 as a Major Arterial which supports adjacent residential and 
commercial development. Major arterials can intersect with both collectors and local streets although 
driveway access is restricted. Dubose Road is built to a Rural Collector standard. 
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
Dubose Road and FM 93 are on the Trails Master plan. A local connector trail is proposed along the 
eastern boundary of the subdivision and along FM 93 adjacent to the commercial tracts of this 
subdivision. Dubose Road is a Rural Collector road with sufficient right-of-way to allow for the future 
construction of that trail segment. The section of trail proposed along FM 93 will be noted on the plat 
and constructed at such time that the commercial tracts along FM 93 are developed. 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The current PD-UE zoning permits single-family detached 
residences and related accessory uses and accommodates larger lot single family residential 
developments. The SF-1 is a higher density use that permits single-family detached residences and 
related accessory structures and serves as a transition between larger and smaller lot single family 
districts.  The SF-1 district allows more modest sized dwelling units and an increased number of lots 
per acre. The minimum lot size for the UE residential district is 22,500 sq.ft. The minimum lot size for 
the SF-1 residential district is 7,500 sq.ft.  
 
Dimensional standards for both zoning districts are depicted below:  



 

 
 
The proposed Planned Development will stipulate a larger lot size of 22,433.ft. (.515 acres) and a 
minimum lot size of 10,802 sq.ft. (.248 acres). Any substantial deviation from this proposed site 
layout would require an amended Planned Development. 
 
The original PD-UE zoning allowed for the construction of rural local streets with a pavement width of 
22 ft. (24’ including ribbon curbs) to support a density of less than two dwelling units per acre. The 
proposed increase in density will necessitate the construction of local streets with a pavement width 
of 31 ft. Density for this subject tract was calculated separately from the eastern portion of the 
subdivision due to the distinct division of the two phases by Dubose Road.  

 
 
 
 



 

 
10/04/12 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 7 of 7 

 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: This item was originally scheduled for Planning and Zoning Commission 
consideration on August 6, 2012 before being rescheduled at the applicant’s request. On July 26, 
2012, nine notices and three courtesy notices (outside the City limits) of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission public hearing were sent out to property owners within 200-feet of case Z-FY-12-50 as 
required by State law and City Ordinance.  As of September 21, 2012, three respondents returned 
notices expressing opposition to the proposed change of zoning. One respondent expressed support 
for the proposed change of zoning. Two respondents returned courtesy notices expressing opposition 
to the proposed change of zoning.  
 
The newspaper printed notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing on September 
6, 2012, in accordance with state law and local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Zoning and Location Map 
Future Land Use and Character map    
Notice Map 
Thoroughfare and Master Trails Plan Map 
Utility Map    
Conceptual Plan (Preliminary Plat) 
Response Letters 
P&Z Excerpts 
Ordinance 

 
 

  



1

1

2

2

2

2

2

1

1

9
8

6

5

1

2

3

4

7
30

29

2827

26

25

31
24

23

22 32

33

34
43

42
35

41
36

37
4059

58

57
56

55
54

50

49

48
39

38

53

51

52

70

69

68
67

66
6564

63

62
61 60

44

45

46

47

10

11

12
13 14 15 16

17

18

19

20

21

PARK

PARK

PARK

TRACT B

TRACT A

6007-B

5032-A

5024-A

5027-A
5028-A

5028-B

5031-C

5031-C
5032-D

5032-B

72
33

7305

7315 7321

7225

71
18

71
30

721
0

71
07

71
19

71
33

72
13

6903

69
17

69
31

70
13

70
25

69
16

70
08

70
20

72
11

73
21

360
8

69
053528 3516

36
11

361
5

69
18

69
30

70
10

70
22

3610

3618 71
04

71
16

71
28

75
15

71
05

71
17

71
29

72
07

69
29

70
09

70
21

4343

AG

UE

UE

AG

NS

UE

UE

NS

LI W FM 93

DU
BO

SE
 R

D

SO
UT

HW
OO

D 
DR

Z-FY-12-50 PD (UE) to SF-1 FM 93 & Dubose  

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.1234

1234-A

1
0 250 500125

Feet
1Case

Zoning
Subdivisions
Parcel

Outblocks
Addresses

Blocks
Lots 7/11/2012

City of Temple GIS



Z-FY-12-50

W FM 93

VA
LL

EY
 M

IST
 DR

SU
N V

AL
LE

Y D
R

DU
BO

SE
 R

D

SO
UT

HW
OO

D 
DR

VALLEY MIST CT

VALLEY PARK DR

Z-FY-12-50 PD (UE) to SF-1 FM 93 & Dubose  

GIS products are for informational purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or 
be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes.They do not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represent only 
the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Future Land Use
Neighborhood Conservation
Estate Residential
Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential
Auto-Urban Multi-Family
Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial
Suburban Commercial
Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District
Industrial
Business Park

Public Institutional
Parks & Open Space
Agricultural/Rural

0 250 500125
Feet

7/11/2012
City of Temple GIS



7233

7305

7226

7238

7306

7310
7314

7315

7318
7321

73267322

7224
7225

7106

7118

7130

7210

7107

7119

7133

7213

69036904

69076908

6917

6931

7013

7025

6916

6928

7008

7020

7211

7321

3616
3620

3619

3608
3604

6905

3528 3516 3504

3612 3607

3611

3615

6918

6930

7010

7022

3610

36143618
3617

3613
7104

7116

7128
3609

3529
3517

7105

7117

7129

7207

6917

6929

7009

7021

4107
4343

AG

UE

UE

NS

UE

UE

NS
AG 6007-B

6007-A

5032-A

5024-A

5027-A
5028-A

5028-B

5031-C

5031-C
5032-D

5032-B

W FM 93

VALLEY RANCH DR

DU
BO

SE
 R

D

SO
UT

HW
OO

D D
R

VA
LL

EY
 M

IST
 D

R

SU
N 

VA
LL

EY
 DR

VA
LL

EY
 M

IST
 CT

VALLEY PARK DR

Z-FY-12-50 PD (UE) to SF-1 FM 93 & Dubose  

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

1234

1234-ACase
200' Buffer

Zoning
Subdivision

Outblock
Address 0 500 1,000

Feet
7/11/2012
City of Temple GIS
gkeith



8"

10"
6" 8"

6"

6"

8"

2"

1.5"1"
1"

6"

8"

6"
8"

6"

6"

W FM 93

VA
LL

EY
 M

IST
 DR

SU
N V

AL
LE

Y D
R

DU
BO

SE
 R

D

SO
UT

HW
OO

D 
DR

VALLEY MIST CT

Z-FY-12-50 PD (UE) to SF-1 FM 93 & Dubose  

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Case
Fire Hydrant
Sewer Line

Water Line
Expressway
Major Arterial

Proposed Major Arterial
Proposed K-TUTS
Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor Arterial
Collector
Conceptual Collector

City Limits 0 250 500125
Feet 7/11/2012

City of Temple GIS



W FM 93

VA
LL

EY
 M

IST
 DR

SU
N V

AL
LE

Y D
R

DU
BO

SE
 R

D

SO
UT

HW
OO

D 
DR

VALLEY MIST CT

VALLEY PARK DR

FORRESTER RD

Z-FY-12-50 PD (UE) to SF-1 FM 93 & Dubose  

GIS products are for informational purposes and may not have been
prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
They do not represent an on-the-ground survey and represent only the 
approximate relative location of property boundaries and other features.

Trails
Existing Citywide Spine Trail
Under Design/Construction Citywide Spine Trail
Proposed Citywide Spine Trail
Existing Community-Wide Connector Trail

Under Design/Construction Community-Wide Connector Trail
Proposed Community-Wide Connector Trail
Existing Local Connector Trail
Proposed Local Connector Trail

Thoroughfare
Expressway
Major Arterial
Proposed Major Arterial

Proposed K-TUTS
Minor Arterial
Proposed Minor Arterial
Collector
Conceptual Collector

0 250 500
Feet

7/11/2012
City of Temple GIS
gkeith



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

J

K

L

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

REVISED
PRELIMINARY PLAT
VALLEY RANCH ADDITION

PHASE 3 & 4
TO THE CITY OF TEMPLE,

BELL COUNTY, TEXAS
PLAT NUMBER

DRAFT DATE

PROJECT NUMBER

FIELD NOTE NO.

GRAPHIC SCALE (FEET)

0 20010050

DRAWING NAME

SHEET NUMBER
06/15/2012

1-02078PRELIM.DWG
N/A

MPP/KRH
1-02078
D1-0221

DRAWN BY/CHECKED BY

1 of 2

600 AUSTIN AVENUE, SUITE 20      WACO, TEXAS 76701
PHONE:  1-254-714-1402      T.B.P.E. REGISTRATION NO. 8053

(NOT TO SCALE)

VICINITY MAP

SURVEYOR'S NOTES
PHASING WILL BE DETERMINED DURING FINAL PLATTING PROCESS.

THE BOUNDARY SURVEY SHOWN HEREON WAS PERFORMED BY TEMPLE CIVIL ENGINEERING
CO. INC. ON APRIL 29, 2003 AND DOES NOT REPRESENT AN ON THE GROUND SURVEY BY
WALKER PARTNERS.

THE CONTOURS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY PERFORMED BY
SANBORN ON DECEMBER 19, 2003 AND ARE BASE ON CITY OF TEMPLE MONUMENT NO. 141.

RECORD OWNER: LEXINGTON HOLDINGS, LTD. AS RECORDED IN VOLUME 5572, PAGE 849 OF
THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF BELL COUNTY, TEXAS.

CURRENT ZONING: SUBJECT TRACT IS CURRENTLY ZONED PDNS AND PDUE. THE PDUE
PROTION IS PROPOSED TO BE REZONED SF1.

THIS PROJECT IS REFERENCED TO THE CITY OF TEMPLE COORDINATE SYSTEM, AN
EXTENSION OF THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM OF 1983, CENTRAL ZONE. ALL DISTANCES
ARE HORIZONTAL SURFACE DISTANCES UNLESS NOTED AND ALL BEARINGS ARE GRID
BEARINGS. ALL COORDINATES ARE REFERENCED TO CITY MONUMENT NO. 141. THE THETA
ANGLE AT CITY MONUMENT NO. 141 IS 01°30'27". THE COMBINED CORRECTION FACTOR (CCF)
IS 0.999858. GRID DISTANCE =SURFACE DISTANCE X CCF. GEODETIC NORTH = GRID NORTH +
THETA ANGLE. REFERENCE TIE FROM CITY MONUMENT NO. 141 TO A CUT-BACK CORNER IN
THE WEST LINE OF TRACT 3, A CALLED 60.051 ACRE TRACT, AS SURVEYED BY CARL B.
PEARSON ON APRIL 29TH, 2003 IS N 15°38'37" E, 42.30 FEET. PUBLISHED CITY COORDINATES
FOR PROJECT REFERENCE POINT 141 ARE N=10,354,042.98  E=3,212,989.81

THE APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED
UPON FIELD SURVEY INFORMATION, UTILITY LOCATORS MARKINGS AND EXISTING UTILITY
AS-BUILT DRAWINGS.  THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO GUARANTEE THAT THE UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES SHOWN COMPRISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE OR
ABANDONED.  THE SURVEYOR FURTHER DOES NOT GUARANTEE THAT THE UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES SHOWN HEREON ARE IN THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED. ALL UTILITIES MUST BE
FIELD VERIFIED BEFORE PERFORMING ANY WORK.

THE SURVEYOR DID NOT ABSTRACT THE SUBJECT TRACT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED
WITHOUT THE BENEFIT OF A TITLE REPORT, THEREFORE THE SURVEYOR CERTIFIES THAT
EASEMENTS THAT HE HAS BEEN ADVISED OF HAVE BEEN ADDRESSED HEREON.  HOWEVER,
THE SURVEYOR DOES NOT GUARANTEE THAT ALL EASEMENTS, RESTRICTIONS OR
ENCUMBRANCES (EITHER OF RECORD OR NOT OF RECORD) WHICH MAY AFFECT THE
SUBJECT TRACT ARE SHOWN HEREON.

FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA) NOTE:  THIS PROPERTY IS IN FEMA
"OTHER AREAS" ZONE X AS SHOWN ON THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP, COMMUNITY
PANEL 48027C0345E, WHICH BEARS AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2008. THIS
FLOOD STATEMENT DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THIS TRACT WILL, OR WILL NOT FLOOD, NOR
DOES IT CREATE ANY LIABILITY IN SUCH EVENT ON THE PART OF THIS SURVEYOR OR
COMPANY.

EXPLANATION OF FEMA ZONE: FEMA "OTHER AREAS" ZONE X = AREAS DETERMINED TO BE
OUTSIDE OF THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN.

RECOMMENDED FOR PRELIMINARY APPROVAL:

CITY ENGINEER AND/OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS                                         DATE

APPROVED FOR PREPARATION OF FINAL PLAT:

CHAIRMAN, PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION                                                  DATE

APPROVED FOR PREPARATION OF FINAL PLAT:

CITY SECRETARY                                                                                                           DATE

OMEGA COMMUNITY BUILDERS, INC.
P.O. BOX 1908
TEMPLE, TEXAS   76503-1908

JAMES I. HOWE, VICE PRESIDENT                                                                               DATE

SURVEYOR:

WALKER PARTNERS                                                                                                      DATE
600 AUSTIN AVENUE, SUITE 20
WACO, TEXAS   76701

ENGINEER:

WALKER PARTNERS                                                                                                      DATE
600 AUSTIN AVENUE, SUITE 20
WACO, TEXAS   76701

OWNER/DEVELOPER

CITY CERTIFICATION

TOTAL SUBDIVISION ACREAGE = 44.234 ACRES
TOTAL COMMERCIAL LOT ACREAGE = 4.945 ACRES
TOTAL NUMBER OF COMMERCIAL LOTS = 4
TOTAL RESIDENTIAL LOT ACREAGE = 30.480 LOTS
TOTAL NUMBER OF RESIDENTIAL LOTS = 94
TOTAL NUMBER OF BLOCKS = 6 BLOCKS

LEGEND
= CITY OF TEMPLE MONUMENT

= DEED CALL

= DEED RECORDS OF BELL
   COUNTY, TEXAS

= PLAT RECORDS OF BELL
   COUNTY, TEXAS

(      )

D.R.B.C.T.

P.R.B.C.T.

A12 SUBDIVISION ENTRANCE
CURB LAYOUT1"=40'

G
:
\
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
1
-
0
2
0
7
8
\
d
w

g
\
1
-
0
2
0
7
8
P
R
E
L
I
M

.
d
w

g
,
 
L
a
y
o
u
t
1
,
 
7
/
5
/
2
0
1
2
 
9
:
4
9
:
5
9
 
A
M

,
 
m

p
o
l
k
,
 
1
:
1

























EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2012 
 
ACTION ITEMS 

Item 4: Z-FY-12-50  Hold a public-hearing to discuss and recommend action on a zone 
change from PD Planned Development-Urban Estates District  (PD-UE) to Planned 
Development -Single Family-1 District (PD-SF-1) on 39.3± acres of land, being part of 
the William Frazier Survey, Abstract #310 located south of FM 93 along the west side 
of Dubose Road. 

Ms. Zendt stated in 2004 the Planned Development Urban Estates (PD-UE) zoning was 
approved upon voluntary annexation of both tracts of land.  A preliminary plat was submitted 
for this tract and the tract located to the east. The tract to the east has been built in 
conformance with the PD-UE standards and is currently developed.  The applicant is 
requesting a zoning change for the remaining tract from PD-UE to Planned Development 
Single Family-One (PD-SF-1). 

Surrounding properties include Agricultural (AG) to the north, to the east across Dubose Road 
is PD-UE, to the south is residential and AG, and to the west is undeveloped land. 

The Future Land Use and Character Map designate this property is Suburban Residential.   
Originally this property was proposed for 56 residential lots. The new proposal is for 94 
residential lots, which is a 67% increase in density.  The original PD called for an average ½  
acre lot size and the proposed PD-SF-1 identifies minimum lot size of approximately 10,802 
square feet or .248 acres.  The original PD-UE had a density of approximately 1.37 dwelling 
units per acre and the new proposed density would be 2.39 dwelling units per acre. 

The applicant has proposed a rural street width of 22 feet of pavement and two feet ribbon 
curve with the approved PD and would like to stay the same recommendation for the PD-SF-1.  

This preliminary plat was submitted in July 2012 and is what the PD is being based on.  The 
applicant intends to build larger sized lots that what is required with the SF-1 zoning.  The 
minimum lot size is 10,802 square feet as opposed to straight SF-1 with a minimum standard 
lot size of 7,500 square feet.  The proposed largest lot size would be 22,433 square feet which 
is almost one-half acre. 

Public utilities are available to serve the property with an eight-inch water line along FM 93 and 
a ten-inch wastewater main. 

A local connector is proposed along FM 93 adjacent to the commercial tracts.  The trail will 
probably be constructed at the same time the commercial tracts are developed and Dubose 
has existing right-of-way for the other section of the trail to be constructed in the future. 

Nine notices were mailed: one respondent was in favor, three respondents were in opposition, 
and two courtesy notices were in opposition. 



Staff recommends approval of the zoning request from PD-UE to PD-SF-1 since it is consistent 
with the submitted conceptual plan with the defined minimum lot size of 10,802 square feet 
rather than 7,500 square feet.  

Staff recommends disapproval of the proposed 22 feet pavement width for interior streets. 
Originally the pavement width was approved for the PD-UE when the density was below two 
units per acre.  The Unified Development Code (UDC) states when the density goes above two 
dwelling units per acre, a local width is required so Staff recommends 31 feet street standard. 

Chair Staats opened the public hearing. 

Mr. Jim Howe, 7353 W. Adams, Temple, Texas, represents the developer of Valley Ranch 
Subdivision. Mr. Howe asked for additional time in order to make his slide presentation. 

Mr. Howe stated Valley Ranch is a locally owned master planned community. The request is to 
be zoned to PD-SF-1 for the west portion of the property and to retain the rural street design 
for the streets.  The Valley Ranch Subdivision is located off of FM 93 and west of 31st Street. 
This is a 107 acre property. 

The front portion of the property is set aside for Commercial (C) with nine undeveloped lots. 
There is a city park that is also a City storm water structure. 

Valley Ranch was approved in 2004 with a total of 107 acres, mixed use, with 126 one-half 
acre lots zoned Urban Estates (UE).  Originally it was designed for septic service since there 
was no sewer at that location, and designed with a rural street design with 28 foot collector 
street (Dubose Road) and 24 foot wide local streets (Staff stated 22 feet).  Drainage is by 
grassy open swales, there are nine commercial lots, and a park. 

Mr. Howe stated it was originally designed for septic service as opposed to public sewer and 
all of the engineering was completed for the subdivision when the City was able to bring sewer 
to the area and to serve Valley Ranch, the school and neighboring area.  It was decided to 
stay with the proposal for one-half acre lots which are served by public sewer. 

Mr. Howe commented the builders have been telling him that buyers are resisting large lots 
due to the costs involved.  Another concern is drought water rationing. TBG Partners was hired 
and created a revised plan which downsized the lots from one-half acre to one-third acre 
(average lot size 105 feet  x 135 feet) and improved the traffic flow/circulation by replacing the 
cul-de-sacs.  Rural street design stayed with the same width as Phases I and II and a green 
space was added. 

Mr. Howe gave more dimensional information, showed pictures of similar home designs 
intended for the development, and spoke about road widths. Mr. Howe stated they would like 
to be able to continue the road street designs as created in Phases I and II without parking 
restrictions.   

Mr. Howe stated Staff is recommending approval of the rezoning but disapproves of the rural 
street design and would like to go to a standard 31 foot street with an underground storm water 
system.  Mr. Howe’s response to this is that the rural street design is consistent with Phases I 
and II; the density for the subdivision goes to 1.17 lots per acre, not 2.39; Dubose is a collector 
street, 28 feet wide, and constructed to standards; local streets 24 feet rural street design has 



less impervious cover than 31 foot streets that are for storm water; traffic flow is improved; and 
parking with 50 feet setbacks from the street provides ample off street parking. The covenants 
for the subdivision prohibit parking for extended periods on the streets, day or night. Storm 
water pollution is being managed by vegetative swales instead of using concrete pipes.   

Mr. Howe stated there was precedent for what is being requested.  The City approved a West 
Temple subdivision with SF-2 zoning with a rural street design of 22 feet, no ribbon curbs, a 
density of 4.15 lots per acre with an average lot size of 65 feet by 125 feet, and no parking 
restrictions with 34 foot setbacks.  

Mr. Howe asked that the Commission approve the request. 

Ms. Deyette Pauer, 3790 Forrester Road, Temple, Texas, stated her property backed up to the 
south portion of Valley Ranch addition, Phases III and IV.  Ms. Pauer provides a plat copy for 
the Commission for comparison along with a signed Petition from the residents in Taylors 
Valley and Evergreen (Phase I and II of Valley Ranch). 

Ms. Pauer stated Mr. Howe came to their home six years ago to enlist support for Valley 
Ranch to all be half acre estate lots on both the east and west side of Dubose Road.  Ms. 
Pauer stated they were in favor of this because of the rural setting.  It was Ms. Pauer’s 
understanding this would be the Valley Ranch Mr. Howe intended to develop.  Ms. Pauer 
stated there were now 94 smaller lots (minus a few) from what was originally promised. 

Mr. Dale Massie, 3620 Valley Mist Court, Temple, Texas, stated on Monday, July 23, 2012, 
Mr. Howe met with Mr. Massie and other homeowners of Valley Ranch Subdivision to discuss 
the development plan for Phase III. Mr. Massie was not aware of a Phase III until this meeting 
and has lived in Valley Ranch for one year.  Presently, the subject property is being used for 
agricultural purposes until 2013. 

Mr. Massie stated Mr. Howe informed them that smaller lots would be more desirable to a 
greater number of potential homebuyers.  In subdividing the property into smaller lots, Mr. 
Howe showed a general plan of approximately 90 lots, where Phases I and II currently have 
70.  The homes in Phase III would be built in a similar style in square footage as already exists 
in Phase I of Valley Ranch.  Mr. Massie does not recall if Mr. Howe mentioned what the zoning 
class would be, but the minimum lot size would be associated with it.  No document outlining 
the restrictive covenants was provided at that time. 

Since that meeting, Mr. Massie has learned that the minimum square footage of a zoned UE 
lot was 22,500 square feet whereas the minimum for SF-1 was 7,500 square feet which he felt 
was significant. Mr. Massie has also learned that the subject property has undergone two 
previous zoning changes.  Mr. Massie stated it was possible that Phase III of Valley Ranch 
could become an entirely different subdivision with an entirely different set of covenants and 
completely different style that currently exists. 

Mr. Massie purchased his home with the intent of staying there because of the larger lot 
environment and rural surroundings.  

Mr. Massie asked the Commission to table this request until further study and discussion could 
take place on what the exact final plan would be. 



Mr. Chris Anelundi, 7021 Valley Mist Drive, Temple, Texas, stated his family moved to Temple 
due to the overcrowding conditions in Killeen.  They bought into Valley Ranch early on the 
commitment that all upcoming surrounding phases would be half acre estate lots like Phase I. 
The rezoning request was presented to Mr. Anelundi as no one wanted to purchase an estate 
lot anymore.  However, after three years of stagnant development in Phase I, a new house is 
being framed on estate lots at the rate of about one every two months, eight to ten homes in 
the last 18 months. 

At a recent homeowners meeting, the residents were told that if the property were rezoned, 
Phase III would have homes of equivalent square footage and exterior materials as Phase I 
but would be one third of an acre to make them more appealing to buyers. 

Mr. Anelundi said he felt if this zone change were approved, traffic will not be the only thing 
making it difficult to leave his home. 

Mr. Anelundi stated it was his understanding that the subject property would continue to be 
farmed until 2013. That being the case, he asked the Commissioners to please table this item 
until all affective residents can be given a chance to voice their positions if they choose. 

Mr. John Mayo, 6918 Valley Mist Drive, Temple, Texas, stated he has lived in Valley Ranch for 
five years. Mr. Mayo works for Omega Builders but did not work for them when he purchased 
his home. One of the reasons they chose Valley Ranch was Mr. Howe’s reputation. 

Mr. Mayo is in support of the zoning request, however, his biggest concern is that if it is not 
approved, Mr. Howe might lose interest in developing Phase III and would sell it to an out of 
town developer, which he feels would be destructive. 

Mr. Mayo stated higher density development projects would occur anyway, whether in Valley 
Ranch or not and was in support of this request. 

Mr. Ron Gates, 3454 Forrester Road, Temple, Texas, asked where Mr. Mayo worked and 
Chair Staats stated Omega. 

Mr. Charles Verhigh, 2271 River Ranch Road, Temple, Texas, stated the tail end of Fryer’s 
Creek runs through his property. Over time, Mr. Verhigh said he has lost over an acre of land 
as a result of water runoff from south Temple and feels this is due to inadequate planning for 
water runoff.  Mr. Verhigh had not seen any water runoff plan or engineering plan for this 
phase of the development and would like to see what it would be, especially with twice the 
number of homes being added. 

Mr. Verhigh would suggest tabling this item until engineering can assess the impact of water 
runoff from increasing the number of lots. 

There being no further speakers, Chair Staats closed the public hearing. 

A representative from Public Works was not in attendance to answer any questions. 

Commissioner Talley asked Mr. Howe how he got the information that larger lots were not 
selling. Mr. Howe stated the information came from feedback from sales people and other 
builders in the subdivision and was related to other subdivisions as well. 



Mr. Howe stated storm water has been an issue and when a plan has been developed it would 
be submitted when the plat comes through.  

Commissioner Magaña asked if this request were approved, what would keep Mr. Howe from 
building even smaller lots and homes. Mr. Howe stated the PD-SF-1 zoning would restrict the 
number and size of lots to what is stated and the covenants would require a 2000 foot 
minimum. 

Ms. Pauer asked about the covenants stating a 2,000 square foot minimum and was it 
accessible to all. Chair Staats responded that the document would be recorded at the Clerk’s 
office and is considered a public document for all. Ms. Pauer stated she would like the item 
tabled for further investigation. 

Ms. Zendt stated the PD-SF-1 is consistent with the submitted preliminary plat locking in the 
parameters for the development.  

Discussion about how Staff determines street width and curbs. 

Commissioner Talley asked Mr. Massie what he was looking for if the item were tabled. Mr. 
Massie stated he would like better reassurance that the preliminary plat and any other plat 
going forward would not change, especially since it has already gone through previous zone 
changes. He has not seen the covenants for Phase II or III. 

Commissioner Martin stated at this point the subject property conforms to the Future Land Use 
and Character Map which represents the Single Family One.  

Commissioner Jones stated the only issue at hand is the zoning, not the platting. The other 
issues will go through the Staff and they would answer any questions the public has. He did 
not think tabling the zoning request would make any difference. 

Ms. Autumn Speer, Director of Community Services, stated this is a Planned Development so 
it is a mixture of zoning and conceptual plans. SF-1 zoning does permit a 7,500 square foot lot. 
However, Mr. Howe proposes a planned development for SF-1 for the base zoning with a 
conceptual preliminary plat stipulating lot sizes and layout. Ms. Speer stated there was a 
preliminary plat that matches the PD in Staff’s offices awaiting other information and 
engineering information from Mr. Howe’s engineer.  That is a separate process. If, through that 
process, Mr. Howe cannot address the issues that arise the way it is laid out, Mr. Howe would 
have to come back and amend the planned development.  

Mr. Charles Christ, 3611 Valley Mist Court, Temple, Texas, asked about traffic circulation 
issues.  People like cul-de-sacs because of small children and he wondered if that issue had 
been addressed.  

Ms. Zendt stated the legal notice is published in the newspaper and the 200 foot buffer notices 
are required by state law. Courtesy notices are sent out but are not required by state law. Land 
use signs are also placed on properties to alert the public. 

Commissioner Talley made a motion to table the item until the next meeting.  

Ms. Zendt is asked to repeat the Staff’s recommendations for the Commission. 



Commissioner Magaña made a second. 

Ms. Trudi Dill, Deputy City Attorney, stated the motion should include a time period for 
returning. Commissioner Talley stated next P&Z meeting scheduled for October 1, 2012. 

Chair Staats delayed the vote upon further discussion. 

Commissioner Jones stated there has been sufficient time for people to ask questions and get 
the information and did not feel the extra week or two would make any difference. 
Commissioner Jones would like to go forward with a motion. 

Commissioner Talley stated tabling the item was the wisest thing to do since there are 
unanswered questions. Commissioner Magaña agreed. 

Motion passed:  (3:5) 

Commissioners Harrell, Magana and Talley voted Aye; Commissioners Johnson, Jones, 
Martin, Vice-Chair Sears and Chair Staats voted Nay; Commissioner Rhoads absent 

The motion failed therefore a new motion is needed. 

Commissioner Jones made a motion to approve Item 4, Z-FY-12-50, as presented by the 
applicant in addition to adding no parking signs and Commissioner Martin made a second. 

Discussion about street width. 

Motion passed:  (5:3) 

Commissioners Harrell, Jones, Martin, Vice-Chair Sears, and Chair Staats voted Aye; 
Commissioners Magaña; Talley and Johnson voted Nay; Commissioner Rhoads absent 

 



1 
 

  
ORDINANCE NO. ____________________ 

 
[PLANNING NO. Z-FY-12-50] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A REZONING FROM PLANNED DEVELOPMENT-
URBAN ESTATES DISTRICT (PD-UE) TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT-
SINGLE FAMILY-1 DISTRICT (PD-SF-1) ON APPROXIMATELY 39.3 ACRES 
OUT OF THE WILLIAM FRAZIER SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 310, LOCATED 
SOUTH OF FM 93 ALONG THE WEST SIDE OF DUBOSE ROAD; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 
 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Planned Development-Urban 

Estates District (PD-UE) to Planned Development-Single Family-1 District (PD-SF-1) on 
approximately 39.3 acres out of the William Frazier Survey, Abstract No. 310, located south 
of FM 93 along the west side of Dubose Road, more fully described in Exhibit A, attached 
hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid 
by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall 
not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this 
ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 4th day of 
October, 2012. 
 

  



2 
 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 18th day of October, 2012. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
        ___________________________ 

WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
                       
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

  
 
            

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  
 

 
10/04/12 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
                           Page 1 of 2 
 
 
DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Autumn Speer, Director of Community Services 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-12-53: Consider adopting an 
ordinance amending the Citywide Trails Master Plan.  
 
P&Z COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its meeting on September 17, 2012, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted 8:0 (Commissioner Rhoads was absent), in accordance with the Staff 
recommendation, to recommend approval of the amended Citywide Trails Master Plan. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance on first reading as 
presented in item description, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for October 18, 
2012.  
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  On March 4, 2010, the City of Temple adopted, by Resolution No. 2010-5971-R, 
the Citywide Trails Master Plan to implement community-wide mobility goals and objectives identified 
in the Choices ’08, City of Temple Comprehensive Plan. Since that time, staff has identified multiple 
revisions and amendments resulting from the following: 
 

• Revisions to the Thoroughfare Plan;  
• Revisions and funding changes related to the Transportation Capital Improvements Plan 

(CIP)(Streets CIP);  
• 1st and 3rd St. Overlay Plan implementation;  
• Lack of connectivity or viability of proposed routes (likelihood of construction);  
• Changing City requirements; and 
• City Council approved exceptions. 

 
The Citywide Trails Master Plan is used by staff to require upsizing of certain sidewalks (with oversize 
participation agreements) and for requiring right-of-way dedication and construction of trails for 
certain development projects. This strategy for implementation necessitates adoption of the Citywide 
Master Trails Plan by Ordinance rather than by Resolution. By adopting this Ordinance, the City will 
also establish consistency with the adoption and amendment process for the Thoroughfare Plan 
which addresses motorized mobility much in the same way the Citywide Trails Master plan addresses 
non-motorized mobility.  
 



 

 
10/04/12 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
                           Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Additionally, this adopted plan will assist the City in implementing the community-wide mobility goals 
set forth in the Comprehensive Plan and in demonstrating the City’s commitment to a multi-modal 
transportation network for future mobility enhancement grant opportunities. Staff anticipates bringing 
additional revisions and corrections to City Council as part of an ongoing effort to review and update 
the plan.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Citywide Trails Master Plan Map - Existing 
Citywide Trails Master Plan Map - Proposed Changes 1 
Citywide Trails Master Plan Map - Proposed Changes 2 
Citywide Trails Master Plan Map – Proposed 
P&Z Excerpts 
Ordinance 

 
  



§̈¦35

§̈¦35

")290

")36

")53

")817

")438

")2305

")1741

")290

")36")2305

")2305

£¤190

W ADAMS AVE

AIRPORT RD

S 3
1S

T S
T

S INTERSTATE 35

N S
TA

TE
 HI

GH
WA

Y 3
17

N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

S 5
TH

 ST

PE
GA

SU
S D

R

W M AVE
E H AVE

W H AVE

S 1
ST

 ST

S K
EG

LE
Y R

D

E ADAMS AVE

NE H K DODGEN LOOP

W FM 93

SW H K DODGEN L OOP

NW H K DODGEN LOOP

FM 1237

INDUSTRIAL BLVD

N 1
5T

H S
T

SE H K DODGEN LO
OP

FM
 22

71

S 2
4T

H 
ST

W NUGENT AVE

MIDWAY DR

HIC
KO

RY
 RD

W R AVE

CE
AR

LE
Y R

D

S 4
3R

D 
ST

EB
ER

HA
RD

T R
D

PRAIRIE VIEW RD

LO
WE

R 
TR

OY
 R

D

S WHITEHALL RD

N 3
1S

T S
T

S 5
7T

H S
T

RA
NG

E R
D

W D AVE

LO
WE

S D
R

S 3
0T

H 
ST

N 4
2N

D S
T

HOGAN RD

HOPI TRL

N 3
RD

 ST

SCOTT BLVD

N K
EG

LE
Y R

D

CASE RD

HA
RT

RIC
K B

LU
FF

 RD

TOWER RD

N P
EA

 RI
DG

E R
D

DAIRY RD

SH
AL

LOW FORD RD

CA
NY

ON CREEK DR

205 LOOP

SAULSBURY DR

E BLACKLAND RD

AP
ACH

E D
R

FM 2483

HILLCREST RD

BIR
DC

RE
EK

 DR

WATERS DAIRY RD

BA
TT

LE DR

E S HELL AVE

COTTONWOOD LN

WILDFLOWER LN

S 49
TH ST

KTON RD

S 3
RD

 ST

MOFFAT RD

E NUGENT AVE

THORNTON LN

E ZENITH AVE

S P
EA

 R
ID

GE
 R

D

SE H K DODGEN LOOP

W FM 93

N P
EA

 R
ID

GE
 R

D

N INTERST ATE 35

E H AVE
S INTERSTATE 35 W L AVE

SW H K DODGEN LOOP
CHARTER OAK DR

S 9
TH

 ST

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

N 1
3T

H 
ST

N 
GE

NE
RA

L B
RU

CE
 DR

E C AVE

AIR
P O

RT
 T

RL

W I AVE

N 7
TH

 ST

E B AVE

MOORES MILL RD
MOUSER RD

BR
EW

ST
ER

 R
D

TARVER DR

N M
AIN

 ST

E A AVE

N 5
TH

 ST

W P AVE

N 8
TH

 ST

S 1
9T

H 
ST

HI
LLI

ARD RD

WE
ND

LA
ND

 R
D

W F AVE

CEDAR CREEK RD

S M
AIN

 ST
N 1

1T
H 

ST

W H AVE

S 7
TH

 ST

N 3
RD

 ST

S 3
7T

H 
ST

S 
39

TH
 ST

POISON OAK RD

N 9
TH

 ST
S 4

TH
 ST

E DOWNS AVEN 4
TH

 ST

ST
AR

LIG
HT

 D
R

FO REST TRL

W J AVE

RID
GE

WA
Y

KELLE R RD

WILD BOY S RUN

S 3
4T

H 
ST

ANTELOPE TRL

N 1
2T

H 
ST

MCLANE PKW
Y

S 
23

RD
 ST

W A AVE

S 1
8T

H 
ST

S 5
1S

T S
T

OLD HOWAR
D R

D

PECAN DR

LITTLE M EXICO RD

S 1
4T

H 
ST

OL
AF

 D
R

DEER TRL

ADAMS LN

S 1
0T

H 
ST

S P
EA

 R
IDG

E R
D

S 4
9T

H 
ST

W Z AVE

JUPITER DR

EAGLE LANDING DR

SLOUGH DR

BR
OO

KS
 D

R

H EMLOCK BLVD

OR
IO

N 
DR

E I AVE

S 5
5T

H S
T

ELM DR

WILSONART DR

S 2
1S

T S
T

BUCKSKIN
 TRL

EVERTON DR

W T AVE

MILLER SPRING RD

CE
NT

ER
 S

T

S T
ON

EH
AV

EN

 DR

W R AVE

E G AVE

CE
DA

R 
LN

E K AVE

CO
AS

TA
L D

R

PEPPER CREEK RD

LO
WE

S D
R

FA
IR

 H
ILL

 D
R

PIM
A

HONEYSUCKLE

WILD BUC K RUN W E AVE

VENUS DR
SKYVIEW

KI
MI

 LN

KA
SB

ER
G 

DR

N 
17

TH
 S

T

E SHELL AVE

E MUNROE AVE

BUTTERFLY DR
DE ERFIEL D 

DR

W V AVE

HOGAN RD

SW
 W

ES
T L

OO
P

F OX T RL

INVERNESS RD

CO
MM

ER

C E ST

WI
TT

ER
 LN

E XAVIER AVE

OLD WACO LN

S 5
7T

H 
ST

SUNSET TRL

PA
ND

A D
R

WI
ND

CL
IFF

 DR

HO
PK

IN
S 

DR

CRYER LN

S 5
3R

D 
ST

LA
ND

FIL
L R

D

J I
 BR

UC
E D

R

LIG
HT

NE
R 

LN

TRENTON DR

CHERRY LN

VIL
LA

GE
 W

AY

INDIAN TRL

ED
GE

HI
LL

IOWA AVE

CYPRESS ST

SU
N 

VA
LL

EY
 D

R

E N AVE

NA
PL

ES
 DR

LA
S C

OL
IN

AS
 D

R

CHURCH ST

E F AVE

S 30TH ST

STONEHAM

SYCAMORE ST

E KING AVE

PA
LO

MI
NO

 DR

N 
49

TH
 S

T

H I
LL

IAR
D  

RD

E B AVE

W T AVE

AIR
PO

RT
 TR

L

BELTON

TROY

MORGANS POINT RESORT

LITTLE RIVER

DISCLAIMER: GIS products are for
informational purposes and may not
have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering,or surveying
purposes.  They do not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represent
only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

.
0 1 20.5

Miles
MAP PREPARED: September 7, 2012

Trails
Master Plan

Existing Citywide Spine Trail

Proposed Citywide Spine Trail

Existing Local Connector Trail

City Limits

Water Body

Under Design/Construction
Citywide Spine Trail

Existing Community-Wide
Connector Trail
Under Design/Construction
Community Wide Connector
Trail
Proposed Community-Wide
Connector Trail

Proposed Local Connector
Trail

Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ)



2
3

4

5

6

7 8

9a
9b

10 15

16a

17

18
19

20

22

21

232425
26

27

281b

16b16c
1c

1a

§̈¦35

§̈¦35

")36

")53

")438

")2305

")290

")1741

")36

")290

AIRPORT RD

W ADAMS AVE

N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5PE
GA

SU
S D

R

W M AVE

N S
TA

TE
 HI

GH
WA

Y 3
17

W H AVES K
EG

LE
Y R

D

E ADAMS AVE

INDUSTRIAL BLVD

N 1
5T

H S
T

S 3
1S

T S
T

W NUGENT AVE

NE H K DODGEN LOOPCE
AR

LE
Y R

D

EB
ER

HA
RD

T R
D

LO
WE

R 
TR

OY
 R

D

E H AVE

N 3
1S

T S
T

W CENTRAL AVE

RA
NG

E R
D

N 4
2N

D S
T

HOGAN RD

HOPI TRL

N 3
RD

 ST

S 4
3R

D 
ST

N K
EG

LE
Y R

D

S 1
ST

 ST

S 2
4T

H 
ST

20
5 LOOP

N 5
0T

H S
T

FM 2483

HILLCREST RD
E S HELL AVE

WILDFLOWER LN

NORTH POINT RD

ST
 AN

DR
EW

S P
L

S P
EA

 R
ID

GE
 R

D

N 
IN

TE
RSTATE 35

W L AVE

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

N  
GE

NE
RA

L B
RU

CE
 D

R

E C AVE

AIR
P O

R T
 TR

L

W I AVE

N 7
TH

 ST

E B AVE

MOORES MILL RD

MOUSER RD

TARVER DR

N 
MA

IN
 S

T

E A AVE

N 5
TH

 ST

W P AVE

N 8
TH

 ST

S GENERAL BRUCE DR

HILLIARD RD

WE
ND

LA
ND

 R
D

W F AVE

CEDAR CREEK RD

N 1
1T

H 
ST

W H AVE

N 3
RD

 ST

S M
AIN

 ST

POISON OAK RD

E DOWNS AVE

N 4
TH

 ST

ST
AR

LIG
HT

 D
R

W J AVE

RID
GE

WA
Y

KELLER R D

AN
TELOPE TRL

N 1
2T

H 
ST

S 3
9T

H 
ST

S 2
3R

D 
ST

S 2
ND

 ST

W C AVE

OLD HOWAR
D R

D

LITTLE MEXICO RD

S 1
4T

H 
ST

OL
AF

 D
R

DEER TRL

ADAMS LN

S 4
TH

 ST

S 7
TH

 ST

S 1
8T

H 
ST

S 3
4T

H 
ST

W B AVE

OR
IO

N 
DR

FILLY LN

S 1
ST

 S
T

E I AVE

WILSONART DR

WHISPERING OAKS

MILLER SPRING RD

CE
NT

ER
 S

T

E G AVE

CE
DA

R 
LN

PEPPER CREEK RD

PIM
A

WILD BUC K RUN

W E AVE

SKYVIEW

E SHELL AVE

WE
ST

FIE
LD

 B
LV

DALABAMA AVE

HOGAN RD

FO X T RL

W N AVECO
MM

ER

C E ST

SUNSET TRL

BRANDON DR

N 1
8T

H 
ST

BR
AC

KE
N

VIL
LA

GE
 W

AY

ED
GE

HI
LL

1S
T S

T

IOWA AVE

GEORGIA AVE

STONEHAM

DE
W

BE
RR

Y L
N

BR
EW

ST
ER

 R
D

KLEIN DR

BU
RN

S A
VE

BR
EW

ST
ER

 R
D

W E AVE

AIR
PO

RT
 TR

L

HILLIAR D RD

N 1
1T

H 
ST

BELTON

MORGANS POINT RESORT

TROY

Existing Citywide Spine Trail
Under Design/Construction
Citywide Spine Trail
Proposed Citywide Spine Trail
Existing Community-Wide
Connector Trail
Under Design/Construction
Community-Wide Connector
Trail
Proposed Community-Wide
Connector Trail
Existing Local Connector Trail
Proposed Local Connector
Trail
City Limits
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ)
Water Body

DISCLAIMER: GIS products are for
informational purposes and may not
have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering,or surveying
purposes.  They do not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represent
only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

.
0 1 20.5

Miles
MAP PREPARED: September 10, 2012

Trails
Master Plan

2
3

4

5

6

7 8

9a
9b

10 15

16a

17

18
19

20

22

21

232425
26

27

281b

16b16c
1c

1a

§̈¦35

§̈¦35

")36

")53

")438

")2305

")290

")1741

")36

")290

AIRPORT RD

W ADAMS AVE

N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5PE
GA

SU
S D

R

W M AVE

N S
TA

TE
 HI

GH
WA

Y 3
17

W H AVES K
EG

LE
Y R

D
E ADAMS AVE

INDUSTRIAL BLVD

N 1
5T

H S
T

S 3
1S

T S
T

W NUGENT AVE

NE H K DODGEN LOOPCE
AR

LE
Y R

D

EB
ER

HA
RD

T R
D

E H AVE

LO
WE

R 
TR

OY
 R

D

N 3
1S

T S
T

W CENTRAL AVE

RA
NG

E R
D

N 4
2N

D S
T

HOGAN RD

HOPI TRL

N 3
RD

 ST

S 4
3R

D 
ST

N K
EG

LE
Y R

D

S 1
ST

 ST

S 2
4T

H 
ST

20
5 LOOP

N 5
0T

H S
T

FM 2483

HILLCREST RD
E S HELL AVE

WILDFLOWER LN

NORTH POINT RD

ST
 AN

DR
EW

S P
L

S P
EA

 R
ID

GE
 R

D

N I
NT

ER

STATE 35

W L AVE

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

N 
GE

NE
RA

L B
RU

CE
 D

R

E C AVE

A IR
P O

R T
 TR

L

W I AVE

N 7
TH

 ST

E B AVE

MOORES MILL RD
MOUSER RD

TARVER DR

N 
MA

IN
 S

T

E A AVE

N 5
TH

 ST

W P AVES GENERAL BRUCE DR

N 8
TH

 ST

HILLIARD RD

WE
ND

LA
ND

 R
D

W F AVE

CEDAR CREEK RD

N 1
1T

H 
ST

W H AVE

N 3
RD

 ST

S M
AIN

 ST

POISON OAK RD

E DOWNS AVE

N 4
TH

 ST

ST
AR

LIG
HT

 D
R

W J AVE

RID
GE

WA
Y

KELLER R D

AN
TE

LOPE TRL

N 1
2T

H 
ST

S 3
9T

H 
ST

S 2
3R

D 
ST

S 2
ND

 ST

W C AVE

OLD HOWAR
D R

D

LITTLE MEXICO RD

S 1
4T

H 
ST

OL
AF

 D
R

DEER TRL

ADAMS LN

S 4
TH

 ST

S 1
8T

H 
STS 7

TH
 ST

S 3
4T

H 
ST

W B AVE

OR
IO

N 
DR

FILLY LN

S 1
ST

 ST

E I AVE

WILSONART DR

WHISPERING OAKS

MILLER SPRING RD

CE
NT

ER
 S

T

E G AVE

CE
DA

R 
LN

PEPPER CREEK RD

PIM
A

WILD BUC K RUN

W E AVE

SKYVIEW

E SHELL AVE

WE
ST

FIE
LD

 B
LV

DALABAMA AVE

HOGAN RD

FO X T RL

W N AVECO
MM

ER

CE ST

SUNSET TRL

BRANDON DR

N 1
8T

H 
ST

BR
AC

KE
N

VIL
LA

GE
 W

AY

ED
GE

HI
LL

1S
T S

T

IOWA AVE

GEORGIA AVE

STONEHAM
DE

W
BE

RR
Y L

N

BR
EW

ST
ER

 R
D

KLEIN DR

BU
RN

S A
VE

BR
EW

ST
ER

 R
D

W E AVE

N 1
1T

H 
ST

HILLIAR D RD

AIR
PO

RT
 TR

L
BELTON

MORGANS POINT RESORT

TROY

Proposed Amendments
(1 of 2)



3

4

5

6

7 8

9a
9b

10

11a 12
13

14

15

16a

17

18
19

20

21

11b

281b

16b16c
1c

§̈¦35

§̈¦35

")290

")36

")817

")438

")1741

")2305

")290

£¤190

S 3
1S

T S
T

S 5
TH

 ST

W ADAMS AVE

S INTERSTATE 35

AIRPORT RD

W M AVE
E H AVE

W H AVE

S 1
ST

 ST

S K
EG

LE
Y R

D

E ADAMS AVE

W FM 93

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

N 1
5T

H S
T

SE H K DODGEN LO
OP

S 2
4T

H 
ST

W NUGENT AVE

MIDWAY DR

HIC
KO

RY
 RD

W R AVE

S 4
3R

D 
ST

CE
AR

LE
Y R

D

N 3
1S

T S
T

LO
WE

S D
R

S 3
0T

H 
ST

N 4
2N

D S
T

HOPI TRL

SCOTT BLVD

CASE RD

TOWER RD

DAIRY RD

SH
AL

LOW FORD RD

20
5 LOOP

HILLCREST RD

WATERS DAIRY RD

COTTONWOOD LN

STRATFORD DR

KTON RD

S 3
RD

 ST

E KILLEN LN

GUN
 CL

UB R
D

S 4
1S

T S
T

THORNTON LN

S P
EA

 R
ID

GE
 R

D

W FM 93

W L AVE

S 9
TH

 ST

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

N 
13

TH
 ST

E C AVE

CHARTER OAK DR

W I AVE

N 7
TH

 ST

E B AVE E A AVE

W P AVE

N 8
TH

 ST

HILLIARD RD

W F AVE

S M
AIN

 STW H AVE

S 7
TH

 ST

S 3
7T

H 
ST

S 3
9T

H 
ST

N 9
TH

 ST
S 4

TH
 ST

E DOWNS AVE

N 4
TH

 ST

FO REST TRL

W J AVE

KELL ER R D

S 3
4T

H 
ST

AN
TE

LOPE TRL

S 2
3R

D 
S T

S 1
8T

H 
ST

PECAN DR

TARVER DR OL
AF

 D
R

DEER TRL

S 1
0T

H 
ST

S 4
9T

H 
ST

N 1
4T

H 
ST

HEMLOCK BLV D

S 2
9T

H 
ST

E I AVE

ELM DR

N 2
3R

D 
ST

LARK TRL

S 2
1S

T S
T

EVERTON DR

W T AVE

WHISPERING OAKS N 
GE

NE
RA

L  B
RU

CE
 DR

W R AVE

E G AVE

E K AVE

LO
WE

S D
R

FA
IR

 H
ILL

 D
R

ENTERPRISE RD

PIM
A

LINWOOD RD

W E AVE
E E AVE

BUTTERFLY DR

WE
ST

FIE
LD

 B
LV

DALABAMA AVE

LO
NG

HO
RN

 TR
L

DE E RFIE L D D
R

W V AVE

TE
XA

S

SW
 W

ES
T L

OO
P

CO
MM

ER

CE ST

WI
TT

ER
 LN

BAKER BLVD

PA
ND

A D
R

BRANDON DR

WI
ND

CL
IFF

 DR

N 1
8T

H 
ST

HO
PK

IN
S 

DR

DO
GW

OO
D 

LN

W PARK AVE

CHERRY LN

KACIE DR

VIL
LA

GE
 W

AY

OXF
ORD DR

N 2
7T

H 
ST

SU
N 

VA
LL

EY
 D

R

E N AVE

NA
PL

ES
 DR

HU
NT

IN
GT

ON
 D

R

S 30TH ST

NAIRM LN

S 1
3T

H 
ST

BELTON

Existing Citywide Spine Trail
Under Design/Construction
Citywide Spine Trail
Proposed Citywide Spine Trail
Existing Community-Wide
Connector Trail
Under Design/Construction
Community-Wide Connector
Trail
Proposed Community-Wide
Connector Trail
Existing Local Connector Trail
Proposed Local Connector
Trail
City Limits
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ)
Water Body

DISCLAIMER: GIS products are for
informational purposes and may not
have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering,or surveying
purposes.  They do not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represent
only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

.
0 1 20.5

Miles
MAP PREPARED: September 10, 2012

Trails
Master Plan

3

4

5

6

7 8

9a
9b

10

11a 12
13

14

15

16a

17

18
19

20

21

11b

281b

16b16c
1c

§̈¦35

§̈¦35

")290

")36

")817

")438

")1741

")2305

")290

£¤190

S 3
1S

T S
T

S 5
TH

 ST

W ADAMS AVE

S INTERSTATE 35

AIRPORT RD

W M AVE
E H AVE

W H AVE

S 1
ST

 ST

S K
EG

LE
Y R

D

E ADAMS AVE

W FM 93

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

N 1
5T

H S
T

SE H K DODGEN LO
OP

S 2
4T

H 
ST

W NUGENT AVE

MIDWAY DR

HIC
KO

RY
 RD

W R AVE

S 4
3R

D 
ST

CE
AR

LE
Y R

D

N 3
1S

T S
T

LO
WE

S D
R

S 3
0T

H 
ST

N 4
2N

D S
T

HOPI TRL

SCO TT BLVD

N K
EG

LE
Y R

D
CASE RD

TOWER RD

DAIRY RD

SH
AL

LOW FORD RD

205 LOOP HILLCREST RD

WATERS DAIRY RD

COTTONWOOD LN

STRATFORD DR

KTON RD

S 3
RD

 ST

E KILLEN LN

GUN
 CL

UB R
D

THORNTON LN

S P
EA

 R
ID

GE
 R

D

W FM 93

W L AVE

S 9
TH

 ST

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

N 
13

TH
 ST

E C AVE

CHARTER OAK DR

W I AVE

N 7
TH

 ST

E B AVE E A AVE

W P AVE

N 8
TH

 ST

HILLIARD RD

W F AVE

S M
AIN

 STW H AVE

S 7
TH

 ST

S 3
7T

H 
ST

S 
39

TH
 ST

N 9
TH

 ST
S 4

TH
 ST

E DOWNS AVE

N 4
TH

 ST

FO REST TRL

W J AVE

KELL ER R D

S 3
4T

H 
ST

AN
TE

LOPE TRL

S 2
3R

D 
ST

S 1
8T

H 
ST

TARVER DR

PECAN DR

OL
AF

 D
R

DEER TRL

S 1
0T

H 
ST

S 4
9T

H 
ST

N 1
4T

H 
ST

BR
OO

KS
 D

R

H EMLO CK BLV D

S 2
9T

H 
ST

E I AVE

ELM DR

LARK TRL

S 2
1S

T S
T

EVERTON DR

W T AVE

WHISPERING OAKS N 
GE

NE
RA

L  B
RU

CE
 DR

W R AVE

E G AVE

E K AVE

LO
WE

S D
R

FA
IR

 H
ILL

 D
R

ENTERPRISE RD

PIM
A

LINWOOD RD

W E AVE
E E AVE

BUTTERFLY DR

WE
ST

FIE
LD

 B
LV

DALABAMA AVE

LO
NG

HO
RN

 TR
L

DE E RFIE L D D
R

W V AVE

TE
XA

S

SW
 W

ES
T L

OO
P

CO
MM

ER

CE ST

WI
TT

ER
 LN

BAKER BLVD

PA
ND

A D
R

BRANDON DR

WI
ND

CL
IFF

 DR

N 1
8T

H 
ST

HO
PK

IN
S 

DR

DO
GW

OO
D 

LN

W PARK AVE

CHERRY LN

KACIE DR

VIL
LA

GE
 W

AY

OXF
ORD DR

SU
N 

VA
LL

EY
 D

R

E N AVE

NA
PL

ES
 DR

HU
NT

IN
GT

ON
 D

R

S 30TH ST

NAIRM LN

S 1
3T

H 
ST

BELTON

Proposed Amendments

Existing Trails Master Plan

Proposed Trails Master Plan

(2 of 2)



§̈¦35

§̈¦35

")290

")36

")53

")817

")438

")2305

")1741

")290

")36")2305

")2305

£¤190

W ADAMS AVE

AIRPORT RD

S 3
1S

T S
T

S 5
TH

 ST

S INTERSTATE 35

N S
TA

TE
 HI

GH
WA

Y 3
17

N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5PE
GA

SU
S D

R

W M AVE
E H AVE

W H AVE

S 1
ST

 ST

S K
EG

LE
Y R

D

E ADAMS AVE

NE H K DODGEN LOOP

W FM 93

SW H K DODGEN L OOP

NW H K DODGEN LOOP

FM 1237

INDUSTRIAL BLVD

N 1
5T

H S
T

SE H K DODGEN LO
OP

FM
 22

71

S 2
4T

H 
ST

W NUGENT AVE

MIDWAY DR

HIC
KO

RY
 RD

W R AVE

CE
AR

LE
Y R

D

S 4
3R

D 
ST

EB
ER

HA
RD

T R
D

PRAIRIE VIEW RD

LO
WE

R 
TR

OY
 R

D

S WHITEHALL RD

N 3
1S

T S
T

S 5
7T

H S
T

RA
NG

E R
D

W D AVE

LO
WE

S D
R

S 3
0T

H 
ST

N 4
2N

D S
T

HOGAN RD

HOPI TRL

N 3
RD

 ST

SCOTT BLVD

N K
EG

LE
Y R

D

CASE RD

HA
RT

RIC
K B

LU
FF

 RD

TOWER RD

N P
EA

 RI
DG

E R
D

DAIRY RD

SH
AL

LOW FORD RD

CA
NY

ON CREEK DR

205 LOOP

SAULSBURY DR

E BLACKLAND RD

AP
ACH

E D
R

FM 2483

HILLCREST RD

BIR
DC

RE
EK

 DR

WATERS DAIRY RD

BA
TT

LE DR

E S HELL AVE

COTTONWOOD LN

WILDFLOWER LN

S 49
TH ST

KTON RD

S 3
RD

 ST

MOFFAT RD

E NUGENT AVE

THORNTON LN

E ZENITH AVE

S P
EA

 R
ID

GE
 R

D

SE H K DODGEN LOOP

W FM 93

N P
EA

 R
ID

GE
 R

D

N INTERST ATE 35

E H AVE
S INTERSTATE 35 W L AVE

SW H K DODGEN LOOP
CHARTER OAK DR

S 9
TH

 ST

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

N 1
3T

H 
ST

N 
GE

NE
RA

L B
RU

CE
 DR

E C AVE

AIR
P O

RT
 T

RL

W I AVE

N 7
TH

 ST

E B AVE

MOORES MILL RD
MOUSER RD

BR
EW

ST
ER

 R
D

TARVER DR

N M
AIN

 ST

E A AVE

N 5
TH

 ST

W P AVE

N 8
TH

 ST

S 1
9T

H 
ST

HI
LLI

ARD RD

WE
ND

LA
ND

 R
D

W F AVE

CEDAR CREEK RD

S M
AIN

 ST
N 1

1T
H 

ST

W H AVE

S 7
TH

 ST

N 3
RD

 ST

S 3
7T

H 
ST

S 
39

TH
 ST

POISON OAK RD

N 9
TH

 ST
S 4

TH
 ST

E DOWNS AVEN 4
TH

 ST

ST
AR

LIG
HT

 D
R

FO REST TRL

W J AVE

RID
GE

WA
Y

KELLE R RD

WILD BOY S RUN

S 3
4T

H 
ST

ANTELOPE TRL

N 1
2T

H 
ST

MCLANE PKW
Y

S 
23

RD
 ST

W A AVE

S 1
8T

H 
ST

S 5
1S

T S
T

OLD HOWAR
D R

D

PECAN DR

LITTLE M EXICO RD

S 1
4T

H 
ST

OL
AF

 D
R

DEER TRL

ADAMS LN

S 1
0T

H 
ST

S P
EA

 R
IDG

E R
D

S 4
9T

H 
ST

W Z AVE

JUPITER DR

EAGLE LANDING DR

SLOUGH DR

BR
OO

KS
 D

R

H EMLOCK BLVD

OR
IO

N 
DR

E I AVE

S 5
5T

H S
T

ELM DR

WILSONART DR

S 2
1S

T S
T

BUCKSKIN
 TRL

EVERTON DR

W T AVE

MILLER SPRING RD

CE
NT

ER
 S

T

S T
ON

EH
AV

EN

 DR

W R AVE

E G AVE

CE
DA

R 
LN

E K AVE

CO
AS

TA
L D

R

PEPPER CREEK RD

LO
WE

S D
R

FA
IR

 H
ILL

 D
R

PIM
A

HONEYSUCKLE

WILD BUC K RUN W E AVE

VENUS DR
SKYVIEW

KI
MI

 LN

KA
SB

ER
G 

DR

N 
17

TH
 S

T

E SHELL AVE

E MUNROE AVE

BUTTERFLY DR
DE ERFIEL D 

DR

W V AVE

HOGAN RD

SW
 W

ES
T L

OO
P

F OX T RL

INVERNESS RD

CO
MM

ER

C E ST

WI
TT

ER
 LN

E XAVIER AVE

OLD WACO LN

S 5
7T

H 
ST

SUNSET TRL

PA
ND

A D
R

WI
ND

CL
IFF

 DR

HO
PK

IN
S 

DR

CRYER LN

S 5
3R

D 
ST

LA
ND

FIL
L R

D

J I
 BR

UC
E D

R

LIG
HT

NE
R 

LN

TRENTON DR

CHERRY LN

KACIE DR

VIL
LA

GE
 W

AY

INDIAN TRL

ED
GE

HI
LL

IOWA AVE

CYPRESS ST

SU
N 

VA
LL

EY
 D

R

E N AVE

NA
PL

ES
 DR

LA
S C

OL
IN

AS
 D

R

CHURCH ST

E F AVE

S 30TH ST

STONEHAM

SYCAMORE ST

E KING AVE

PA
LO

MI
NO

 DR

N 
49

TH
 S

T

H I
LL

IAR
D  

RD

W T AVE

E B AVE

AIR
PO

RT
 TR

L

BELTON

TROY

MORGANS POINT RESORT

LITTLE RIVER

DISCLAIMER: GIS products are for
informational purposes and may not
have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering,or surveying
purposes.  They do not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represent
only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

.
0 1 20.5

Miles
MAP PREPARED: September 7, 2012

Proposed Trails
Master Plan

Existing Citywide Spine Trail

Proposed Citywide Spine Trail

Existing Local Connector Trail

City Limits

Water Body

Under Design/Construction
Citywide Spine Trail

Existing Community-Wide
Connector Trail
Under Design/Construction
Community Wide Connector
Trail
Proposed Community-Wide
Connector Trail

Proposed Local Connector
Trail

Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ)



EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2012 
 
ACTION ITEMS 

Item 6: Z-FY-12-53  Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on an 
amendment to the City Wide Trails Master Plan. 

Ms. Zendt stated the Trails Master Plan was originally adopted in 2010. Several cleanups and 
revisions resulting from revisions to the Thoroughfare Plan, changes related to transportation 
CIPs, 1st and 3rd Street overlay, lack of connectivity, etc. 

Two comprehensive maps are shown regarding approximately 35 changes. Ms. Zendt covered 
the largest revisions: 

 1A – Add a 14,370 foot segment along Airport Road; 
 21 – Remove approximately 11,000 feet along Industrial Boulevard; 

23 – Remove approximately 16,000 square feet of trail along HK Dodgen Loop located 
in an industrial park; 

 11B – Elimination of 14,000 feet on FM 93 to Fawn Meadows Road; 
 13 – Eliminate 10,000 feet along Case Road; and 
 27 – Adding 30,000 feet to the Outer Loop (Lower Troy/HK Dodgen Loop). 

Staff recommends approval of these amendments to the Trails Plan and adopt the new Plan. 

Chair Staats opened the public hearing. 

There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Vice-Chair Sears made a motion to approve Item 6, Z-FY-12-53, as recommended by Staff 
and Commissioner Jones made a second. 

Motion passed:  (8:0) 
Commissioner Rhoads absent 

 



 
 

1

 ORDINANCE NO.     
 

[PLANNING NO. Z-FY-12-53] 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2010-5971-R, THE CITYWIDE TRAILS 
MASTER PLAN; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 

Whereas, on March 4, 2010, the City Council adopted, by Resolution No. 2010-5971-R, 
the Citywide Trails Master Plan to implement community-wide mobility goals and objectives 
identified in the Choices’08, City of Temple Comprehensive Plan - since that, staff has identified 
multiple revisions and amendments; 

 
Whereas, the Citywide Trails Master Plan is used by staff to require upsizing of certain 

sidewalks (with oversize participation agreements) and for requiring right-of-way dedication and 
construction of trails for certain development projects; 
 

Whereas, this strategy for implementation necessitates adoption of the Citywide Master 
Trails Plan by Ordinance rather than by Resolution – by adopting this Ordinance, the City will 
also establish consistency with the adoption and amendment process for the thoroughfare plan 
which addresses motorized mobility much in the same way the Citywide Trails Master Plan 
address non-motorized mobility; 
 

Whereas, this adopted plan, as outlined in Exhibit A attached hereto, will assist the City 
in implementing the community-wide mobility goals set forth in the Comprehensive Plan and in 
demonstrating the City’s commitment to a multi-modal transportation network for future 
mobility enhancement grant opportunities; and  

 
Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, after public notice as required 

by law, has at a public hearing, carefully considered all the evidence and has heard comments 
and evidence presented by all persons supporting or opposing this requested amendment at said 
public hearing, and after examining the conditions, finds that the proposed amendments complies 
with the comprehensive plan and are adopted by the City Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves an amendment to Resolution No. 2010-5971-R, 
originally adopted on March 4, 2010, as outlined in Exhibit A attached hereto, which will 
establishe consistency with the adoption and amendment process for the thoroughfare plan which 
addresses motorized mobility. 

 
Part 2: The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the 

preamble of this ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative 
provisions hereof. 

 



 
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
Part 3: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly 
so ordained. 
 

Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 4th day of 
October, 2012. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 18th day of October, 2012. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

_______________________________ 
WILLIAM A. JONES, III Mayor 
 
 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________   ______________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

  
 
            

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  
 

 
10/04/12 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
                           Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Autumn Speer, Director of Community Services 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-12-54:  Consider adopting an 
ordinance amending Ordinance 2008-4230, the Choices ’08, City of Temple Comprehensive Plan, 
Chapter 5, to amend the Thoroughfare Plan Map. 
 
 
P&Z COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At its meeting on September 17, 2012, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted 8:0 (Commissioner Rhoads was absent), in accordance with the Staff 
recommendation, to recommend approval the amended Thoroughfare Plan Map. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance on first reading as 
presented in item description, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for October 18, 
2012.  
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  On September 4, 2008, the City of Temple adopted the Choices ’08, City of 
Temple Comprehensive Plan. With that plan, the City adopted a Thoroughfare Plan Map, a 
companion document to Chapter 5 which addressed transportation. The Thoroughfare Plan Map is 
intended as a guide for roadway network expansion and improvement.  Care was taken in the 
development of the plan to ensure that designated routes follow existing roadway alignments, parcel 
boundaries, and topography as much as possible. Nevertheless, available funding, changing 
development patterns, city growth, right-of-way availability, and subsequent roadway realignments 
necessitate occasional revisions to ensure the map reflects current and projected transportation 
patterns and connectivity.  
 
Planning staff has worked closely with Public Works staff to identify changes, based on updates to 
the City’s Capital Improvements Plan project list and other developments, which impact the overall 
transportation network. Staff anticipates a more comprehensive review of the Thoroughfare Plan Map 
and additional proposed amendments in upcoming months.  
 
The following table summarizes the proposed amendments to the Thoroughfare Plan Map identified 
by staff: 
 



 

 
 
 

10/04/12 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

Thoroughfare Plan Proposed Amendments 
# Name/ 

Classification 
Action Segment 

Description 
Reason for Change 

1 Kegley Road – 
Proposed  
Minor Arterial 

Reclassified 
to 
Proposed 
Collector 

Approx. 2.35 
miles  from West 
Adams to Charter 
Oak Drive 

As a future Major Arterial, the proposed 
Outer Loop will provide sufficient parallel 
capacity and north-south connectivity.   

2 Tarver Road – 
Proposed 
Minor Arterial 

Reclassified 
to 
Proposed 
Collector 

Approx. 1.31 
miles from Hills of 
Westwood 
Subdivision to 
Kegley Road. 

This section will not likely be constructed as 
an Arterial Street due to availability of 
funding. 

3 Tarver Road – 
Proposed 
Minor Arterial  

Reclassified 
to Existing 
Collector 

Approx. 1.3 miles 
from State HWY 
317 to Hills of 
Westwood 
Subdivision. 

Although the section from State HWY 317 to 
S. Pea Ridge Rd has  been constructed as 
an Arterial Street,  it is anticipated that 
remaining sections, both existing and 
proposed,  will be (or will remain) Collector 
Streets providing for an overall Collector 
Street classification.  

4 S. Pea Ridge 
Road – 
Proposed  
Minor Arterial 

Reclassified 
to Existing 
Collector 

Approx. 3,170 ft  
from W. Adams 
Ave. to Tarver 
Road 

Most existing sections of this road are 
constructed as a Collector Street providing 
for an overall Collector Street classification. 

5 S. Pea Ridge 
Road – 
Proposed  
Minor Arterial 

Reclassified 
to 
Proposed 
Collector 

Approx. 1,700 ft. 
from Tarver Road 
to Hogan Road  

This existing section will likely be widened to 
Collector Street width.  

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Thoroughfare Plan Map- Existing 
Thoroughfare Plan Map- Proposed Changes 
Thoroughfare Plan Map- Proposed 
P&Z Excerpts 
Ordinance 

 
  



!

O O
O

!

O
O O !

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!O

!

!

!

O
O

O

§̈¦35

§̈¦35

")290

")36

")53

")817

")438

")2305

")1741

")290

")36")2305

")2305

£¤190

W ADAMS AVE

AIRPORT RD

S 3
1S

T S
T

S INTERSTATE 35

N S
TA

TE
 HI

GH
WA

Y 3
17 N I

NT
ER

ST
AT

E 3
5

S 5
TH

 ST

PE
GA

SU
S D

R

W M AVE
E H AVE

W H AVE

S 1
ST

 ST

S K
EG

LE
Y R

D

E ADAMS AVE

W FM 93

NW
 H K DODGEN LOOP

FM 1237

INDUSTRIAL BLVD

N 1
5T

H S
T

SE H K D O DG
EN

 LO
OP

FM
 22

71

S 2
4T

H S
T

W NUGENT AVE

MIDWAY DR

HIC
KO

RY
 RD

W R AVES 4
3R

D 
ST

PRAIRIE VIEW RD

LO
WE

R 
TR

OY
 R

D

S WHITEHALL RD

S 5
7T

H S
T

W CENTRAL AVE
W D AVE

LO
WE

S D
R

S 3
0T

H 
ST

N 4
2N

D S
THOGAN RD

HOPI TRL

TOW ER RD

20
5 LOOP

SAULSBURY DR

KTON RD

N 1
4T

H S
T

S P
EA

 R
ID

GE
 R

D

W FM 93
S GENERAL BRUCE DR

CHARTER OAK DR

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

N GENERAL BRUCE DR

E C AVE

AIR
PO

RT
 TR

L

N 
7T

H 
ST

MOORES MILL RDMOUSER RD

BR
EW

ST
ER

 R
D

TARVER DR

N M
AIN

 ST

E A AVE

N 8
TH

 ST

HI
LL

IARD RD

WE
ND

LA
ND

 R
D

S M
AIN

 ST

S 3
7T

H 
ST

POISON OAK RD

E DOWNS AVE

N 4
TH

 ST

ST
ARL I

GH
T D

R
FORES T TRL

RID
GE

WA
Y

W ILD BOYS RUN

S 6
TH

 ST

MCLANE PKW
Y

S 5
1S

T S
T

OLD HOWAR
D R

D

LITTLE MEXICO RD

DEE R TRL

ADAMS LN

S 4
9T

H 
ST

JUPITER  DR

EAGLE LANDING DR

SLOUGH DR

BR
OO

KS
 D

R

H EMLOCK BL VD

E I AVE
LARK TRL

PIN OAK DR

ST
ON

EH
AV

EN
 DR

CO
AS

TA
L D

R

PEPPER CREEK RD

HONEYSUCKLE

S 1
2T

H 
ST

W E AVE

BUFFALO TRL

LO
OP D

R

BUTTERFLY DR

ALABAMA AVE

PRIVATE DR

WI
TT

ER
 LN

STADIUM RD

PA
ND

A D
R

N 1
8T

H 
ST

DO
GW

OO
D 

LN

OKLAHOMA

S 1
3T

H 
ST

AIR
PO

RT
 TR

L

BELTON

TROY

LITTLE RIVER

MORGANS POINT RESORT

SALADO

THOROUGHFARE
PLAN

DISCLAIMER: GIS products are for
informational purposes and may not
have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering,or surveying
purposes.  They do not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represent
only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

.
0 1 20.5

Miles
MAP PREPARED: September 14, 2012

Expressway
Major Arterial
Proposed Major Arterial
Minor Arterial
Proposed Minor Arterial
Collector
Proposed Collector
Existing Railroad

Grade Separated Interchange
! ExistingO Future

City Limits
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ)
Water Body



O
O

!

O

")817

")2305

W ADAMS AVE

S K
EG

LE
Y R

D

S INTERSTAT
E 35 MIDWAY DR

HOGAN RD

N S
TA

TE
 HI

GH
WA

Y 3
17

N K
EG

LE
Y R

D

BATTLE DR

20
5 L

OO
P

WILDFLOWER LN SU
NF

LO
WE

R 
LN

GI
LL

ME
IST

ER
 LN

S PEA RIDGE RD

SUNFLOWER LN

S INTERSTATE 35

S P
EA

 RI
DG

E R
D

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

TARVER DR

CHARTER OAK DR

POISON OAK RD

S GENERAL BRUCE DR

RID
GE

WA
Y

W
I LD BOYS RU N

ADAMS LN

S P
EA

 R
IDG

E R
D

JUPITER DR

BR
OO

KS
 D

R

CE
DA

R 
RD

OAK HILLS DRTRAILRIDGE DR

CE
DA

R 
LN

CO
AS

TA
L D

R

HONEYSUCKLE

W IL D BUCK RUN

VENUS DR

SKYVIEW

KA
SB

ER
G 

DR

KIM
I L

N

HIL
LIA

RD
 R

D

RICKEY DR

HOGAN RD

STARVIEW ST

KE
GL

EY
 LN

PR
OF

IT 
PL

OLD WACO LN

SUNSET TRL

BRANDON DR

FREEDOM DR

KEVIN DR

BRIAR CL IFF RD

LAUREL RIDGE

ME
AD

OW
BR

OO
K D

R

PE
CA

N 
V A

LL
EY

 DR

OA
KR

ID
GE

 D
R

SU
ND

AN
CE

 D
R

REDBRUSH
IOWA AVE

EAGLE RD

CA
RR

IA
GE

 H
OU

SE
 D

R

MO
NT

AN
A D

R

SAGE MEADOW DR

KANSAS AVE

W EST W
AY

 D
R

BO
NH

AM
 AV

E

PA
IN

T B
RU

SH
 LN

WILLIAMS DR

DA
IS

Y L
N

DUDLEYS DRAW DR

PA
LO

MI
NO

 DR

WE
ST

EN
D DR

DE
VIN

 DR

NE
UB

ER
RY

 C
LI F

FE

DR
Y C

RE
EK

 DR

BE
AV

ER
 LO

OP

TRAIL DR

SH
EL

TO
N D

R

RU
ST

Y 
S P

UR
 D

R

WILDCAT DR

IRON GATE
 DR

VISTA VALLEY DR

PE
NR

OS
E L

N

WIND CHIME WAY

PAPPUS CT

VA
LE

RI
E L

N

WESTW
OOD HI

LL
S B

LV
D

W
O O

D H
OL

LOW DR

CL
OV

ER
 LN

CA
ME

LIA
 LN

TANGLEHEAD DR

GALLETA CT

ST
ON

EB
RO

OK
 D

R

HURON DR

CA
ME

LO
T L

N

BLUEGRASS CT

BLUE STAR BLVD

BU
RN

HA
M 

DR

CASLER CIR

SIENNA C
V

SUNDROP LN

BL
UE

ST
EM

 C
T

FALLEN LEAF LN

SAGE VALLEY DR

SA
TU

RN
 C

IR

GUNBARREL DRWO
OD

CR
EE

K D
R

NIGHTHAWK CIR

POISON OAK RD

S GENERAL BRUCE DR

BELTON

THOROUGHFARE
PLAN

DISCLAIMER: GIS products are for
informational purposes and may not
have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering,or surveying
purposes.  They do not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represent
only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

.
0 2,000 4,0001,000

Feet
MAP PREPARED: September 14, 2012

Grade Separated Interchange
! ExistingO Future

Existing Railroad
Expressway
Major Arterial
Proposed Major Arterial
Minor Arterial
Proposed Minor Arterial
Collector
Proposed Collector
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ)
Water Body
City Limits

O
O

!

O

")817

")2305

W ADAMS AVE

S K
EG

LE
Y R

D

S INTERSTAT
E 35 MIDWAY DR

HOGAN RD

N S
TA

TE
 HI

GH
WA

Y 3
17

N K
EG

LE
Y R

D

BATTLE DR

20
5 L

OO
P

WILDFLOWER LN SU
NF

LO
WE

R 
LN

GI
LL

ME
IST

ER
 LN

S PEA RIDGE RD

SUNFLOWER LN

S INTERSTATE 35

S P
EA

 RI
DG

E R
D

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

TARVER DR

CHARTER OAK DR

POISON OAK RD

S GENERAL BRUCE DR

RID
GE

WA
Y

W
I LD BOYS RU N

ADAMS LN

S P
EA

 R
IDG

E R
D

JUPITER DR

BR
OO

KS
 D

R

CE
DA

R 
RD

OAK HILLS DRTRAILRIDGE DR

CE
DA

R 
LN

CO
AS

TA
L D

R

HONEYSUCKLE

W IL D BUCK RUN

VENUS DR

SKYVIEW

KA
SB

ER
G 

DR

KIM
I L

N

HIL
LIA

RD
 R

D

RICKEY DR

HOGAN RD

STARVIEW ST

KE
GL

EY
 LN

PR
OF

IT 
PL

OLD WACO LN

SUNSET TRL

BRANDON DR

FREEDOM DR

KEVIN DR

BRIAR CL IFF RD

LAUREL RIDGE

ME
AD

OW
BR

OO
K D

R

PE
CA

N 
V A

LL
EY

 DR

OA
KR

ID
GE

 D
R

SU
ND

AN
CE

 D
R

REDBRUSH
IOWA AVE

EAGLE RD

CA
RR

IA
GE

 H
OU

SE
 D

R

MO
NT

AN
A D

R

SAGE MEADOW DR

KANSAS AVE

W EST W
AY

 D
R

BO
NH

AM
 AV

E

PA
IN

T B
RU

SH
 LN

WILLIAMS DR

DA
IS

Y L
N

DUDLEYS DRAW DR

PA
LO

MI
NO

 DR

WE
ST

EN
D DR

DE
VIN

 DR

NE
UB

ER
RY

 C
LI F

FE

DR
Y C

RE
EK

 DR

BE
AV

ER
 LO

OP

TRAIL DR

SH
EL

TO
N D

R

RU
ST

Y 
S P

UR
 D

R

WILDCAT DR

IRON GATE
 DR

VISTA VALLEY DR

PE
NR

OS
E L

N

WIND CHIME WAY

PAPPUS CT

VA
LE

RI
E L

N

WESTW
OOD HI

LL
S B

LV
D

W
O O

D H
OL

LOW DR

CL
OV

ER
 LN

CA
ME

LIA
 LN

TANGLEHEAD DR

GALLETA CT
ST

ON
EB

RO
OK

 D
R

HURON DR
CA

ME
LO

T L
N

BLUEGRASS CT

BLUE STAR BLVD

BU
RN

HA
M 

DR

CASLER CIR

SIENNA C
V

SUNDROP LN

BL
UE

ST
EM

 C
T

FALLEN LEAF LN

SAGE VALLEY DR

SA
TU

RN
 C

IR

GUNBARREL DRWO
OD

CR
EE

K D
R

NIGHTHAWK CIR

POISON OAK RD

S GENERAL BRUCE DR

BELTON

Proposed Amendments

¬«1

¬«3

¬«2

Existing Thoroughfare Plan Proposed Thoroughfare Plan

¬«5

¬«4

¬«1

¬«3

¬«2

¬«5

¬«4

# Name/
Classification Action Segment Description Reason for Change

1 Kegley Road - 
Proposed Minor Arterial

Reclassified to 
Proposed Collector

Approx 2.35 miles from West Adams to Charter Oak 
Drive

As a future Major Arterial, the proposed Outer Loop will 
provide sufficient parallel capacity and north-south 
connectivity.

2 Tarver Road - 
Proposed Minor Arterial

Reclassified to 
Proposed Collector

Approx 1.31 miles from Hills of Westwood Subdivision
to Kegley Road

This section will not likely be constructed as an Arterial
Street due to availability of funding.

3 Tarver Road - 
Proposed Minor Arterial

Reclassified to
Existing Collector

Approx 1.3 miles from State Hwy 317 to Hills of
Westwood Subdivision

Although the section from State Hwy 317 to S Pea 
Ridge Rd has been constructed as an Arterial Street, it 
is anticipated that remaining sections, both existing and 
proposed, will be (or will remain) Collector Streets 
providing for an overall Collector Street classification.

4 S Pea Ridge Road -
Proposed Minor Arterial

Reclassified to
Existing Collector Approx 3,170 feet from W Adams Ave to Tarver Road

Most existing sections of this road are constructed as
a Collector Street providing for an overall Collector
Street classification.

5 S Pea Ridge Road -
Proposed Minor Arterial

Reclassified to
Proposed Collector Approx 1,700 feet from Tarver Road to Hogan Road This existing section will likely be widened to Collector

Street width.



!

O O
O

!

O
O O !

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!O

!

!

!

O
O

O

§̈¦35

§̈¦35

")290

")36

")53

")817

")438

")2305

")1741

")290

")36")2305

")2305

£¤190

W ADAMS AVE

AIRPORT RD

S 3
1S

T S
T

S INTERSTATE 35

N S
TA

TE
 HI

GH
WA

Y 3
17 N I

NT
ER

ST
AT

E 3
5

S 5
TH

 ST

PE
GA

SU
S D

R

W M AVE
E H AVE

W H AVE

S 1
ST

 ST

S K
EG

LE
Y R

D

E ADAMS AVE

W FM 93

NW
 H K DODGEN LOOP

FM 1237

INDUSTRIAL BLVD

N 1
5T

H S
T

SE H K D O DG
EN

 LO
OP

FM
 22

71

S 2
4T

H S
T

W NUGENT AVE

MIDWAY DR

HIC
KO

RY
 RD

W R AVES 4
3R

D 
ST

PRAIRIE VIEW RD

LO
WE

R 
TR

OY
 R

D

S WHITEHALL RD

S 5
7T

H S
T

W CENTRAL AVE
W D AVE

LO
WE

S D
R

S 3
0T

H 
ST

N 4
2N

D S
THOGAN RD

HOPI TRL

TOW ER RD

20
5 LOOP

SAULSBURY DR

KTON RD

N 1
4T

H S
T

S P
EA

 R
ID

GE
 R

D

W FM 93
S GENERAL BRUCE DR

CHARTER OAK DR

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

N GENERAL BRUCE DR

E C AVE

AIR
PO

RT
 TR

L

N 
7T

H 
ST

MOORES MILL RDMOUSER RD

BR
EW

ST
ER

 R
D

TARVER DR

N M
AIN

 ST

E A AVE

N 8
TH

 ST

HI
LL

IARD RD

WE
ND

LA
ND

 R
D

S M
AIN

 ST

S 3
7T

H 
ST

POISON OAK RD

E DOWNS AVE

N 4
TH

 ST

ST
ARL I

GH
T D

R
FORES T TRL

RID
GE

WA
Y

W ILD BOYS RUN

S 6
TH

 ST

MCLANE PKW
Y

S 5
1S

T S
T

OLD HOWAR
D R

D

LITTLE MEXICO RD

DEE R TRL

ADAMS LN

S 4
9T

H 
ST

JUPITER  DR

EAGLE LANDING DR

SLOUGH DR

BR
OO

KS
 D

R

H EMLOCK BL VD

E I AVE
LARK TRL

PIN OAK DR

ST
ON

EH
AV

EN
 DR

CO
AS

TA
L D

R

PEPPER CREEK RD

HONEYSUCKLE

S 1
2T

H 
ST

W E AVE

BUFFALO TRL

LO
OP D

R

BUTTERFLY DR

ALABAMA AVE

PRIVATE DR

WI
TT

ER
 LN

STADIUM RD

PA
ND

A D
R

N 1
8T

H 
ST

DO
GW

OO
D 

LN

OKLAHOMA

S 1
3T

H 
ST

AIR
PO

RT
 TR

L

BELTON

TROY

LITTLE RIVER

MORGANS POINT RESORT

SALADO

THOROUGHFARE
PLAN

DISCLAIMER: GIS products are for
informational purposes and may not
have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering,or surveying
purposes.  They do not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represent
only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

.
0 1 20.5

Miles
MAP PREPARED: September 14, 2012

Expressway
Major Arterial
Proposed Major Arterial
Minor Arterial
Proposed Minor Arterial
Collector
Proposed Collector
Existing Railroad

Grade Separated Interchange
! ExistingO Future

City Limits
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ)
Water Body

Proposed Amendments



EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2012 
 
ACTION ITEMS 

Item 7: Z-FY-12-54  Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on an 
amendment to Ordinance 2008-4230, the City of Temple Comprehensive Plan, 
Chapter 5, to amend the Thoroughfare Plan Map. 

Ms. Zendt stated the Thoroughfare Plan required a few cleanups with regard to changes in 
available funding, changing road patterns, city growth, right-of-way availability, and road 
realignments. The Thoroughfare Plan was adopted in 2008 and part of the Comprehensive 
Plan Choices ‘08, a companion document to Chapter 5, Transportation, and serves as the 
guide for roadway network, expansion, and improvements. 

Some of the larger realignments/reclassifications include the following: 

Kegley Road – currently proposed as a minor arterial. Staff recommends it be 
reclassified as a proposed collector. 

As a future minor arterial, the proposed Outer Loop would provide sufficient parallel 
capacity and north/south connectivity. Staff recommends it be 
reclassified as a proposed collector. 

Tarver Road – currently a minor arterial. Staff recommends it be reclassified as a 
proposed collector. 

Tarver Road – from SH 317 to the Hills of Westwood also be reclassified as a collector. 

South Pea Ridge Road – proposed as a minor collector. Staff recommends it be 
reclassified to existing collector. 

Chair Staats opened the public hearing. 

There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve Item 7, Z-FY-12-54, and Commissioner 
Harrell made a second. 

Motion passed:  (8:0) 
Commissioner Rhoads absent 

 



 1

 
 ORDINANCE NO.     

 
[PLANNING. Z-FY-12-54] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE 2008-4230, THE CHOICES 
’08, CITY OF TEMPLE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, CHAPTER 5, TO AMEND THE 
THOROUGHFARE PLAN MAP; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 
  
 
 
Whereas, on September 4, 2008, the City of Temple adopted the Choices ’08, City of Temple 

Comprehensive Plan and with that plan, the City adopted a thoroughfare plan map which addressed 
transportation and was intended as a guide for roadway network expansion and improvement. 

 
Whereas, based on updates to the City’s Capital Improvement Plan project list and other 

developments which impact the overall transportation network, staff identified changes which include 
a comprehensive review and proposed amendments. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS,   THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves an amendment to Ordinance 2008-4230, the Choices ’08, 

City of Temple Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 5, to amend the thoroughfare plan map, more fully 
described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary changes to the 
Future Land Use Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final judgment or 
decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been 
enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in accordance 
with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance is 
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



 2

 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading on the 4th day of October, 2012. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading and Public Hearing on the 15th day of 

October, 2012. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
   
            

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  
 

 
10/04/12 
Item #9  

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 6 

 
DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Autumn Speer, Director of Community Services 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   FIRST READING- PUBLIC HEARING -  Z-FY-12-60:  Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Single Family Two District (SF-2) to Two Family District (2F) 
on 16.451± acres, situated in the Maximo Moreno Survey, Abstract 14, Bell County, Texas located 
between Hartrick Bluff Road and Lowe’s Drive, south of Canyon Creek Drive.  
 
P&Z COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At its meeting on September 17, 2012, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted 8:0 (Commissioner Rhoads was absent) in accordance with the Staff 
recommendation to recommend approval of a zone change from SF-2 to 2F.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance on first reading as 
presented in item description, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for October 18, 
2012.  
 
Staff recommends approval of a rezoning from SF-2 to 2-F for the following reasons: 

1.  The request complies with the Future Land Use and Character Map;  
2.  The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; and 
3.  A combination of public and private facilities will be available to subject property. 
 

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant is requesting this change of zoning to allow development of two 
family dwellings (duplexes). A preliminary plat was approved on July 18, 2011 which depicted 127 
single-family units (average lot size of 65’ X120’) on a 29.66 acre tract that extended to Lowe’s Drive 
on the west side and Paseo Del Plata Drive on the south side. The preliminary plat exhibited a 
development pattern consistent with SF-2 zoning with an approximate density of 4.28 single-family 
units per acre.  
 
The applicant has indicated his intention to develop the subject tract in a manner consistent with the 
previously submitted preliminary plat, maintaining the proposed average lot sizes for the purpose of 
constructing two-family dwellings rather than single family dwellings. Based on the density depicted in  
 
the preliminary plat, the applicant could construct approximately 70 two-family dwelling structures 
(duplexes)/140 two-family dwelling units. 



 

10/04/12 
Item #9  

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 6 

 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table shows the subject property, existing 
zoning and current land uses: 

Direction Zoning 
Current 

Land Use Photo 

Subject 
Property AG 

Undeveloped 
Land 
Preliminary 
Platted for  
SF-2 

East -  
Taken 
across 
Hartrick 
Bluff Rd. 

2F 

Undeveloped 
Land  
Platted 
10/11– 106 
lots on 
32.145 acres  

 



 

Direction Zoning 
Current 

Land Use Photo 

West 
Taken 
from 
Lowe’s 
Dr. 

SF-2 Undeveloped 

North O2 Undeveloped 



 

Direction Zoning 
Current 

Land Use Photo 

South 
Taken 
from 
Paseo 
Del Plata 

SF2 

Undeveloped 
– part of 
previously 
submitted 
preliminary 
plat 

 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Site Conditions Compliance 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and 

Character (FLUP) 
The subject property has been identified as 
Auto- Urban Residential which is compatible 
with 2F zoning.

Y 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  

Proposed access will be on Hartrick Bluff Road, 
a proposed/existing collector street (Hartrick 
Bluff Road is not fully constructed at this time). 
Local streets are not shown on the 
Thoroughfare Plan. Hartrick Bluff Road will 
provide sufficient capacity to serve the proposed 
use.

Y 

CP 

Goal 4.1 - Growth and 
development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s 
infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

The subject property is served by an 8” water 
line on the northeast corner of the subject tract 
and by and a 10” sewer line on the northwest 
corner of subject site. Both are accessible from 
the subject tract. 

Y 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map & 
sidewalks 

The Plan does not reflect a trail in or 
surrounding the subject tract. A sidewalk is 
required along one side of Hartrick Bluff Rd. 

Y 

 CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan
 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: According to the City of Temple Comprehensive Plan, Auto–
Urban Residential land use is characterized by either site-built homes on small lots or higher density 
residential uses. The Comprehensive Plan states that Auto-Urban Residential land uses may include 
garden/patio homes, two-family dwellings and townhouses, provided that an increase in open space 
is coupled with an increase in density.  



 

10/04/12 
Item #9  

Regular Agenda 
Page 5 of 6 

 
The following uses are permitted by right under the existing Single Family-2 (SF-2) zoning district: 
 

• Industrialized Housing; and 
• Single Family Detached Dwelling. 

 
The following residential uses are permitted by right in the proposed Two-Family (2F) zoning 
district:  
 

• Industrialized Housing; 
• Single- Family Attached Dwelling; 
• Single Family Detached Dwelling; 
• Duplex (two family dwelling); and  
• Zero-lot–line dwelling 

 
Prohibited uses include manufactured home subdivisions, multi-family, patio home, recreational 
vehicle park, and townhouses. Dimensional standards are as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

10/04/12 
Item #9  

Regular Agenda 
Page 6 of 6 

 
 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Two notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent out 
to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City 
Ordinance. As of September 21, 2012, no notices were returned either in favor or against the 
proposed change of zoning. 
 
The newspaper printed notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing on September 
6, 2012, in accordance with state law and local ordinance.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Zoning and Location Map 
Future Land Use and Character Map    
200’ Buffer Notification Map 
Thoroughfare Plan and Utility Map
P&Z Excerpts   
Ordinance 

 
  



504
510

516
522602

608614
620

626630634 505511
517523

603609
615621625629

631

504510
516522

602
608

614620
626

630 505511517523
603609

615619
621

504510516
522602608614

620
505

511
517603609613

615 504510
516602

608614

509515
521

609
615

621

62
0

61
4

60
8

60
2

52
0

51
4

50
8

50
2

607
613

617621
627631

635

409

927

931

930

921

922926930

915

916

808
816820

45
09

43
03

43
09

43
15

43
21

44
03

44
09

44
21

45
15

45
21

46
03

46
09

46
21

44
19

441
3

440
94

33
1

442
0

450
4

45
12

46
16

46
08

45
24

1003
101110151023

1115

46
16

46
15

46
11

45
20

46
04 46
03

45
17

45
12

45
04

44
20

45
09

44
25

44
17 1009

1013
1017

4412

4408
4404 1018 1010 1006

111
0

1003
1011

10191103

1107

1108
1024 1016 10081004

4607

46
12

47
02

47
08

47
05 47
02

4601 4607 4611

4702
4704

4706
4708
4710 4707

4705
4703
4701

4605
4601

4602

45
09

SF-2

2F
AG

O-2

GR

2F

GR
NS

SFA-2

SF-3

GR

C

SF-3

726-C

726-A
726-A

726B-A 726A-B

LO
WE

S D
R

HA
RT

RIC
K 

BL
UF

F R
D

KACIE DR

KAREY DR

PASEO DEL PLATA

RIDGEVIEW DR

Z-FY-12-60 Change of Zoning SF-2 to 2F

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
0 200 400

Feet

September 10, 2012 
Temple Planning Department

LOWE'S DRIVE

KENDRA DR

CA
NY

ON
 R

ID
GE

 D
R

PASEO DEL PLATA

McLean Commercial
Hartrick Road

1234 Outblock Number Zoning Case



504510
516522602

608614
620626630634 505511517523603609615621625629631

504510516522602608614620626630 505511517523603
615619621

504510516522602608614
620

505511517603609613615 504510
516602608614

509515
521

609615621

62
0

61
4

60
8

60
2

52
0

51
4

50
8

50
2

501
511

523601
613617621627

635

409

927

931
930

921

922
930

915
916

407

716
802

808
816820

90
6

91
2

913

90
7 704 612 604 516

45
09

43
03

43
09

43
21

44
09

44
21

45
21

46
09

46
21

46
31

43
08

42
36

42
24

42
78

42
57

42
36

44
19

441
3

43
31

442
0

45
08

46
16

46
08

45
24

45
16

1003
101110231115

46
16

46
15

45
20

46
04

46
07

45
21

45
1345

12
45

04
44

20
45

05
44

21 1009
1017

44
13

4412 4408
1022 1014 1006

111
0

1003
1011

10191103

1107

1108
1024 1016 1008

4607

47
1247
06

47
05

46
12

47
02

47
08

47
12

48
02

48
01

47
11

47
07

47
01

47
02

47
08

47
12

4605 4611

47
05

47
09

4702
4706

4710
4714

4804

4701
4703

4707
4711

4801
4805

4807 4805
4801
4713

4709
4705

4601
46024608

4704
4708

4712
4802

4806

48
21

48
13

48
01

47
05

48
02

47
06

1205

46
29

46
21

46
13

46
05

45
21

45
13

1202

1210
1218

45
08

45
16

46
06

1205
1213

45
05

45
13

46
14

46
22

1206

S 5
TH

 ST

HA
RT

RIC
K 

BL
UF

F R
D

CANYON CREEK DR

S 5
TH

 ST

Z-FY-12-60 Change of Zoning SF-2 to 2F McLean Commercial
Hartrick Road

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
Neighborhood Conservation
Auto-Urban Residential
Auto-Urban Commercial
Suburban Commercial
Parks & Open Space

0 200 400

Feet
September 6, 2012
City of Temple Planning Department 

Z-FY-12-60



602
608614

620
626630634 505511

517523
603609

615621625629
631

504510
516522

602
608

614620
626

630 505511517523
603609

615619
621

504510516
522602608614

620
505

511
517603609613

615 504510
516602

608614

509515
521

609
615

621

62
0

61
4

60
8

60
2

52
0

51
4

50
8

50
2

631
635

409

927

931

930

921

922926930

915

916

45
09

43
03

43
09

43
15

43
21

44
03

44
09

44
21

45
15

45
21

46
03

46
09

42
78

44
19

441
3

440
94

33
1

442
0

450
4

45
12

46
16

46
08

45
24

1003
101110151023

1115

46
16

46
15

46
11

45
20

46
04 46
03

45
17

45
12

45
04

44
20

45
09

44
25

44
17 1009

1013
1017

4412

4408
4404 1018 1010 1006

111
0

1003
1011

10191103

1107

1108
1024 1016 10081004

4607

46
12

47
02 4601 4607

4702
4704 4703

4701

4605
4601

4602

SF-2

2F

O-2

AG

GRNS
GR

2F

C

SFA-2

AG

SF-3

GR

726-C

726-C

726-A
726-A

726B-A 726A-B

HA
RT

RIC
K 

BL
UF

F R
D

KACIE DR

KAREY DR

RIDGEVIEW DR

PASEO DEL PLATA

Z-FY-12-60 Change of Zoning SF-2 to 2F
200 ft. Notification Buffer

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
Case Buffer_200 Zoning Outblock Number

0 200 400

Feet

August 22, 2012
City of Temple GIS1234

LOWE'S DRIVE

KENDRA DR

CA
NY

ON
 R

ID
GE

 D
R

PASEO DEL PLATA

McLean Commercial
Hartrick Road



G

G

G

G G

G

G

G
G

G

G

G

G
G

G

G

8"

24
"

10"

6"

18
"

6"
8"

8"

10"

6"

6" 602
608614

620
626630634 505511

517523
603609

615621625629
631

504510
516522

602
608

614620
626

630 505511517523
603609

615619
621

504510516
522602608614

620
505

511
517603609613

615 504510
516602

608614

509515
521

609
615

621

62
0

61
4

60
8

60
2

52
0

51
4

50
8

50
2

631
635

409

927

931

930

921

922926930

915

916

45
09

43
03

43
09

43
15

43
21

44
03

44
09

44
21

45
15

45
21

46
03

46
09

42
78

44
19

441
3

440
94

33
1

450
4

45
12

46
16

46
08

45
24

1003
101110151023

1115

46
16

46
15

46
11

45
20

46
04 46
03

45
17

45
12

45
04

44
20

45
09

44
25

44
17 1009

1013
1017

4412

4408
4404 1018 1010 1006

111
0

1003
1011

10191103

1107

1108
1024 1016 10081004

4607

46
12

4601
4703
4701

4605
4601

8"
6"

8"

8"

6"

HARTR
ICK BLU

FF R
D

KACIE DR

KAREY DR

RIDGEVIEW DR

PASEO DEL PLATA

Z-FY-12-60 Change of Zoning SF-2 to 2F
Utility Map

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
Case G Fire Hydrant Sewer Line Water Line

0 200 400

Feet

August 22, 2012
City of Temple GIS

LOWE'S DRIVE

KENDRA DR

CA
NY

ON
 R

ID
GE

 D
R

PASEO DEL PLATA

McLean Commercial
Hartrick Road



EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2012 
 
ACTION ITEMS 

Item 3: Z-FY-12-60: Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on a zone 
change from Single Family Two District (SF-2) to Two Family District (2F) on 16.451 ± 
acres, situated in the Maximo Moreno Survey, Abstract 14, Bell County, Texas, 
located between Hartrick Bluff Road and Lowe’s Drive, south of Canyon Creek Drive. 

 

Ms. Beverly Zendt, Senior Planner stated the subject property was located between Hartrick 
Bluff Road and Lowe’s Drive also known as the Canyon Ridge Subdivision. The applicant is 
Clark & Fuller on behalf of McLean Commercial. 

The subject property is zoned Single Family-Two (SF-2) and the adjacent tract is zoned Two 
Family (2F). 

The Future Land Use and Character Map designates the property as Auto-Urban Residential 
which allows for site built homes on smaller lots or higher density.  

This item was preliminary platted along with Canyon Ridge Phase I and was not final platted 
as was the other section.  The plat as drawn depicted 140 single family units with an average 
lot size of 65 feet x 120 feet.  The applicant would like to develop in accordance with the 
preliminary plat but rather than single family homes he proposes two family dwellings. 
Expected development would be 70 two family dwellings or 140 units. 

There is an eight inch water line on the northeast corner available for the property and a ten 
inch wastewater main on the northwest corner. 

Two notices were mailed and zero were returned in favor or opposition. 

Staff recommends approval of the zoning request since it complies with the Future Land Use 
and Character Map, complies with the Thoroughfare Plan and public and private facilities are 
available for the property. 

Chair Staats opened the public hearing. 

There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Vice-Chair Sears made a motion to approve Item 3, Z-FY-12-60, and Commissioner Martin 
made a second. 

Motion passed: (8:0) 
Commissioner Rhoads absent 

 



1 
 

  
ORDINANCE NO. ____________________ 

 
[PLANNING NO. Z-FY-12-60] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A REZONING FROM SINGLE FAMILY TWO 
DISTRICT (SF-2) TO TWO FAMILY DISTRICT (2F) ON APPROXIMATELY 
16.451 ACRES OUT OF THE MAXIMO MORENO SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 
14, LOCATED BETWEEN HARTRICK BLUFF ROAD AND LOWE’S DRIVE, 
SOUTH OF CANYON CREEK DRIVE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 
 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Single Family Two District (SF-

2) to Two Family District (2F) on approximately 16.451 acres out of the Hartrick Bluff 
Road and Lowe’s Drive, south of Canyon Creek Drive, more fully described in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid 
by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall 
not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this 
ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 4th day of 
October, 2012. 
 

  



2 
 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 18th day of October, 2012. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
        ___________________________ 

WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
                       
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/04/12 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Jonathan Graham, City Attorney 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 
designating a tract of land consisting of approximately 8.144 acres and described as Lot 7 and Lot 8, 
Block 1, Enterprise Park, located at 2708 Lucius McCelvey Drive as City of Temple Tax Abatement 
Reinvestment Zone Number Twenty-Four for commercial/industrial tax abatement.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in the item 
description, on first reading, and schedule second reading and final adoption for October 18, 2012. 
  
ITEM SUMMARY: The proposed ordinance designates a tract of land consisting of approximately 
8.144 acres and described as Lot 7 and Lot 8, Block 1, Enterprise Park, located at 2708 Lucius 
McCelvey Drive, as a commercial/industrial tax abatement reinvestment zone. The designation of a 
tax abatement reinvestment zone lasts for five years and is a prerequisite for entering into a tax 
abatement agreement with a future economic development prospect. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None at this time. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 
 
  



 
 1 

 
 ORDINANCE NO.______________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, DESIGNATING A CERTAIN AREA AS TAX ABATEMENT 
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWENTY-FOUR FOR 
COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL TAX ABATEMENT; ESTABLISHING THE 
BOUNDARIES THEREOF AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO; 
DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 
  

 
Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas (the "City"), desires to promote the 

development or redevelopment of a certain contiguous geographic area within its jurisdiction by 
creation of a reinvestment zone for commercial/industrial tax abatement, as authorized by Section 
312.201 of the Texas Tax Code (hereinafter the "Code");  
 

Whereas,, the City held such public hearing after publishing notice of such public hearing, and 
giving written notice to all taxing units overlapping the territory inside the proposed reinvestment 
zone;  
 

Whereas, the City at such hearing invited any interested person, or his attorney, to appear and 
contend for or against the creation of the reinvestment zone, the boundaries of the proposed 
reinvestment zone, whether all or part of the territory described in the ordinance calling such public 
hearing should be included in such proposed reinvestment zone, the concept of tax abatement; and 
 

Whereas, the proponents of the reinvestment zone offered evidence, both oral and 
documentary, in favor of all of the foregoing matters relating to the creation of the reinvestment zone, 
and opponents of the reinvestment zone appeared to contest creation of the reinvestment zone. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this ordinance are hereby found 
and declared to be true and correct. 
 

Part 2: The City, after conducting such hearings and having heard such evidence and 
testimony, has made the following findings and determinations based on the testimony presented to it: 
 

A. That a public hearing on the adoption of the reinvestment zone has been properly called, 
held and conducted and that notices of such hearings have been published as required by law and 
mailed to all taxing units overlapping the territory inside the proposed reinvestment zone;  
 

B. That the boundaries of the reinvestment zone (hereinafter "REINVESTMENT ZONE 
NUMBER TWENTY-FOUR") should be Lot 7 and Lot 8, Block 1, Enterprise Park, according to a plat 
of record in Cabinet D, Slide 112-A, Plat Records of Bell County, Texas, and located at 2708 Lucius 
McCelvey Drive, Temple, Bell County, Texas, as described in the drawing attached as Exhibit "A."  
 



 
 2 

C. That creation of REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWENTY-FOUR will result in 
benefits to the City and to the land included in the zone after the term of any agreement executed 
hereunder, and the improvements sought are feasible and practical; 
 

D. That REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWENTY-FOUR meets the criteria for the 
creation of a reinvestment zone as set forth in Section 312.202 of the Code in that it is "reasonably 
likely as a result of the designation to contribute to the retention or expansion of primary employment 
or to attract major investment in the zone that would be a benefit to the property and that would 
contribute to the economic development of the City;" and 
 

E. That REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWENTY-FOUR meets the criteria for the 
creation of a reinvestment zone as set forth in the City of Temple Guidelines and Criteria for granting 
tax abatement in reinvestment zones. 
 

Part 3: Pursuant to Section 312.201 of the Code, the City hereby creates a reinvestment zone 
for commercial/industrial tax abatement encompassing Lot 7 and Lot 8, Block 1, Enterprise Park, 
according to a plat of record in Cabinet D, Slide 112-A, Plat Records of Bell County, Texas, and 
located at 2708 Lucius McCelvey Drive, Temple, Bell County, Texas, described by the drawing in 
Exhibit "A" attached hereto and such REINVESTMENT ZONE is hereby designated and shall 
hereafter be officially designated as Tax Abatement Reinvestment Zone Number Twenty-Four, City of 
Temple, Texas. 
 

Part 4: The REINVESTMENT ZONE shall take effect on October 18, 2012, or at an earlier 
time designated by subsequent ordinance. 
 

Part 5: To be considered for execution of an agreement for tax abatement the 
commercial/industrial project shall: 
 

A. Be located wholly within the Zone as established herein; 
 

B. Not include property that is owned or leased by a member of the City Council of the City of 
Temple, Texas, or by a member of the Planning and Zoning Commission; 
 

C. Conform to the requirements of the City's Zoning Ordinance, the CRITERIA governing tax 
abatement previously adopted by the City, and all other applicable laws and regulations; and 
 

D. Have and maintain all land located within the designated zone, appraised at market value for 
tax purposes. 
 

Part 6: Written agreements with property owners located within the zone shall provide 
identical terms regarding duration of exemption and share of taxable real property value exempted 
from taxation. 
 

Part 7: Written agreements for tax abatement as provided for by Section 312.205 of the Code 
shall include provisions for: 
 

A. Listing the kind, number and location of all proposed improvements of the property; 
 



 
 3 

B. Access to and inspection of property by municipal employees to ensure that the 
improvements or repairs are made according to the specification and conditions of the agreements; 
 

C. Limiting the use of the property consistent with the general purpose of encouraging 
development or redevelopment of the zone during the period that property tax exemptions are in effect; 
and 
 

D. Recapturing property tax revenue lost as a result of the agreement if the owner of the 
property fails to make the improvements as provided by the agreement. 
 

Part 8: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the 
ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the 
provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

Part 9: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in accordance 
with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 10: Sunset provision. The designation of Tax Abatement Reinvestment Zone Number 
Twenty-Four shall expire five years from the effective date of this ordinance. The designation of a tax 
abatement reinvestment zone may be renewed for periods not exceeding five years. The expiration of a 
reinvestment zone designation does not affect an existing tax abatement agreement authorized by the 
City Council. 
 

Part 11: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance is 
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meeting Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 4th day of October, 
2012. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 18th day of October, 2012. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  
 

10/04/12 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Autumn Speer, Director of Community Services 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   P-FY-12-23: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the Preliminary Plat 
of The Oaks at Lakewood, a 19.065 acres ±, 2 blocks, 37-lot residential subdivision, with a requested 
exception to Unified Development Code Section 8.2.1.G.2, regarding a threshold of 180 feet for a 
jogged intersection, located on the east side of Mogan’s Point Road, north of the intersection of West 
Adams Avenue and Morgan’s Point Road.   
 
P&Z COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its September 17, 2012, meeting, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted 7/0 to recommend approval of the Preliminary Plat of The Oaks at 
Lakewood, a 19.065 acres ±, 2 blocks, 37-lot residential subdivision, with a requested exception to 
Unified Development Code Section 8.2.1.G.2, regarding a threshold of 180 feet for a jogged 
intersection.  Chair Staats abstained, and Commissioner Rhoads was absent. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of The Oaks at Lakewood, subject to City 
Council’s approval of the developer’s requested exception to Unified Development Code Section 
8.2.1.G.2, regarding a threshold of 180 feet for a jogged intersection. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The Development Review Committee reviewed the Preliminary Plat of The Oaks 
at Lakewood on May 23, 2012 and September 5, 2012.  It was deemed administratively complete on 
September 11, 2012. 
 
Preliminary Plat of The Oaks at Lakewood is a 37-lot, 2-block single family residential subdivision 
located on the east side of Mogan’s Point Road, north of the intersection of West Adams Avenue and 
Morgan’s Point Road.  
 
The applicant requests an exception to Unified Development Code Section 8.2.1.G.2 which allows 
street jogs with centerline offsets of more than 180 feet to be submitted for consideration in 
accordance with the exception provisions in UDC Section 3.6.6.  The plat proposes a street jog of 
101.19 feet on Connor Drive, between Lakewood Oaks Drive and Camdyn Caye Drive.   
 
 
 
 
 



 

10/04/12 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
Water will be provided to the subdivision through 6-inch and 8-inch water lines.  Wastewater services 
will be provided through 8-inch wastewater lines, a force main, and a proposed lift station in Tract B.  
 
City Council is the final plat authority since the applicant requests an exception to the Unified 
Development Code. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  An 8 foot wide trail is to be provided along the east side of Morgan’s Point Road 
by the developer and reimbursed by the City of Temple. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Request for Exception to UDC Section 8.2.1.G.2 
Plat 
P&Z Excerpts 
Resolution 
 







EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2012 
 
ACTION ITEMS 

Item 5: P-FY-12-23 Consider and make a recommendation on the Preliminary Plat of The 
Oaks at Lakewood, a 19.065 acres ±, 2 blocks, 37-lot residential subdivision, with a 
requested exception to Unified Development Code Section 8.2.1.G.2, regarding a 
threshold of 180 feet for a jogged intersection, located on the east side of Morgan’s 
Point Road, north of the intersection of West Adams Avenue and Morgan’s Point 
Road.   

Chair Staats stated he needed to abstain from this Item and asked Vice-Chair Sears to lead 
the meeting during his absence. 

Ms. Tammy Lyerly, Planner, stated the applicant was asking for an exception to UDC so the 
plat will go forward to City Council for final authority. 

The subject property is located just south of the City limit line and south across from Bonnie 
Lane, and along Morgan’s Point Road. 

The DRC deemed this plat administratively complete on September 1, 2012 and the property 
is zoned Single Family-1 (SF-1).   

The developer requests an exception to UDC Section 8.2.1.G.2 regarding a threshold of 180 
feet for a jogged intersection.  The development will have water services provided through a 
six-inch and eight-inch water lines and wastewater services will be provided through an eight 
inch wastewater line, forced main, and a lift station located on tract B. 

The requested exception deals with the jog in the street centerline.  The UDC allows street 
jogs to centerline offsets of more than 180 feet to be submitted for consideration. In this case, 
the developer is requesting a street jog of 101.19 feet.   

Staff recommends approval of the plat and the requested exception. 

Commissioner Talley made a motion to approve Item 5, P-FY-12-23, and Commissioner Jones 
made a second. 
Motion passed:  (7:0) 
Chair Staats abstained; Commissioner Rhoads absent 
Chair Staats returned to the dais. 

 



 
 RESOLUTION NO.   
 

(PLANNING NO. P-FY-12-23) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
APPROVING PRELIMINARY PLAT OF THE OAKS AT LAKEWOOD, A 37-LOT, 2-
BLOCK RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION ON APPROXIMATELY 19.065 ACRES ON 
THE EAST SIDE OF MORGAN’S POINT ROAD, NORTH OF THE INTERSECTION 
OF WEST ADAMS AVENUE AND MORGAN’S POINT ROAD, SUBJECT TO THE 
DEVELOPER’S REQUESTED EXCEPTIONS TO THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE SECTION 8.2.1.G.2; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 

Whereas, on September 17, 2012, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved the Preliminary 
Plat The Oaks at Lakewood, a 37-lot, 2-block, residential subdivision on the east side of Morgan’s Point 
Road, north of the intersection of West Adams Avenue and Morgan’s Point Road, subject to the 
developer’s requested exceptions to the Unified Development Code Section 8.2.1.G.2, regarding a 
threshold of 180 feet for a jogged intersection; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to approve 
the Preliminary Plat of The Oaks at Lakewood. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves the Preliminary Plat of The Oaks at Lakewood, a 37-lot, 2-
block, residential subdivision on the east side of Morgan’s Point Road, north of the intersection of West 
Adams Avenue and Morgan’s Point Road, which is on file in the City's Planning Department, 
incorporated herein and referred to by reference, and including the following conditions and exceptions to 
the Unified Development Code Section 8.2.1.G.2: 

 
(1) Street jogs with centerline offsets of more than 180 feet; 
 
Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution is 

passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 4th day of October, 2012. 
  
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
  
              
       WILLIAM A. JONES, III, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 


	Z-FY-12-58 - Council Exhibits 20Sept12.pdf
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 6
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 6




